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Focused with steady progress
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GROUP’'S MAJOR PROPERTIES/BUSINESSES PROFILE SEBIXZMER/ZBE N

AIM AT PROVIDING A LUXURIOUS, RELAXED AND HEALTHY LIVING
ENVIRONMENT, SALES RESULTS OF THE GRAND RIVIERA (PHASE 1), AND
GRAND JARDIN (PHASE 2) ARE SATISFACTORY.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY 1 & 81 #5 5 2

Total assets

BT
(restated)
KE5)

2012
—E——%F
HK$'000
BETTE

2013
—T—=

HK$'000
BT

) 82,663,490 85,934,537 89,703,818 94,440,825 14,654,676
BEE
Total liabilities
waE 71,721,422 74,275,957 77,410,789 81,424,503 3,617,900
Total net assets
. 10,942,068 11,658,580 12,293,029 13,016,322 11,036,776
Net assets value per share EHKS28.90 7T AW HKS30.807T AW HKS3247 7T AMHKSI438 T B HK$29.15 7%
BREEFE

Profit for the year attributable to

owners of the Company 507,958 600,371 480,010 543,460 2,356,935
DERARR AR 2 AFEREF

Basic earnings per share . _ . _ . _ . _ . _

B HK$1.34 B HK$1. 7 27 7 44 7 .

SREAR S HK$1.34 T s HK$1.59 7T M HK$1.27 7t B HK$1.44 T B HK$6.23 7T
ggingSMW BEHKS0257T  BMHKS0307T  BMHKI028T  BMHKS0.287 B HK$0.40 7E
Dividend payout ratio

(from continuing operations only) 19% 19% 22% 39% 38%

RBLLE (RERERHELR)

note 1:

been restated as it was not cost effective.

MaE—: BE—Z-"ZF+_A=1+—"BLFE DERFARATARRZAFEaMERERERRMNEARARGDRE - WEST -

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company and basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2010 had not

Dividend per share in 2014 did not include special cash dividend of HK$2.80 per share due to the completion of Partial Offer (the meaning
ascribed thereto in the Company’s circular to shareholders dated 4 December 2013) for disposal of Chong Hing Bank Limited shares (“CHB
Shares”) and the special dividend by way of distribution in specie to the shareholders of the Company in the proportion of 1 share in the
issued share capital of Chong Hing Bank Limited (“CHB”) for every 10 shares in the issued share capital of the Company.

—E2-NFEFRBRETBERETHKHE I ERTAR ARG ([8IMRTRM ) HHBLH (BARR —F—=F1+— AMHEBE
BHEES —BOMKENFIRSKRSESEERE 280 - RABYDRFRIEARREETRAGSI0BAEIREIERTER AR (A

Dividend payout ratio in 2014, if including the special cash dividend and the special dividend by way of distribution in specie, the ratio

note 2:
isE= :
FERTT ) B BITIRAMIRE 2 FERIARE -
note 3:
should be adjusted to 81%.
MisE= -

MEERNIRERERAEN DR ZFRIRE - —F—NE 2 RE L R FHEE81% -



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS CHARTS h 8RR Z2E &

Total Assets 2&E Total Liabilities #2& & Total Net Assets & ZE /F{HLEEE
HK$ in Billion B#+1E7T HK$ in Billion % +1{&7T HK$ in Billion &% {27
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| AM PLEASED TO PRESENT TO YOU A REVIEW OF THE CROUP’'S BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
AS WELL AS SOME OBSERVATIONS FROM THE OVERALL ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT FOR
THE YEAR 2014 AND EXPECTATIONS FOR THE YEAR AHEAD.

KA RARTA

BRAE  HRERE Y HE o

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present to you a review of the Group’s business
performance as well as some observations from the overall economic

environment for the year 2014 and expectations for the year ahead.

ECONOMIC REVIEW

2014 was a dramatic year. Around the world, political tensions and
conflicts continued, and the threat of terrorism has also developed
into a new level. The aviation disasters are still fresh in the minds of
many, as are the Ebola epidemic and the “bird flu” mutations. Hong
Kong has also witnessed perhaps the greatest social and political

divide in decades.

2014 was also a solemn year of economic growth. China’s economy
grew at 7.4%, missing the 7.5% target and at its slowest pace in 24
years, amidst the cooling down of property prices while companies
and local governments struggled under heavy debt burdens. China is
a huge importer of raw materials, from oil to soybeans. Much of last
decade’s commodity boom is premised on the idea of insatiable
Chinese demand. The slipping momentum in China has reverberated
around the world, sending prices for commodities tumbling and
weakening an already soft global economy. House prices were down
by 4.5% on year as of December, according to the National Bureau of
Statistics. Construction had been slow down on many sites as
developers wait to see if the market will turn around. The slowdown
in China also comes at a vulnerable time for the world’s economy.
The eurozone is at risk of a third recession in the sixth years. As
possibly the only brighter star in 2014, the US Federal Reserve ended
its 6-year-long quantitative easing stimulus programme given its

confidence that the US economy recovery would continue.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT @R ES

In Hong Kong, gross domestic product grew slower at 2.3% in 2014
when comparing a 2.9% growth rate in 2013, and significantly fell
behind the latest 10-year average. The “Occupy Central” movement
from September to December 2014 has detrimentally affected
consumption, particularly in retail, tourism and transport sectors. The
landmark partnership between the Shanghai and Hong Kong stock
markets was launched during 2014, allowing foreign and Hong Kong
retail investors to trade in the Shanghai stock market for the first time
and allowing mainland Chinese investors to deal in Hong Kong stocks
through the Shanghai stock exchange. We welcome this arrangement

and hope to see more activity in the year ahead.

BUSINESS RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the audited profit of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$3,386.4 million, an increase
of approximately 310.1% over the previous year. This includes an
exceptional gain of HK$2,983.6 million on the completion of partial
offer for disposing of Chong Hing Bank’s share. Excluding such
exceptional gain, profit from continuing operations saw an year-on-

year increase of approximately 47.2% over the previous year.

The Board of Directors has proposed to recommend at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 29th April 2015,
the payment of a final cash dividend of HK$0.25 per share. Together
with the interim cash dividend of HK$0.15 per share paid on 24th
September 2014, the total cash dividend amounted to HK$0.40 per
share for the year 2014.

5 b [ A AR A R — = AR 2.9%
BWRAR > —F — TSR BT CIE > 3R
2.3% > KRR % HER P —F
—PERAZ+ZHB MEESER ] EE A
BN E - BT k% A0 B ILTR -
HABRMERDN B ] £ —F U4
PR > B IKHERFEI R F T EREEE
vl BT R > SRR R A B R
9B RS IR A T B R B o FRAM IO B 2
Ptz A B AR A1 B I B o

REXEE

BEF-WEF A=+ —HILFEE
RET A% A B M 2 K AR i R A S s T
3,386,400,0007C - ¥ F 4 FE E &
310.1% © 1 YE i A 63 45 52 A i B Al B SR A7
e 38 43 B 40 TG 4 2R 1 T S8 M i 4 vk
2,983,600,000 JC ° #7 i Bk 5% TH IF 485 M i
fit o FRAERRAE 1 T AR s A ER b AR B R AR B
F+#147.2% -

HEHEEN T —HAENHA —+JUH 217
ZEE R AR g > d kIR R B
8 545 B S ¥ 0.25 96 o B[] i & — U 4R
JUH = H B IR 2 B8 i S
w0150 “E—EEZHEKES
55 A 0.40 7T -



BUSINESS REVIEW

HIKK PROPERTY BUSINESS

CHONG HING SQUARE

Chong Hing Square maintained a high occupancy rate throughout
the year, which stood at 98% as at 31 December 2014. This 20-storey
retail/commercial building is located in the heart of Mongkok,
Kowloon and provides over 182,000 square feet of retail space and

entertainment facilities.

CHONG YIP CENTRE

With an occupancy rate of 80% as at 31 December 2014, Chong Yip
Shopping Centre remains one of the favourite shopping centres in
the western part of Hong Kong Island with over 54,000 square feet
of retail space and entertainment facilities. The business ambience
and activities of this shopping centre could be benefited upon the
completion of MTR HKU station (new West Island line) opened in
December 2014 since one of their entrance is next to the main lobby

of the shopping centre.
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ALWAYS NEW
Fresh thinRing helps us break our boundaries
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WESTERN HARBOUR CENTRE

This is currently a 28-storey full sea-view Grade A office building
with a gross floor area of over 140,000 square feet located at
Connaught Road West and within close proximity to the Western
Harbour Tunnel. In order to realize a better gain for the Group, the
Board of Directors has resolved to convert this property into a hotel
and serviced apartment complex. Preparation for this conversion is

underway and we are currently expect the new hotel to open its
doors in 2016/2017.

FAIRVIEW COURT

This low-rise deluxe apartment block located in Repulse Bay is 40%
let. As this property has not undergone any major renovation, the
management is considering several capital improvement options in

order to position it for better returns in the long run.

CHATHAM GATE

Chatham Gate is a redevelopment project undertaken by the original
shareholders of The Belcher’s, in which the Group holds a 10%
equity interest. The project calls for the erection of two blocks of
32-storey residential building on top of a 2-storey commercial

complex and carports.

TAI PO PROJECT

The Group acquired this 262,000 square feet plots of land in Tai Po
district, New Territories. Ongoing feasibility studies are being carried
out and the Group will implement its development when the

opportunity arises.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT @R ES

PRC PROPERTY BUSINESS

CHONG HING FINANCE CENTRE, SHANGHAI

This flagship property of the Group, located at 288 Nanjing Road
West in Huang Pu District of Shanghai, is a 36-storey Grade A
commercial building which commands a strategic location and
enviable view over The People’s Square just across the street. With a
total floor area of over 516,000 square feet of office and commercial
space and 198 carparks, this property was 92% let in terms of office
space and 100% let in terms of retail space as at 31 December 2014.
The Group intends to hold this property as a long term investment.
Total rental revenue generated from this property in 2014 was
approximately HK$154.6 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 11.8%. We had undertaken improvements
to service standards and building facilities in 2014 and these will be
closely monitored in the Group’s continued strive in order to improve

the quality and revenue income of this material asset.
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THE GRAND RIVIERA, FOSHAN

The Grand Riviera is a large-scale development project currently
undertaken by the Group. Situated on a plot of land of over 260,000
square metres at 1 Guilong Road, Luocun in the Nanhai District of
Foshan, it is conveniently located within half an hour’s drive from the
Foshan financial district and within an hour’s drive from downtown
Guangzhou. The project boasts a landscape ratio of more than 40%
and adopts a southern French approach to its design. With its unique
characteristics which include a 1 km-long car-free “avenue of trees”,
scenic lakes and landscape features, The Grand Riviera offers a
luxurious, relaxing and healthy living environment for its residents
whilst at the same time becoming the new centre of attraction in
Foshan. In 2014, we launched the pre-sales of Phase 2 of this project
and had successfully sold 776 out of 1,096 launched units. There are
a total of 1,542 available units in Phase 2, comprising unit sizes of 60,
90 and 120 square metres, and we will continue to launch the
remaining units in 2015. Construction of Phase 3 of this project is

also expected to begin in 2015.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £ E#HR&EE

BUDGET HOTEL PROJECT

The Group has invested in a budget hotel project currently consisting
of two budget hotels in Shanghai, one in Guangzhou and another one
in Beijing, all of which are operated under the PRC domestic budget
hotel chain known as “Hanting”. Total revenue recorded in 2014

from such operations was approximately HK$49.2 million.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

Liu Chong Hing Property Management and Agency Limited,
established in 1976, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and is principally responsible for managing certain properties

developed by the Group. Its revenue remained stable in 2014.

Grand Jardin, Foshan f 1L 7 B & &
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ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

A further slowdown in China could hinder the chances of a revival in
global growth in 2015, given the major role it plays, in particular for
commodities and manufacturing industries. There are concerns about
the potential onset of a deflationary cycle, aggravated by plummeting
energy prices, industrial overcapacity and sluggish demand. There
may be a looming fiscal crisis among debt-sodden local governments,
which depend on land sales for most of their revenue. Credit is
expected to remain tight and more companies, especially small
property developers, could flirt with default. With China’s growth
seen cooling further this year, we hope and expect more support
measures from the Central Government. The pace of the US
economic recovery will continue to play a dominant role in the world
arena. Although targets for US inflation and reduction in
unemployment are on track, the US Federal Reserve has indicated
that it will keep low interest rates for the first two quarters of this
year because various indicators were not considered to be back to

normal levels.
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The political and social debates concerning universal suffrage in Hong
Kong will continue in 2015. We hope that the Hong Kong society
would exercise restraint such that views could be conveyed in an
orderly and respectful manner, failing which the core value of Hong
Kong being a civilized international metropolis — something which
the people of Hong Kong have painfully built over the years — will
be lost. We urge politicians and other vocal activists to take a
practical and realistic approach with Hong Kong’s long-term growth
and competitiveness at heart. Unity is strength and we hope to see a
more unified Hong Kong in 2015. The Hong Kong Government has
already announced the 2015 fiscal measures to boost consumption,
investment and growth, including increasing child allowances and
waiving license fees for hotels and restaurants, and hope that these

incentives would help boost the economy.

Grand Jardin, Foshan luxurious showflat {1 8 5 B2 5t % R #8588 {1
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In 2015, we will continue to improve our asset and service qualities
as well as continuing to look for growth and investment
opportunities, both in Hong Kong and overseas. Our prudent
business approach has resulted in us being financially solid, whilst our
new direction in the hotel and serviced apartment business is an

example of our determination to continue growth for the Group.

SINCERE ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to express my heartfelt thanks to stakeholders and
shareholders for their continued trust and support, to all my fellow
directors for their wise stewardship, and to our senior management

and staff for their commitment and dedication.

Dr. Liu Lit Mo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 4 March 2015
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The Board of Directors of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the
“Directors”) has pleasure in presenting to the Shareholders its annual

report together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in note 42 and 22 to the

consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs at that date are set
out on pages 109 to 235 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim cash dividend of HK$0.15 per share was paid to
shareholders on 24 September 2014. The Directors recommend a
final cash dividend of HK$0.25 per share, making a total cash
dividend of HK$0.40 per share for the year.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the movements in
reserves of the Company during the year are set out in note 34 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 December 2014 comprised the accumulated profits of
HK$5,056,553,000 (2013: HK$1,610,714,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties during the year are set out in

note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set

out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

Movements in properties under development/properties under
development for sale/properties held for sale during the year are set

out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 33 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 May 2012, which replaced the
previous share option scheme, for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees, and will expire on 8
May 2022. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options to
eligible employees, including executive directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally,
the Company may, from time to time, grant share options to outside

eligible third parties at the discretion of the Board of Directors.
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at

any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s

shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the
share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be
less than the higher of the nominal value of the Company’s share on
the date of grant, the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant, or the closing

price of the shares on the date of grant.

No options have been granted under the above mentioned scheme

since the Scheme was adopted.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars relating to the subsidiaries are set out in notes 42 to the

consolidated financial statements respectively.

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED
Details of bank loans and other borrowings repayable within five

years are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s interest capitalised during the year amounted to
HK$27,166,000 (2013: HK$12,575,000).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report are shown on page 76 of this annual report.

The term of office of each director, who has been longest in office,
shall retire by rotation and offer themselves for re-election in

accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi,
Moses and Mr. Lee Wai Hung shall retire by rotation in accordance
with Articles 99 of the Company’s Articles of Association and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. In accordance with Article
92 of The Company’s Articles of Association, any director so
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following

annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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The biographical details of directors and senior management are set

out on pages 81 to 91.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independent pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered all

Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

COMPLIANCE OF THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS
All directors have confirmed, that they complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules throughout the review period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL OF THE

COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the Directors and the Chief
Executive Officer in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, or have been recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or have been notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers were

as follows:

INTERESTS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

THE COMPANY

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

SR ANREBEEZBHEE 2
A% 7N 1 &=
REF—MET+ZH=+—H EF KT
HABNAS 1> 7] e FOAH vk B (O 78 RCGH
I A BB XV B 2 Bl - AHBA A 1y
R A7 A RAR A8 5 B & 5 9] 26 XV &R
557 K 8 03 T RN AR m) R A i 2 M
i o BURIEGE S FOW BB 352 Ewd
AR w) A B s i i 2 ds > SRR B
T AT NE R ETE SRS 2 BRI
e AN T R 2 BRI

f£E IR B & H 18 B i B 89 iz 173 K 18 8
A% i o 84 & &=

VIVANC]
BRI S A SE A R )

NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES HELD & ERBRIRAHE

Family interests

Total interests

(interests of spouse as approximate %

Personal interests or child under 18) Corporate interests of the relevant

(held as RikRER (interests of controlled issued share capital

Long/short beneficial owner) (EL{Bh185% corporation) BEAHL

Name of Director position EARERE UTFFx AT R Total interests BETRAE

EENE WR/ %A (B&HA) i) (BREHAR2ER) BRER BHBAE

Dr. Liu Lit Mo Long 795,600 = 138,326,710 139,122,310 36.75%
BRREL HE (notes 1and 2)
(HF1%2)

Mr. Liu Lit Chi Long 141,668 = 178,081,332 178,223,000 47.08%
BRIERE e (notes 1 and 3)
(1R 3)

Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston - Long 6,372,000 = = 6,372,000 1.68%

BeEEE e

Dr. Liu Lit Chung Long = = 132,326,710 132,326,710 34.95%
BRREE e (note 1)
GED)

notes: Bﬁﬁf .

1. 132,326,710 Shares are beneficially held by Liu’s Holdings Limited, of which Dr. Liu Lit
Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung are amongst its shareholders. The above
numbers of shares are duplicated under the corporate interests for each of these

Directors.

2. Eternal Wealth Limited, of which Dr. Liu Lit Mo and his associates are shareholders,
beneficially holds 6,000,000 Shares, and thus is included in the corporate interests of
Dr. Liu Lit Mo.

3. Alba Holdings Limited, of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates are shareholders,
beneficially holds 45,754,622 Shares, and thus is included in the corporate interests of
Mr. Liu Lit Chi.

1. BRIRELE  BEREEERERIABEABEKEE
BRARZIKRE - ZARIAXBEREAANRBRG
132,326,710 % o LR EREFTB T 2R AR
=B HREE -

2. BRRELIREBBALTABEERAAZRKRE
Z AR B m A AR AR 6,000,000 A% - I 554K
FEERELE T2 ARIERERA -

3 BRREEREBEATAEEEEER AR ZK
R ZARBERBEEANLRRRGD 4575462208 + I
BNEBRE R EE T ZRARERIER A ©



INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2014, so far as is known to the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member

of the Group:

FERRKHEMAINIES

BoFE—-NESZA=Z+t—H > SiAAH
P> RN (G AR R AT U BR
) TR AR T 2 By B AR BR e 473 v A AR
Gt 7 B RG] 58 XV R 4R 2 X 53 3 70
ZHE R I AR A4 B 2 M AR R > B
L% o ] B A T AE AL % UL R A5
AT AT FoAth B B 28 R HROR & B B 2 AR
S P A T (B 5% 2 A b 2 4

Name of Substantial Shareholder Long/short position Capacity No. of ordinary share held % of the issued share capital
FTERRER "R/ KE 514 FisEBERROHE HERITRAB DL
Liu's Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 132,326,710 34.95%
BREEARAA R ERFEAA (note 1)
i)
Alba Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 45,754,622 12.09%
BESEERAA HE ExnfaA (note 2)
(BiF=E2)
notes: BiaE -
1. Liu's Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, are owned by, 1. EXKEEBRARIRESEMKZZALART]

amongst others, Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung. Such corporate
interests are also disclosed in the sub-section under “Directors’ interests in Share
Capital of the Company and its Associated Corporations.”

2. Alba Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by
Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the
sub-section under “Directors’ interests in Share Capital of the Company and its
Associated Corporations.”

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any
person (other than the directors or Chief Executives Officer of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company of 5% or more as at 31 December
2014 which were required to be disclosed to the Company under
Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

BEABEENREL  BRERERBAULE
£ ZERRAEDNER LINER [EFEART
N HARHOEE R 2 IR | DR o

2. EEEEERARINEBEMKALZIAART -
DRRBREEEREBEATHARS - 252
AR N EFEA [EEEAREREBBA
BRI A | DEHEE o

B b2 B B g o - IR AT A £ (AR F]
o H T B ER AN AR SRR R M
PRI XV RSN —F—WE+—H =1~
H A A28 7 5% 80 A b 22 WAy B A B ey
Z HEAR SR A AR A AR R SRR
i 77 M B Ao 9 5 336 160 7H T i A 2 % R
i R PRt SRS T 8% -

X
C
%
z
m
wv
wv
o)
m
=
m
=
>
Z
S
I
o}
~
9
O
S
_|
m
)
o
<
m
o)
z
>
z
o
m
i
o
=]
@)
X
P>
al
0
o

N
w

EVHBXITERE

IEEEL s



N
N

7102 1¥0d3¥ TYNNNY | A3 LIWIT LNIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

DIRECTORS REPORT EE& R &2

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements,
“Related Party Disclosures”, no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business, to which the Company or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had, whether directly or indirectly, a material interest,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not terminable within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In February 2014, the Company entered into a lease agreement with
the landlord, a company wholly owned by Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Chairman,
and his spouse. The Company leased the property for a monthly rent
of HK$400,000 with retrospective effect from 1 January 2014 for a
term of two years. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the
aggregate rent paid by the Company amounted to HK$4,800,000.

In February 2014, the Company entered into a lease agreement with
the landlord, a company owned by Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer, and his associates. The
Company leased the property for a monthly rent of HK$360,000 for
a term commencing from 14 February 2014 and ending on 31
December 2015. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the
aggregate rent paid by the Company amounted to HK$3,792,857.

In March 2012, the Company entered into a lease agreement with
Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a Non-executive Director. The Company leased
the property for a monthly rent of HK$75,000 for a term of two
years commencing from 1 March 2012 and the lease was renewed
with the same term, effective from 1 March 2014, for another two
years ending on 28 February 2016. For the year ended 31 December
2014, the aggregate rent paid by the Company amounted to
HK$900,000
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In March 2011, the Company entered into a service agreement with
K.A. Kho & Associates for architectural and consultancy services
provided to the Company. Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher, a Non-
executive Director, is the sole director and the sole shareholder of
K.A. Kho & Associates. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the
aggregate service fee paid by the Company amounted to
HK$375,350

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions, details of which are also disclosed by the Group in note
41 to the consolidated financial statements, in accordance with Main
Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the directors who do not have any interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in the above transactions, the transactions were
conducted in the ordinary course of business of the Group on normal

commercial terms.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and the Group’s turnover attributable to the
Group's five largest customers were less than 30% respectively. None
of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest

suppliers or customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company and its
subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the shares

in the Company.
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SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION
TOP 10 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
According to the register of members of the Company as at 31

December 2014, the top 10 largest shareholders are as follows:

FRER

HREFSNI0OMRR

WAL R BR SR ER > R F
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Number of Shares held

%

Name of Shareholder RREH BFERHHE BAlL
1. HKSCC Nominees Limited BEPREE (REAN)ERAA 148,911,949 39.33
2. Chong Hing (Nominees) Ltd. AIE(RE)BRAE 141,275,288 37.32
3. Alba Holdings Ltd. FEEBERAR 35,000,222 9.25
4. BTMU Nominees (HK) Ltd. BTMU Nominees (HK) Ltd. 10,000,000 2.64
5 Leung Hok Pang Leung Hok Pang 8,068,000 2.13
6. Win Ever (Nominees) Ltd. Win Ever (Nominees) Ltd. 8,000,000 2.11
7. Wragg Ltd. Wragg Ltd. 3,050,000 0.81
8. Cheng Kee Hong Cheng Kee Hong 2,700,000 0.71
9. Cheng Kee Man Cheng Kee Man 2,600,000 0.69
10.  On Luk Tong Limited On Luk Tong Limited 1,090,000 0.29

Total A 360,695,459 95.28




LOCATION OF SHAREHOLDERS
According to the register of members of the Company as at 31

December 2014, the location of shareholders are as follows:
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Number of Shares held %
Location of Shareholders RRA FERMER Bal
Hong Kong EB 378,521,140 99.9835
China and South East Asia FERRRE D 36,060 0.0095
Europe BUM 800 0.0002
US and Canada XERNER 16,860 0.0045
Others Hity 8,580 0.0023
Total A 378,583,440 100

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT RAZrmEKRS

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare the
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
the end of the financial year and of their respective profit or loss for
the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements, the
directors are required to select suitable accounting policies and apply
them on a consistent basis, making judgments and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable; state the reasons for any significant
departure from accounting standards; prepare the financial statements
on the going concern basis, unless it is not appropriate to presume
that the Company and the Group will continue in business for the

foreseeable future.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and of the Group and
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and

other irregularities.
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DIRECTORS REPORT EE& R &2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The members of the Audit Committee are shown on page 77. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the internal
controls and the financial reporting requirements of the Group. The
Audit Committee meeting will normally hold twice of each financial
year immediate before the Board of Directors meeting for approving
the interim and final results. The Committee is satisfied with the
Company’s internal control procedures and the financial reporting

disclosures.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination Committee report is shown on page 33. The report
showed the main duty and the work performed by the Committee
during the year of 2014.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee report is shown on page 34. The report
showed the main duty and work performed by the Committee during
the year of 2014.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company has substantially complied throughout the year ended
31 December 2014 with those paragraphs of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on Stock Exchange, with which it is required

to report compliance.

Guidelines and procedures for corporate governance of the Company

are set out on pages 49 to 75.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who have expressed their
willingness to continue in office. Accordingly, a resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to reappoint

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Lit Chi

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 4 March 2015
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LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED SIMPLIFIED ORGANIZATION CHART

BRIEFEER GGLHEES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEg

REMUNERATION AUDIT GCOOVREIT??\EAANTCEE NOMINATION
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE

e R COMMITTEE _
FEES BEREEE rEmLESe REZES

Human Resources and Prargeriy Seito e Lezsig Legal and Corporate
and Property Management

Administration Department Digaimen: Communications Department
3= 2T =¥ ANk oAy 3y
ANERFATHED A B AR T ) R EREREEERD

Secretarial Department
WEH

Finance Management Project Development and China Division
and Information Facilities Management Shanghai/Guangzhou/Foshan
Technology Department Department o ERp

BT R AR R R R EEEH SRR L Edesl

Business
Development Department



AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT BiZZ 88K &

The Audit Committee is made up of six members, a majority of

whom are Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The Committee oversees the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures. In this process, management is principally
responsible for the preparation of group financial statements
including the selection of suitable accounting policies. External
auditors are responsible for auditing and attesting to group financial
statements and will report to the management of the Company from
time to time on any weakness in controls which come to their
attention. The Audit Committee oversees the respective work of
management and external auditors to ensure the management has

discharged its duty to have an effective internal control procedures.
The Audit Committee had performed the works as follows:

e To review the audited financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014;

e  To review the interim results of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2014;

e  To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence;

e  To review the system of internal control of the Company;

e  To review the audit plan and the engagement from external
auditors;

e  To make recommendation on the re-appointment of external

auditors; and

e  To review the sufficiency of manpower resources of account

and finance team of the group in order to carry out the duties.

It was reported that no major internal control weakness was found
and all the recommendations previously suggested by auditors were

agreed and implemented by the management in 2014.

Based on these review and discussions, and the report of the external
auditors, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of
Directors approval of the consolidated financial statements for the

year ended 31 December 2014 with the Auditors’ Report thereon.

==

T2 Bl N2 R AL K A A
ARSI RATESR -

2 B B A B T B S AR R %

%Eﬁ?°ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ?»mﬁﬁfﬁﬁ

HEBMBREZMEY > GFEHRSE

B RFEUR o SN AZ B B B L K %
P 2 B 55 Sk 32 B AN IR o) AR 2 ) A B EE

TEUEN R EES L - FREZEGH

B LG R AN AZ B 2 T A QR

i L JB AT ST B ST A A TR R B AR o

FEAZA GO T T

o REAATBRE T —MET A
S BRI R

WA AR E —F—MFESNH =T
H RS A 2 A

o Mwl KA NI A B 2 S A
o MRIAREZNEREAREHE
o AmEEEETEH B SN AL B

o WL E AT 2 AU BRI R 2
o M

. %ﬁ$%@@%&%%@%2k$§
WA > DUEFET BAT .

AN w2 N R B R A AR T R R
Z g o M ELTE i A% B B2 2 P A
IREEAS A B8 SR A0 A —F — TU4E

S

T o

LT A K DA S S A% BT 2

% ENEREGEREFEMMERE
—W4E+ = H =+ —H ILFEEE S BH

ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ%z&ﬁ%ﬁ%%o

X
C
%
z
m
wv
wv
o)
m
=
m
=
>
Z
S
I
o}
~
9
O
S
_|
m
)
o
<
m
o)
z
>
z
o
m
i
o
=]
@)
X
P>
al
0
]

=

EVHBXITERE

IEEEL s



w
N

7102 1¥0d3¥ TYNNNY | A3 LIWIT LNIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT BiZZ 88K &

The Committee recommended to the Board that the shareholders be
asked to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s

external auditors for 2015.

Members of the Audit Committee
Mr. Tong Tsin Ka (Chairman)

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Hong Kong, 3 March 2015
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT &%

The Nomination Committee (“NC”) consists of six members, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company.

The main duty of the Committee is (i) to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; (ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become directors of the Company and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) to assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company; and (iv)
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of the directors and succession plan for directors, in
particular the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

The NC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the terms of
reference which set out their roles, responsibilities and duties. The
terms of reference were duly authorized by the Board.

In year 2014, the NC had reviewed and discussed the following issues
at its meetings:

1.  to review the composition and structure of Board of Directors
of the Company.

2. toreview the attendance record of directors of the Company.

3. to review the scope of responsibilities of directors of the
Company.

4.  to recommend the Board for the appointment of additional
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in order
to comply with the requirement under the Listing Rules.

5.  to review and confirm the independence of all the Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The NC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting are
circulated to the Board for information.

The NC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Nomination Committee
Dr. Liu Lit Mo (Chairman)

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Tong Tsin Ka

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Hong Kong, 3 March 2015
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT &

The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) consists of five members, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors of the

Company.

The main duty of the Committee is to formulate the Company’s
remuneration policy as well as to determine and/or make
recommendation to the Board with regard to the structure of
remuneration packages for all directors and senior management.
When necessary and appropriate, the Chairman and Managing

Director are consulted on such issues.

The RC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the terms of
reference which set out their roles, responsibilities and duties. The

terms of reference were duly authorized by the Board.

The RC, having consulted with the Chairman of the Board, had

reviewed and discussed the following issues at its meeting:

e To review the Company’s policy, structure and the
remunerations packages for all directors and senior

management;

o To determine and/or make recommendation to the Board of

the Directors’ fees and other allowance for the year 2015; and

e  To review and approve the annual performance bonus and its

policy.

The RC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting are

circulated to the Board for information.

The RC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)
Mr. Tong Tsin Ka

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Hong Kong, 3 March 2015
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS &1 #5 18 &

2014 2013
—F-MF —F-—=
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Revenue 565,875 403,488 40.2
Wz
Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company 2,356,935 543,460 333.7
DERARRIIRER 2 AFE 5= F|
Basic earnings per share
BRERZF)
from continuing and discontinued operations N _ e _
S E T A FEHE HK$6.23 7T AR HK$1.44 T 332.6
from continuing operations g —_ . _
S 2 A FBHE HK$1.04 7T S HKS0.71 7T 46.5
Net assets value per share . — R _
SREESE M HK$29.15 7T MK HK$34.38 7T (15.2)
Dividend per share
BIRARE
g S HK$0.15 7 4 HKS0,10 7T 50
;‘Qg' SBME HK$0.25 7T FEHKI0.18 T 39
Total B HK$0.40 7 B HK30.28 72 43
Dividend payout ratio (from continuing operations only) ) )
B (R R AT 58% 598 M
Special cash dividend (note) B HKS2.8 7T - N/A
ARSI E (FsE) TEA
Special dividend by way of distribution in specie (note) 1share of CHB - N/A
LABY SR 2 55 RIS (F5E) for every 10 shares TEA
of the Company
10 0%
ARG
AIES LR

BIBLIRTT AR D

note:
of CHB Shares.

MIAE « IRERRIIR S AE RIAD IR AN EIRTT A 2 55 Bl AR S T3 B SE Rk H & B ERTT AR BB D B 4D -

The payment of special cash dividend and special dividend by way of distribution of CHB Shares were due to the completion of Partial Offer for disposal
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 [z 51 m & 7 i

Chong Hing Finance Center, Shanghai _t 5f§ £ 8 % @ f /0
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the consolidated profits of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$3,386.4 million, of
which profits from discontinued operations amounted to
approximately HK$2,983.6 million while profits from continuing
operations amounted to approximately HK$402.8 million comparing
to the year 2013 of approximately HK$825.7 million, representing

an increase of approximately 310.1%.

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Revenue mainly referred to the revenues generated from property
investment, property development, property management, treasury
investment, trading & manufacturing and hotel operation. Other
income referred to various miscellaneous incomes other than the
main revenue. Administrative and operating expenses increased by
approximately 29.0% from approximately HK$144.6 million in 2013
to approximately HK$186.6 million in 2014.

Other gains and losses mainly comprised of net exchange losses, gain
on initial recognition of available-for-sale investments, gains on
disposal of available-for-sale investments and gain on changes in fair

value of investment properties.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Discontinued operations represented the operating results of CHB
Group up to the date of disposal. It included the operating profit of
approximately HK$92.5 million from 1 January 2014 to 14 February
2014 and the disposal gain of approximately HK$2,891.1 million
arising from the disposal of CHB shares.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 8 ¢ 51 5@ & 7 ifr

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

OVERALL RENTAL REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded gross
rental revenue of approximately HK$351.0 million, representing an
approximately 31.0% increase comparing to that of 2013. Major
changes were due to increase of rental revenue of approximately
HK$58.6 million from Chong Hing Bank Centre and approximately
HK$16.4 million from Shanghai Chong Hing Finance Center.

OVERALL OCCUPANCIES

The Group’s overall occupancies from their major investment

properties was successfully maintained at approximately 86% as at
year ended 2014.

Chong Hing Finance Center, Shanghai _t i &l # & & # /0

BEdsBas
HE-Z—WET_A=Z1T—HIEFE
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HONG KONG PROPERTIES

CHONG HING SQUARE

Chong Hing Square, a 20-storey ginza-type retail/commercial
development situated in the heart of Mongkok, Kowloon, offers over
182,000 square feet of retail and recreational space. For the year
ended 31 December 2014, Chong Hing Square generated annual
revenue of approximately HK$106.5 million, representing an increase
of approximately HK$6.4 million (or approximately 6.4%) and the
building was 98% let as at 31 December 2014.

CHONG HING BANK CENTRE

Located at 24 Des Voeux Road Central, Chong Hing Bank Centre is
a 26-storey grade A office building. Having retained several floors for
the Company’s use, the office building was leased to CHB for 5 years
with a monthly rental of approximately HK$5.66 million starting
from 19 February 2014. For the year ended 31 December 2014, a
total of approximately HK$58.6 million rental revenue was derived

from this building.

SEM*E

Bl H E iR

% JUFERE £ 0 ik b 25 2 8 B JE 35 e
“E RREXTERERE > R4E
182,000V 17 IR FE J R 46 i Hh - #k 2 —F
—P4E+ A=+ —HIFE > AIELES
AEFH 4 i 25 A0 5 5 106,500,000 G » B F4E
4 %) 9 % 6,400,000 TG (2K 476.4%) > #%
KRER -Z—NE+—H=+—H2ZH#
RI5%198% °

BIEERITPIM

A BLERAT O A R BR R R E h 24 58 > 5
e TARBZHRETE  BRAREEE
AN H RS s HeR IR #E G T Al
FLERITA R HE > FHEIS4E > fE ZF—U4E
ZH T IJUH M, & A MHEE A
5,660,000 » # F — % — W 4 + = A
=+ —HIEFRE K E S a3k
#) Y% 58,600,000 TC ©

X
C
%
z
m
(V4]
(Va]
o)
m
=
m
=
>
Z
S
0
O
~
e
O
S
_‘
m
0
@
<
m
o)
Z
>
z
0
m
e
o
=]
=
X
>
al
I3
]

w
0

EVHBXITERE

IEE L



n
o

7102 140d3d TYNANNY | GILINIT LNIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 [z 51 m & 7 i

CHONG YIP CENTRE

Chong Yip Centre is located at 402-404 Des Voeux Road West, it
provides over 54,000 square feet of retail and commercial space. For
the year ended 31 December 2014, this retail and commercial
shopping centre generated rental revenue of approximately HK$20.4
million (an increase of approximately 2.2%) with approximately 80%

occupancy.

FAIRVIEW COURT

Fairview Court is located at 94 Repulse Bay Road. It provides 5 units,
each of areas over 4,100 square feet, luxury apartment on a low-rise
building. For the year ended 31 December 2014, Fairview Court
recorded rental revenue of approximately HK$4.6 million (16.5%

down) with approximately 40% occupancy.
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Chong Hing Finance Center
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PRC PROPERTIES

CHONG HING FINANCE CENTER, SHANGHAI

This flagship property located at 288 Nanjing Road West in Huang
Pu District of Shanghai, is a 36-storey Grade A commercial building
which commands a strategic location and enviable view over The
People’s Square just across the street. With a total floor area of over
516,000 square feet of office and commercial space and 198 carparks,
this property was approximately 92% let in terms of office space and
100% let in terms of retail space as at 31 December 2014. The Group
intends to hold this property as a long term investment. Total rental
revenue generated from this property in 2014 was approximately
HK$154.6 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 11.8%. We have undertaken improvements to service
standards and building facilities in 2014 and these will be closely
monitored in the Group’s continued strive to improve the quality and

revenue income of this material asset.
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

HONG KONG

WESTERN HARBOUR CENTRE

Western Harbour Centre, a 28-storey grade A office building, located
at 181-183 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong, close proximity to
the Western Harbour Tunnel, provides over 140,000 square feet
office space for lease. In order to enhance the value of the property,
the Board of Directors has resolved to convert this office building
into a serviced apartment and business hotel. The application to the
Town Planning Board for changing into hotel usage had been
approved and the revised drawings to Buildings Department had also
been submitted. The proposed hotel will provide 186 guest rooms
with other facilities including café area, gym room, multi-function
room and sky lounge etc. Various consultants and professionals have
been already engaged for the project and the management plans to

open and operate this new hotel in 2017.
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TAI PO, NEW TERRITORIES

The Group had acquired a 262,000 square feet plots of land in Tai
Po district, New Territories. The management has initiated the
studies for rezoning and intends to seek eventual conversion of this

land for future development.

PRC

RESIDENTIAL PROJECT, FOSHAN

In 2007, the Group acquired a plot of land with site area of over
260,000 square metres in Luocun, Foshan through government land
auction. This is a comprehensive development and will be developed
by phases. Situated at 1 Guilong Road, Luocun in the Nanhai District
of Foshan, it is conveniently located within half an hour’s drive from
the Foshan financial district and within 5 minutes’ drive from the

new Foshan West Station (under construction).
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The Grand Riviera, Foshan

Phase 1 of the development consists of 12 blocks of 6-14 storey
residential apartments with unit sizes ranging from 55 square metres
to 380 square metres. The retail and commercial portion occupies
approximately 8,600 square metres and there is a standalone
clubhouse of approximately 6,800 square metres offering recreational
facilities such as an outdoor swimming pool, gym, snooker room,
table tennis room, karaoke rooms and card rooms. If including the
carparking spaces mainly built at the basement level, total
construction areas are over 181,000 square metres. Phase 1 provides
847 residential units and 1,246 carparking spaces. As at 4 March
2015, a total of 461 apartments (representing 54.4% of available
units) and 181 carparking spaces (representing 14.5% of available
spaces) have been sold generating cash proceeds of approximately
RMB361 million.

Grand Jardin, Foshan

Phase 2 of the development consists of 12 blocks of 14 storey
residential apartments of 3 unit types, being 60, 90 and 120 square
metres in size. If including the retail and commercial areas of
approximately 2,100 square metres, other amenities areas of
approximately 3,500 square metres and carparking spaces mainly
built at the basement levels, the total developable area of phase 2 is
over 191,000 square metres. Construction of Phase 2 of the
development began in June 2013 and pre-sales was launched in the
first quarter of 2014. As at 4 March 2015, the Group has successfully
sold 776 units (representing approximately 70.8% of the 1,096
launched units or approximately 50.3% of total 1,542 available units)
returning sales proceeds of approximately RMB446 million. The
Group will continue to launch the remaining unsold units as well as
the approximately 1,196 carparking spaces in 2015. An unique
feature of Phase 2 is the efficient utilization of landscape areas to
provide 5 different themed gardens, an outdoor grass tennis court, an

outdoor basketball court and ample lawn space for residents’ use.

Construction of a kindergarten within the site is well underway and

Phase 3 of this project is also expected to begin in 2015.
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BUDGET HOTEL PROJECT

Since 2008, the Group had started to operate a budget hotel business.
In 2014, the Group continued to operate four budget hotels, two in
Shanghai, one in Beijing and one in Guangzhou. All of these budget
hotels are managed by and under the brand name of Hanting. For the
year ended 31 December 2014, total hotel revenue decreased by
approximately 3.9% from approximately HK$51.2 million in 2013 to
approximately HK$49.2 million in 2014. Occupancies and average

room rates maintained at a steady level.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s shareholders’ funds increased from HK$9,118.3 million
as at 31 December 2013 to HK$11,009.2 million as at 31 December
2014, representing a net increase of HK$1,890.9 million. The
increase in shareholders’ funds was attributed to (a) profit attributable
to the owners of the Group of HK$2,356.9 million; (b) net increase
of investment revaluation reserve, property revaluation reserve and
exchange reserve totalling HK$1,423.1 million; and (c) dividend paid
of HK$1,889.1 million.

FINANCE AND TREASURY OPERATIONS

BANK BORROWINGS MOVEMENT

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash position was changed
from consolidated net debt (being cash and deposits less borrowings)
of approximately HK$2,961.7 million to net cash balance of
approximately HK$485.4 million.

The management is well aware that a high gearing level will not only
undermine the company’s long-term stability but also restrict its
flexibility for any new business venture. The management will

continue to maintain a healthy and positive bank and cash balance.

The bank balance will be increased further by receiving sale proceeds
from The Grand Riviera (Phase I & II) Foshan, and the increase of

rental revenue from our property investment.
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BANKING FACILITIES

The total outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December 2014 was
56% unsecured with almost 100% being on committed basis. In
managing the debt portfolio, the Group has endeavoured to maintain
diversified sources of funding. Currently, the major source of
financing is still coming from the banking sector, in which the Group
has bilateral banking facilities with over 13 banks, most of which
have established long relationship with the Group. The management
will consider to widen the funding source from capital market if both

of the market conditions and terms are favourable to the Company.

The management will closely monitor the Company’s funding
position, internal funding and lower cost external funding will be

used for coming development project.

LIQUIDITY RISIK AND CASH BALANCES

It is the Group’s financial policy to maintain low leverage and high
liquidity. To maintain sufficient liquidity will not only help the
Group to fulfill all short term payment obligations but also to
improve the Group’s working capital. Liquidity mainly comes from
recurring rental income of various investment properties, cash sale
proceeds from various completed and uncompleted development

projects and committed banking facilities.

LOAN MATURITY ANALYSIS

Liquidity risk could also be reduced by extending the loan tenors.
The Group’s debt maturity portfolio is spread out over a medium
term, with 56% of debts becoming due over 1 but within 2 years, and
19% of debts becoming due over 2 but within 5 years respectively.
Such a maturity structure allows the Group taking more flexibility on

refinancing measures.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In managing interest rate and foreign exchange exposures, the Group
may use certain derivative instruments such as interest rate swaps,
cross currency swaps, forward rate agreements and foreign exchange
contracts. It is the Group’s policy to allow using derivatives as
hedging purposes only. With respect to the counterparty risk of the
derivatives, the Group transacts only with financial institutions with

strong investment-grade ratings.
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INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

The volatility and uncertainty of the movement of interest rate may
result in a potential negative impact to the Group’s financial position.
Given that, the management will actively involve and review the

movement of interest rate so as to minimize the financial impact.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

It is the Group’s policy to minimize mismatch in currency and not to
speculate in currency movement. As at year ended 31 December
2014, other foreign exchange exposure related to some major
investments in Guangzhou, Shanghai and Foshan projects which
altogether amounted to the equivalent of about HK$5,668.4 million
or 38.7% of the Group'’s assets.

EMPLOYEE AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s remuneration policy, having been advised and
determined by the Remuneration Committee, will ensure that the
pay levels of its employees are reasonable and competitive in the
market and their total rewards including basic salary and bonus
system are linked with their performance. The members and the

work done of Remuneration Committee are shown on page 77.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group continues to participate and sponsor various activities
organised by various charitable activities. The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service conferred the Caring Company to the Group for the

seventh consecutive years.

ANNUAL REPORT AWARDS

The Group’s 2013 annual report won the Silver Winner in 2014
International ARC Awards. This award demonstrated the high
quality of contents and production of the annual reports has been

accredited and appreciated.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
has substantially complied with the Provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code” or the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on Stock Exchange with the exception

of part of deviation as set out under the paragraphs below.

GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CHART

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for the purpose of enhancing long term shareholders
value. The corporate governance chart adopted by the Company
could refer to Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited Simplified
Organization Chart on page 30.

(B) DIRECTORS

() THE BOARD: RESPONSIBILITY FOR LEADERSHIP AND
CONTROL OF THE COMPANY

e The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leadership and
supervision of the senior management for the purpose of
creating long term shareholders value by sustaining a growing

and successful business.

e The principal task of the Board is to set objective, formulate
strategy and to monitor the operating and financial

performance.

e Duties of the Board include approving interim reports and
annual reports, announcements and press release of interim and
final results, considering the dividend policy, and approving the
issue, allotment or disposal or grant of options in respect of

unissued new shares of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR: CLEAR
DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

On 26 February 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company
announced that Dr. Liu Lit Mo, ceased to be the Managing
Director of the Company with immediate effect. Dr. Liu
continued to be the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Liu Lit Chi
was appointed as Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. The clear division of responsibilities

under the code provision was then complied.

Managing Director assumes overall responsibility for Group’s
operation and performance by delegating duties to different
executive directors and senior management to achieve targeted
objectives. The Board gives clear directions to management as
to their powers of management, circumstance in which the

management should make report.

Aerial photography to show The Grand Riviera, Foshan 1 111 22 38 42 ) ¢ B 1 48 % &

(i)

FTRREBMEIP : BB TRAE

R F—HAEZH ZFNH  AAF
4 i B L B H R
AT AR A R E F AR - B 41 4
METERG IR > MBS EE
AT By A N W) HE A AR T R AT AR
o B B AT & 57 AR SCIHE T I 3 20
THAERBLE -

EEACHEARER BREELX
B O BEREE T AR EER
FRERARZEBIEAR c EEY
AU B 2 B L L JER S
Z W& TE G EWIET] -

-

LA
n

g
g
g
BT
-y
"y
LA
p

PEEEEsaEaaa




(1) BOARD COMPOSITION: BALANCE AND

INDEPENDENCE

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors, four
Non-executive Directors and five Independent Non-executive
Directors of the full Board. During the year ended 31
December 2014, the Board met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least one-third of the

Board should be Independent Non-executive Directors.

The appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors
strictly adheres to the guidelines for assessing independence set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
received written confirmation of their independence from each

of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board considers that the five Independent Non-executive
Directors are free from any business or other relationship which
might interfere with the exercise of their independent judgment
and each of Independent Non-executive Directors brings their

own relevant expertise to the Board.

The presence of all Independent Non-executive Directors could

ensure that the Board functions effectively and independently.
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(V)

All of the Independent Non-executive Directors are also the
Committee Members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. In short, the three
committees have a majority of Independent Non-executive

Directors.

In addition, the Company has set up the Corporate Governance
Committee on 7 March 2012 comprising four Executive
Directors and two Independent Non-executive Directors to

perform the corporate governance duties.

The biographies of the Directors appear on pages 81 to 89.
These demonstrate diversity of experience and calibre of the

Board in making management decisions.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-

appointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

Those Directors who have been longest in office as at each
annual general meeting will retire from office and be subjected

to re-election.
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For newly appointed directors, they are required to submit
themselves to shareholders for re-election to the Board at the

first annual general meeting following their appointment.

The Directors have entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company and were appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election and retirement by rotation at least once every three

years in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Under the Article 99 of the Company’s articles of association,
all directors are subject to retirement by rotation except the
Managing Director who shall not be subject to retirement by

rotation under Articles 107 of the Company’s articles of

association.
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V)

Details of the term of appointment of all the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are as

follows:

(i)  to perform such functions and exercise such powers as are
appropriate to your position as an Independent Non-
executive Directors or Non-executive Directors of the

Company;,

(ii) to comply with all laws, rules and regulations applicable
to you as a director of the Company, including but not
limit to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
Stock Exchange; and

(iii) to notify the Board of Directors of the Company

immediately upon the occurrence of, or the directors

becoming aware of, any matter which may affect their

independence.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS: GENERAL DUTIES,
SHARE DEALINGS

The Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as directors
with supportive commitment of creating a healthy corporate

governance culture.

On appointment, new Directors will be given an introduction
to the Group’s major business activities, induction into their

responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory

requirements.

Throughout the year, Directors complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules regarding Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Issuers.
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(V1) CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

(€)
U

Code Provision A.6.5 proposes that all directors should

participate in continuous professional development to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

All directors are well aware of the requirement of attending
continuous professional training for the year ending 31
December 2015.

BOARD PROCESS

MEETINGS: MATTERS RESERVED FOR FULL BOARD
DECISION AND GENERAL PROCEEDINGS

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance and
in compliance with the requirement as mentioned under
Appendix 14 — Corporate Governance Code, the Board has
performed to hold full Board meeting at least quarterly during
the year 2014.

Matters reserved for full Board decision include material bank
facilities arrangement, material acquisitions and disposals of
assets, material transactions with connected parties, significant
investments including large capital projects, delegation of
authority, treasury and risk management policy, any matters
involving a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or

director.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
with and advises the Board on corporate governance and

compliance matters.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of
Board and Board Committee meetings, which are normally
circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final signed version is sent to all

Directors for their records and open for Directors’ inspection.
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e All Directors are allowed to take independent professional

JIv A 5 M M

advice at Company’s expense. EE
° There is in place a directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance o NAFRICAESNEH AN BEE 5%
cover. FEAE °
e Details of Directors’ 2014 meetings attendance are set out o . Z— U4 F# F & &k 2 R
below: BT
Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
HESENE HE=E
Executive Directors HITES
Liu Lit Mo, BZR
Chairman () 4/4 100%
Liu Lit Chi, BRE
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer — (EEfB4IE#/THE%) 4/4 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston, B&E
Deputy Managing Director (BlZF1E45H) 4/4 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher 23201
(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) (TRERRELZERER) 4/4 100%
Lee Wai Hung ek 4/4 100%
Non-executive Directors FHiTES
Liu Lit Chung BRUA 4/4 100%
Andrew Liu B 3/4 75%
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BEE 2/4 50%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher TR 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses [f 2 3/4 75%
Tong Tsin Ka ERR 4/4 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur B8R 3/4 75%
Ma Hung Ming, John Bk 2/4 50%
Cheng Yuk Wo il 3/3 100%




(m

(D)

SUPPLY OF INFORMATION: QUALITY AND TIMELINESS
The Company attaches great importance to continually improve
on the quality and timeliness of the dissemination of

information to the Directors.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring adequate supply of

information to the Directors.

The agenda and accompanying board papers will be sent in full
to all Directors in a timely manner (we aim to give relevant
documents at least five clear days replacing current practice of
at least three clear days in advance of meeting). Where

appropriate, communications are sent electronically.

All Directors are currently provided with quarterly management
reports which shows the Group’s financial and operating results
with detailed analysis of those major rental properties, property

under development and other investments.

A full Board meeting, held by each quarter, were regularly
taken for the purpose of reviewing and updating the Company’s
business and operating results with reference to the quarterly

management report.

Managing Director is currently holding monthly internal
management meeting with various department heads to update
Directors on their lines of business and to review performance

for delegated assignment.

All Executive Directors are currently provided with monthly
management accounts of the Company which give an updated

position/performance of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Procedures for Remuneration Committee to set Directors and

Senior Management’s remuneration policy:

The Company has set up Remuneration Committee on 3
March 2005. Its terms of reference are to review and determine
the remuneration packages for all Directors and Senior

Management.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by the Independent
Non-executive Director, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses and has a

majority of Independent Non-executive Directors.
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o Its other current members are Mr. Tong Tsin Ka, Mr. Au Kam
Yuen, Arthur and Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John (those are
Independent Non-executive Directors) and Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan,

Christopher (a Non-executive Director).

L The Committee meets at least once per annum.

e The main duties of the Committee include the followings:

@)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

to make recommendations to the Board on or determine
the Company’s policy and structure for all directors and
senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for

developing remuneration policy;

to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payment, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their

office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on or determine

the remuneration of Non-executive Directors;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals

and objectives.

PRERBHKRSE

HoABRAT B 2 8 57 JF 4T 36 5
FAed ~ IR A L RS 6 8R 1 1 U
KIFRATERAHGR S

ZEGEHFRTED WREE -

ZE®Z ERMAE THIKIA

() MARFE A ER AR EA
B2 B8R e 2R A B il % S
AE T EL 92 B BE 22 7 e o AT I 5%
FrBHECR o 13 R R

/

(i) SR AT 5 AT 2 2 AR
BB Z M8 - s B A

it BIREHER R EE N > |
FEAEAT S 25 A L S AT 2
M fE

(idd) A9 7B A FE LA T o S 2 I ) =R
e

(v) HIEESE2 A HERENE
B e At v A B o s P e e o

o Details of 2014 Remuneration Committee meeting attendance TE-JIEFHME S e e Rz BER
are set out below: B

Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
= HEE

Members of Remuneration Committee HMZEEESHE
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Chairman BER(TE) 1/1 100%
Tong Tsin Ka ERR 1/1 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher R 1/1 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur EHR 1/1 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John B8R 1/1 100%
Cavior Liu, Secretary BHE(HE) 1/1 100%




(E)
U

The Committee is authorized by the Board to oversee and
determine the remuneration of Executive Directors and Senior

Management.

No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration. On
matters other than those concerning him, the Chairman or
Managing Director may be invited to Committee meetings to

give advices.

Committee members are allowed under certain procedures to
take independent professional advice at Company’s expense for

making and determining the remuneration package proposal.

The Committee will present a report to the Board after each

meeting, which addresses its work and findings.

The Committee will make recommendation to the Board
regarding the remuneration, comprising directors’ fees for all
Non-executive Directors, for shareholders approval at the

Annual General Meeting.

Details on the mandate and summary of the work by the
Remuneration Committee during the year are set out in the

Remuneration Committee Report on page 34.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s

website.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING: BALANCED, CLEAR AND
COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT OF COMPANY’S
PERFORMANCE, POSITION OF PROSPECTS

The Board believes that it presents a comprehensive, balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s position and

prospects in all shareholder communications.

The Board fully appreciates its responsibilities regarding the

preparation of financial statements.
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(1) AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS: TERMS OF

REFERENCE AND RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT
AND EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee is chaired by the Independent Non-
executive Director, Mr. Tong Tsin Ka and has a majority of

Independent Non-executive Directors.

Its other current members are Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr.
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John and Mr.
Cheng Yuk Wo (those are Independent Non-executive
Directors) and Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher (a Non-
executive Director). All members have experience in reviewing
and analyzing audited financial statements of public companies

or major organization.

The Committee meets not less than twice per annum. Meetings
are also attended by invitation by the Chairman, the Managing
Director and Executive Director who is in charge of finance
matters. The Committee also meets not less than twice per

annum with the Company’s auditors.
The main duties of the Committee include the followings:

(i) to be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external

auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(ii) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process

in accordance with applicable standards;

(iii) to develop and implement policy on engaging an external

auditor to supply non-audit services;

(iv) to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in

them;

(i)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT [t X EBIRESE
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(v) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal

control and risk management systems;

(vi) to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have

an effective internal control system;

(vii) to consider major investigation finding on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative

and management’s response to these findings;

(viii) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies

and practices;

(ix) to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management
about the accounting records, financial accounts or

systems of control and management’s response; and

(x) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised in the external auditor’s management

letter.

Details of 2014 Audit Committee meetings attendance are set
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out below: R

Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
HESERE HE=E

Members of Audit Committee ERZEBRE
Tong Tsin Ka, Chairman BER(FE) 2/2 100%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses BRE 2/2 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher R 2/2 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BRR 2/2 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John EEY 1/2 50%
Cheng Yuk Wo i sopl| 1/1 100%
Lee Wai Hung, Secretary FEWE(HZE) 2/2 100%
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e  Under its terms of reference, the Committee is required,
amongst other things, to oversee the relationship with external
auditors, to review the Company’s interim and annual financial

statements, and to evaluate Group system of internal controls.

e There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to

take independent professional advice at Company’s expense.

¢ The Committee presents a report or makes advice to the Board

after each meeting, which addresses its work and findings.

¢  Details on the mandate and work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year are set out in the Audit Committee

Report on pages 31 and 32.

o The terms of reference of Audit Committee are available on the

Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

() AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Auditors had received
from the Company and its subsidiaries approximately HK$3.46
million for audit and audit related services (2013: HK$3.78 million)
as well as HK$1.35 million for non-audit services (2013: HK$0.88

million).

(IV) INTERNAL CONTROL: SOUND AND EFFECTIVE SYSTEM
TO SAFEGUARD SHAREHOLDER INTERESTS AND
COMPANY ASSETS

e  Risk management is a crucial part of the Group’s strategic
management to monitor the Company’s overall financial

position and to protect its assets.

e  The Group is committed to implementing effective risk
management policies and internal control procedures to identify

and manage the risks that the Group may be exposed to.

e These policies and procedures are reviewed regularly by
management together with the assistant by external auditors
during the course of audit to ensure their effectiveness and

compliance with Code on Corporate Governance Practices.
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(F)

The Managing Director and Executive Director will discuss
with external Auditors in the Audit Committee meeting at least
twice a year on key issues in relation to internal controls, audit

finding and risk management.

As concluded in 2014 Audit Committee meeting, no
irregularities and major weakness in control were found by the

Auditors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on 7
March 2012, which is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-

appointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the
Board. The Committee shall comprise members not less than
three and a majority of the Committee was Independent Non-

executive Directors.

On the date of establishment, the Nomination Committee is
chaired by the Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Chairman of the Board and has

a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors.

Its other current members are Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr.
Tong Tsin Ka, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Dr. Ma Hung
Ming, John (those are Independent Non-executive Directors)
and Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher (a Non-executive

Director).
The Committee will meet at least once per annum.
The main duties of the Committee include the followings:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience required) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the

Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
directors of the Company and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of

individuals nominated for directorships;
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(iii) to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive (i) "FREALN B FAITERE R
Directors of the Company; and S &

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the (iv) SEREAEHEHRLLESF
appointment or re-appointment of the directors and (FERI R A2 B £ B ATBUAEER)
succession plan for directors, in particular the Chairman AT R A

and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

° Details of 2014 Nomination Committee meeting attendance e TR ERL T E GRS DER
are set out below: FEEWR

Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
EEEEAH =

Members of Nomination Committee  2ZZE€HE
Liu Lit Mo, Chairman BRIR (L) 1/1 100%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses o X 1/1 100%
Tong Tsin Ka EEX 1/1 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher R 1/1 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur B5R 1/1 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John Biesh 1/1 100%
Lee Wai Hung, Secretary TR (BE) 1/1 100%

e According to the Rule 3.10A, the appointment of additional —®  MR#% LTI 3.10A%k - A4 R E
Independent Non-executive Director to fulfill the requirements i — DY 4R 5E I Z AT R M AL JE L
had completed in year 2014. TEREFEARBE -

e Committee members are allowed to take independent * EEGWAWFRKBEILHEEZTR &
professional advice at Company’s expense. AL R SAT

e Details of the mandate and summary of the work by the ®  fFRIEHZE B & 2 HE L TR
Nomination Committee during the year are set out in the REIBEZRAE B FERETN -

Nomination Committee Report on page 33.

e  The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are  ® FRRAZE G RERE > w3
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s NIV i

website.



(G) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Corporate Governance
Committee on 7 March 2012, which is mainly responsible for

performing the corporate governance duties of the Board.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Dr. Liu
Lit Mo, Chairman of the Board.

Its other current members are Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Mr.
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher and Mr. Lee Wai Hung, all of
them are Executive Directors of the Company and Dr. Cheng
Mo Chi, Moses and Mr. Tong Tsin Ka (both are Independent

Non-executive Directors).
The Committee will meet at least once per annum.

The Corporate Governance Committee determines the policy
for the corporate governance of the Company. The duties
preformed by the Corporate Governance Committee include

the followings:

(i) todevelop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous
g
professional development of the directors of the Company

and the senior management;

iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
pany s p
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to the directors and the employees of the
Company;

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report as required under the Listing Rules;

and

(vi) to hold regular meetings with all department heads from
time to time requesting them to review their corporate
governance within the department and require them to

submit proposal or remedy action to redress the matters.

(G) EXREIBZES
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Details of 2014 Corporate Governance Committee meeting

attendance are set out below:

SE AR E AR AR
WA AT

Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
HREERNH HEE

Members of Corporate Governance Committee LEERZEERE
Liu Lit Mo, Chairman BRR () 1/1 100%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses ff g 1/1 100%
Tong Tsin Ka ERR 1/1 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BeE 1/1 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B 1/1 100%
Lee Wai Hung e 1/1 100%

(H)
U

Committee members are allowed to take independent

professional advice at Company’s expense.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance

Committee are available on the Company’s website.

DELEGATION BY BOARD

RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT

The Board and management (include different departmental
heads) fully appreciate their respective roles with supportive
commitments of creating a healthy corporate governance

culture.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the processes that
management (include different departmental heads) has in

place to identify business opportunities and risks.

The Board’s role is not to manage the business which
responsibility remains vested with management and different
departmental heads. The management is accountable to the

Board.

(H)
(1)

ZE G BRI L HEE R
2t A AR A o

AREEERZ B G 2GR > o
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EFSTRIE

BB RR

EEG LA HE (BEARMEE)
r W AP BAE SRR A — B i A2
IRt LEEZ A -

ERGRHEREHE (BTN
A ) e E T A R B < BLE AR o

HREGWMARTEHEY > AREAL
Ty B B RE MAER o EE
JEmEREAR -
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BOARD COMMITTEES: SPECIFIC TERMS OF REFERENCE
AND REPORT TO FULL BOARD

The Board currently has four Board Committees, namely the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee with

specific written terms of reference.

The Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, each has
a 100% non-executive membership with a majority of

Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the
Board and has a majority of Independent Non-executive

Directors.

The Corporate Governance Committee comprises four
Executive Directors and two Independent Non-executive

Directors of the Company.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board

after each meeting, which addresses their work and findings.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION POLICY
PREAMBLE

This policy sets out the Company’s standards and practice in relation

to communicating with its shareholders and prospective investors.

The Company is committed to maintaining a policy of open
and timely disclosure of relevant information on its activities to

shareholders, subject to applicable legal requirements.

The Company believes that providing regular communications
to its shareholders and the market is important to ensure they
have the available information reasonably required to make
informed assessments of the Company’s strategy, operations

and financial performance.

(i)
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° Communication channels

Communication is made through:

the Company’s annual and interim reports, which have
been enhanced to present a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group position and

prospects.

notices of and explanatory memoranda for annual and
other general meetings, which have been enhanced to
provide shareholders with additional information in an

understandable manner.

press releases on major developments of the Company

and its subsidiaries.

disclosures to the Stock Exchange and relevant regulatory

bodies.

Company’s website at http://www.lchi.com.hk from
which shareholders can access information on the Group.
The website provides, inter alia, corporate
announcements, business development and operations,
press releases, annual reports, and corporate information

of the Group.

R

Al Y AR T 5 A AT

A 4R E B R 2
4+ LA AR BN A
A T P B 5 R 2
fi -

i L4 B A SR 2 4 4
B 2 % - DA B
W 2 7 1 MR AR B — 4
Ao

A BRI A 2 ) B EL R R 2 ) K R
Ji& 2 5t s M

T 5 52 T 2 AT B B AR 2

i -

JBe o] B A N W) 2 A (4
3k % http: //www.Ichi.com.hk) LA
WERALEE 2GR o I H 2t
(s REEZAENE -
E R SOEE R - ARk
PEE S g



(I) SHAREHOLDERS® MEETINGS

The Board welcomes moves towards a more constructive use of
Annual General Meetings and regards the Annual General

Meetings as the principal opportunity to meet private

shareholders.

Details of Directors’ attendance of the general meeting of the

Company held for year ended 31 December 2014 are set out

below:

(i)

BRERAS

T BOW B BOR A 4R R B4R
AR 2 k> WA B A4 K
B 0 SR P R R 2 T -

BE-ZF-WFE+ HA=+—HI4F
BE 2 AR T EROK € 2 R R R
T

Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
EEEEAH =
Executive Directors HITES
Liu Lit Mo, Chairman BRR (£E) 1/1 100%
Liu Lit Chi, Managing Director and BAVE (EFHAEFTHAEH,)

Chief Executive Officer 1/1 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Deputy Managing Director BeiE(5EFa0E) 1/1 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B

(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) (TEPFIEBEZERER) 1/1 100%
Lee Wai Hung R 1/1 100%
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Liu Lit Chung BRUA 1/1 100%
Andrew Liu B 0/1 0%
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BitE 0/1 0%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher RS 1/1 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BUYFHTES
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses EiEE 1/1 100%
Tong Tsin Ka FER 1/1 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur B 1/1 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John 5ikth 1/1 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo BL&HA 1/1 100%

The Company arranges for the annual report and financial
statements and related papers to be posted for shareholders so
as to allow at least 20 clear business days (exclude Saturdays,
Sundays and public holidays in Hong Kong) for consideration
prior to the Annual General Meeting. And all other general
meetings to be sent at least 10 clear business days (exclude

Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays in Hong Kong).

oy o S SR TR AR R ) 25 > AR X R
Ve B R AR R g 2= 2 20828 5 H
(NEHEEBN - EHH RFEAR
B ) 1] B SR A B A~ BB R I
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(1)

(V)

The Board encourages and supports shareholder participation in
general meetings. Shareholders are encouraged to appoint
proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if

they are unable to attend such meetings.

Mechanisms for enabling shareholder participation will be
reviewed on a regular basis by the Board to encourage the

highest level of participation.

Chairman of the Board, appropriate members of the Board
committees and the external auditors of the Company will

attend the annual general meetings to answer questions from

the shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

Inquiries from shareholders, investors, media or the public are
responded by the Executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary or the appropriate members of senior

management.

The Company will respond in a timely manner to shareholder

queries and concerns.

THE ADMINISTRATION OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

All ordinary shares of the Company have equal voting rights.
Annual general meeting proceedings are continually reviewed in

the light of Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual

Directors.

Preparation of a comprehensive Annual General Meeting

circular containing:

° re-election of Directors;

e general Mandate to Buy-back Shares;

e  general Mandate to Issue Shares;

o amendments to the Articles of Association, if any;
®  voting at Annual General Meeting; and

e  comprehensive information on each resolution to be

proposed.

(1)

(Iv)

o S B SRR BOR 2 B RR
T HHEGHEBELNRARKGZ
JBOR 22 IR AR ACH R R i it & b
B -
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B o

EHGEIHR EHOZAEGZHEM
B A w) S0 AZ B 22 B SR
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B 2 R A BN LR S T

A7 i RV [ JRE R 2 A ) M A

RREFAE2ITHEE

A F B A A A (] S R
JBC SR 4R B 2 o R 1 A AR
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The Company’s Articles contain the rights of shareholders to demand
and the procedures for a poll voting on resolution at shareholders’
meetings. Details of such rights to demand a poll and the poll
procedures are included in all circulars in relation to shareholders’
meetings and will be explained during the proceedings of
shareholders’ meetings. In case poll voting is conducted, the poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company on the business day following the shareholders’ meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.lchi.com.hk where the Company’s
announcements, business development and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information

are posted.

Information on top 10 largest shareholders and location of
shareholders are set out in Directors’ Report on pages 26 and 27

respectively.

(V) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A
GENERAL MEETING (“GM")
e Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting rights

of all shareholders having a right to vote may request to call a
GM of the Company.

e  The written request: (a) must state the general nature of the
GM; (b) may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM; (c) must be
signed by the shareholders making such request, and (d) may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more of those shareholders. A request by joint holders of shares

must be signed by all such holders.

e The request should be deposited at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of the Company Secretary.

e The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the request is valid, the
Company Secretary will convene a GM on behalf of the Board
of Directors by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements or applicable rules or regulations to all

the registered shareholders.

7 7 2 400 0 AR 3T P R MK b
9 e 8 R DA R 4R B gy K e
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J5 T A - AR 2N B R SL A il (A
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VIR EE - MHER - REFRE
FE LA H A A

10 44 157 15 A 1R SR 22 B e B BEAR Af
TR 5 26 K 27 HZ EH G WA EH A -
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(Vi)

If the request is verified to be not in order, shareholders
concerned will be advised of the result and no GM will be

convened.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the request proceed to convene a GM, the
shareholders concerned or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may themselves
convene a GM, but any GM so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of the deposit of
the request.

In the case of a GM at which a resolution is to be proposed as a
special resolution, the Directors shall be deemed not to have
duly convened the GM if they do not give such notice as is
required by section 578 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS
Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622,
Laws of Hong Kong), the Company must give notice of a

resolution if it has received requests from the following number

of shareholders:

(i) Shareholders holding at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having the right to vote on the
resolution at the annual general meeting to which the

request relates; or

(ii) not less than 50 shareholders who have the right to vote

on the resolution at the annual general meeting to which

the request relates.

(V1)

fie % B SR W R o A R B ROH M
g MR E A EHH -

UnE SR R W B R HBEE R 21 H
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MRYE N ARG (B IE R 6225) 4
61545 » AN T I LT B H 2 ik
WER > W PR A @A

() 5 b 2.5% 2 B I ok 40 o o
e - 32 SR T 0 P o A4
IS AR A EE SIS
Y,

R i 50 4% 45 HE 15 3% 32 5K 7 B
B R R AR K B b R B R
RUHH

(i)



The written request: (a) must be signed by all the shareholders
concerned; (b) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form
at the registered office of the Company; (c) must identify the
resolution of which notice is to be given; (d) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (e) must
be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or if later,

the time at which notice is given of that meeting.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the request is valid, the
Company will give notice of the resolution or circulate the

statement provided that:

(a) if the request relates to an annual general meeting,

(i) the proposed statement is received in time to enable
the Company to send a copy of the statement when
the notice of annual general meeting is despatched;

or

(i) otherwise, the shareholders concerned have
deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in regard thereto not later than

7 days before the annual general meeting.

(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an annual
general meeting), the shareholders concerned have
deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the

Company’s expenses in regard thereto not later than 7

days before the GM.

K () ZH b BT A A B R
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e If the request is verified to be not in order or the shareholders
concerned have failed in the above manner to deposit sufficient
money to meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes,
the shareholders concerned will be advised of the result and no

action will be taken by the Company in that regard.

e  Pursuant to section 616 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under section 615 of the Companies
Ordinance to give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it
at the Company’s own expenses to each shareholder of the
Company entitled to receive notice of the annual general
meeting in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and
at the same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it

gives notice of the meeting.

The above procedures are subject to applicable legislation and
regulations, in particular, the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622, Laws
of Hong Kong). For further details on the shareholder qualifications,
and the procedures and timeline, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 566 to 567, 571, 578, 580 to 582, 610 and 615 of
the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

o MR EREGREMA B BB R
RE LA B 7 A A R RIS A A
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(VIl) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A

PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Subject to applicable laws, rules and regulations, including

Companies Ordinance (Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules and

the articles of association of the Company as amended from time to

time, if any Shareholder(s) of the Company intends to propose a

person other than a director of the Company for election as a director

of the Company at any general meeting, the following procedures

shall apply:

a notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given of his intention to propose such
person for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
with the Board of Directors of the Company at the registered
office of the Company;

the minimum length of the period during which such notice(s)
are given shall be at least seven days and that the period for
lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days

prior to the date of such general meeting; and

in order for the Company to inform shareholders of the
Company of that proposal, such notice(s) for the nomination of
a director must state the full name of the person nominated for
election as a director and include the person’s biographical

details as required by the Listing Rules.

(VI) RRIZEESIRIEAZIER
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CORPORATE INFORMATION @& il

As at 4 March 2015 A=Z—RF= /A

HONORARY CHAIRMAN

Mr. Liu Lit Man, GBS, J.P., F1B.A.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Liu Lit Mo, LLD, MBE, J.P.

(Chairman)
Mr. Liu Lit Chi

(Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston

(Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher

(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung)
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Liu Lit Chung, MBBS (Lon), MRCP(UK), F.R.C.P. (Lon)
Mr. Andrew Liu
Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred
Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,

Assoc, AIA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.
Mr. Tong Tsin Ka, FCA (AUST.), FCPA, FCIS
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, PiD, BBS

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, Msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)

(appointed on 7 March 2014)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

RETE
BEZU 4B GBS, )P, FLB.A.
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Assoc, AIA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Tong Tsin Ka (Chairman)

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Liu Lit Mo (Chairman)

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Tong Tsin Ka

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)

Mr. Tong Tsin Ka

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Ms. Cavior Liu (Secretary)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Dr. Liu Lit Mo (Chairman)

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Tong Tsin Ka

Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston

Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher

Mr. Lee Wai Hung
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CORPORATE INFORMATION @& il

As at 4 March 2015 A=Z—RF= /A

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT HEADS

Ms. Eva Liu
Mr. Luk Chi Chung

Ms. Cavior Liu

Ms. Yan Yuet Lam, Charmaine
Mr. Lam Shiu Cheung

Mr. Wong Yuk Chi, Allen

Mr. Pan Sze Yuen, Cecil
Mr. Lau Ping Leung, Stephen
Mr. Jan Kwok Wai, Kim

MANAGERS

Mr. Tong Tse Hon
Mr. Tam King Hung

Ms. Tsia Fung Yee, Tina

Director of projects and maintenance

Director of finance

Director of human resources

and administration
Director of business development
Director of China property

Director of property management

department
Assistant Director of projects
Assistant Director of maintenance

Assistant Director of projects

Property manager (leasing)
Project manager

Accounting manager
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SOLICITORS

Deacons

Gallant Y.T. Ho & Co.
P.C. Woo & Co.
Slaughter & May

AUDITORS
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

BANKERS
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited

Credit Suisse AG Hong Kong Branch

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
United Overseas Bank Limited

Wing Lung Bank Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION @& il

As at 4 March 2015 A=Z—RF= /A

REGISTERED OFFICE
25th Floor Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2983 7777 Fax: (852) 2983 7725

GUANGZHOU OFFICE
18A Office Tower A

339 Huan Shi Dong Road
Yue Xiu District
Guangzhou, PRC

Tel: (8620) 8375 8993 Fax: (8620) 8375 8071

SHANGHAI OFFICE
Room 3105, Chong Hing Finance Center

288 Nanjing Road West
Shanghai, PRC

Tel: (8621) 6359 1000 Fax: (8621) 6327 6299

FOSHAN OFFICE
First Phase, The Grand Riviera

1 Guilong Road
Luocun Social Management Office, Shishan Town
Nanhai District, Foshan

Guangdong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 6386 0888 Fax: (86757) 6386 2218
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESELKSREBAEB/N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
DR. LIU LIT MO
LLD, MBE, J.P.

aged 77, is the Chairman of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited.
Dr. Liu resigned as the Managing Director of the Company on 26
February 2014 after serving the Managing Director since 1972. He
has also served the Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee, and as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Liu is an Independent Non-
executive Director of China Motor Bus Company Limited, which is a
public company listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. His
other directorships in public listed companies in the last three years
include Chong Hing Bank Limited, which is also a public listed
company in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Liu did not
hold any directorship in any other listed public company in the
previous three years. As for community service, Dr. Liu was the
Chairman of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals in 1967 and is now
serving as an Adviser of the Group. He had also been President of the
Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce, Chairman of Hong
Kong Football Association and District Governor of District 3450,
Rotary International. Presently, he is a member of the Board of
Trustees of United College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a Manager of Liu Po Shan Memorial College. He was awarded
Silver Jubilee Medal by Her Majesty the Queen in 1977. Dr. Liu was
conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws by Lingnan
University in 2005. Dr. Liu is the brother of Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr.
Liu Lit Chung, the father of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and an uncle
of Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Liu Kwun
Shing, Christopher.

MR. LIU LIT CHI

aged 75, is Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since 26 February 2014. Mr. Liu has been an Executive
Director of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited since 1972 and he
also served as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Liu, who was educated in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom,
is also a director of a number of other companies in Hong Kong and
elsewhere. His other directorships in public listed companies in the
last three years include Chong Hing Bank Limited, which is a public
listed company in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did
not hold any directorship in any other listed public company in the
previous three years. Mr. Liu is the brother of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and Dr.
Liu Lit Chung, an uncle of Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning,
Wilfred, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing,
Christopher.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESKSREBAEBN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. LIU KAM FAI, WINSTON

BA., MSc.

aged 48, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company since
1997. He was re-designated as the Deputy Managing Director of the
Company in August 2008 and is also serving as a member of
Corporate Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Liu holds a
Master degree in Economics from the University of London,
specializing in Finance and Macro Economic Policy. Mr. Liu oversees
the Company’s strategic development, project implementation, as
well as all aspects of business operations. Mr. Liu also served as a
Director of number of subsidiaries of the Company. His other
directorships in public listed companies in the last three years include
Freeman Financial Corporation Limited, which is a public company
listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed above,
Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any other listed public
company in the last three years. Mr. Liu is the son of Dr. Liu Lit Mo,
a nephew of Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a cousin of Mr.
Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing,
Christopher.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MR. LIU KWUN SHING, CHRISTOPHER

aged 39, is an Executive Director of the Company, a position which
he has held since August 2008 following a re-designation from his
previous role since 2000 as Non-executive Director of the Company
and Alternate Director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung (who is a Non-executive
Director of the Company). Mr. Liu also serves as a member of the
Corporate Governance Committee, and as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu is a holder of a Master of Arts
degree in Jurisprudence from the University of Oxford. He is also a
qualified solicitor in both Hong Kong and England & Wales. Prior to
joining the Company on a full-time basis, he was a partner of
Deacons in Hong Kong, with a primary focus in corporate finance,
mergers and acquisitions and private equity matters, and currently
remains an advisory legal counsel of the international law firm. Mr.
Liu is a member of the Foshan Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC) as well as a
director of both Beijing Chinese Overseas Friendship Association and
Shanghai Chinese Overseas Friendship Association (COFA). Mr. Liu
is also a director of the Federation of Hong Kong Foshan Association
Limited, Hong Kong GuangFoZhao Fraternity Association Limited,
the Federation of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Community Organization,
Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce, an executive
director of Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors, a Vice-
chairman of Foshan Investment Chamber of Private Enterprises, a
board member of Entrepreneurs’ Organisation (Hong Kong), a
member of Hong Kong-Shanghai Economic Development
Association Limited and a director of Shanghai Huang Pu District
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment. With a passion
for the betterment of society and education, he is also a member of
the Institutional Review Board of Hong Kong University/Hospital
Authority Hong Kong West Cluster and a school manager of Liu Po
Shan Memorial College. His other directorships in public listed
companies in the last three years include Chong Hing Bank Limited,
which is a public listed company in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any other listed
public company in the previous three years. He is the son of Dr. Liu
Lit Chung, a nephew of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and Mr. Liu Lit Chi, a cousin
of Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Liu Kam
Fai, Winston.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESKSREBAEBN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. LEE WAI HUNG

LLB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA, PgD in CRE

aged 52, is an Executive Director and Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Lee is also serving as a member of Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company and as a director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor of
Law degree, a Master of Business Administration degree and
Postgraduate Diploma in Construction and Real Estate. He is also a
fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(Practising) and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Before joining the Company, Mr. Lee had
worked in an international accounting firm for over six years. Mr. Lee
has over twenty five years of experience in corporate finance and
accounting. Mr. Lee joined the Company in 1992 and was appointed
as Director in 1994. Mr. Lee is primarily responsible for the

Company’s finance and secretarial matters.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
DR. LIU LIT CHUNG

MBBS (Lon), MRCP (UK), F.R.C.P. (Lon)

aged 65, became a Director in 1979 and also the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company for over ten years. He holds a Medical
degree from King's College Hospital, London University and is a
Member of the Royal College of Physicians of the United Kingdom.
He was awarded the Fellowship of Royal College of Physician of
London for his work in Motor Neuron Disease. In 2005, he was
further awarded the Honorary Fellowship by the Hong Kong College
of Physicians. Dr. Liu is the brother of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and Mr. Liu
Lit Chi, an uncle of Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred
and Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and the father of Liu Kwun Shing,
Christopher.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MR. ANDREW LIU

aged 59, has been a Director since 1979. Mr. Liu is the Chairman of
Unitas Capital Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as CCMP Capital Asia Pte.
Ltd.). Mr. Liu, holder of a Master of Arts degree from the Oxford
University in England, was a solicitor with Slaughter and May in
London before joining Morgan Stanley & Co Inc in New York in
1981. Mr. Liu was promoted to Managing Director in 1990 before
relocating to Morgan Stanley Asia Limited in Hong Kong, where he
assumed the position of President and Managing Director until his
resignation in September 1997. Mr. Liu remains associated with
Morgan Stanley as an Advisory Director. His other directorships in
public listed companies in the last three years include Chong Hing
Bank Limited and Freeman Financial Corporation Limited, both are
public listed companies in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Liu did not hold any directorship in any other listed public company
in the last three years. Mr. Liu is a nephew of Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr.
Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a cousin of Mr. Liu Chun Ning,
Wilfred, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing,
Christopher.

MR. LIU CHUN NING, WILFRED

BSc.

aged 53, has been appointed as Director of the Company since 1997.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in economics from University of
Newcastleupon-Tyne (UK). Mr. Liu is also an independent non-
executive director of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited, which is a
public company listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. His
other directorships in public listed companies in the last three years
include Chong Hing Bank Limited and Get Nice Holdings Limited,
both are public listed companies in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any other listed
public company in the previous three years. Mr. Liu is a nephew of
Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a cousin of
Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and Mr. Liu Kwun
Shing, Christopher.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESKSREBAEBN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. KHO ENG TJOAN, CHRISTOPHER

BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC, Assoc. AlA,
Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD

aged 52, served as Non-executive Director of the Company since
May 2011 and he is now serving as a member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Kho holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies
degree on Urban and Regional Planning and a Master of Architecture
degree. He is an Authorized Person under the Buildings Ordinance, a
Registered Architect under the Architects Registration Ordinance, a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects, a corporate
member of Royal Institute of British Architects, an associate member
of Royal Australian Institute of Architects, a member of Royal
Architectural Institute of Canada and an associate member of
American Institute of Architects. Mr. Kho was an Executive
Committee of the University of Waterloo Alumni Association and a
Committee Member of the University of Manitoba Alumni
Association from 1989 to 1990. During the year from 1997 to 2003,
he was a Director and Council Member of the Wah Yan (Hong
Kong) Past Students Association Limited. Mr. Kho is also a
Committee Member of the Professional Committee of the Hong

Kong Federation of Fujian Associations since 20009.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
DR. CHENG MO CHI, MOSES
GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.

aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company in August 1999 and he has served as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committee of
the Company. Dr. Cheng is a practising solicitor and the senior
partner of Messrs. P.C. Woo & Co. Dr. Cheng was a member of the
Legislative Council of Hong Kong. He is the Founder Chairman of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors of which he is now the
Honorary President and Chairman Emeritus. He was also the
President of International Association of Practising Lawyers. Dr.
Cheng currently holds directorships in China Mobile Limited, China
Resources Enterprise, Limited, K. Wah International Holdings
Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited, Tian An China
Investments Company Limited, Towngas China Company Limited
and Kader Holdings Company Limited, all being public listed
companies in Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng is also an independent non-
executive director of ARA Asset Management Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on Singapore Exchange Limited. His other
directorships in public listed companies in the last 3 years include
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and Hong Kong
Television Network Limited, both companies are public listed
companies in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Cheng did not
hold any directorship, whether in Hong Kong or overseas, in any

other public listed companies in the previous 3 years.

MR. TONG TSIN KA
FCA (AUST.), FCPA, FCIS

aged 76, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company in September 2004 and he has served as the Chairman
of Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration,
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committees of the
Company. Mr. Tong is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants respectively. In 1968, Mr. Tong commenced his own
public accountancy practice and in 1970 founded his own
accountancy firm, T. K. Tong & Co. (Chartered Accountants
(AUST.). Certified Public Accountants), and has remained its
principal to date.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESKSREBAEBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. AU KAM YUEN, ARTHUR

aged 75, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 3 December 2012 and he also serves as a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Au studied Law in Sydney and
London respectively. He was admitted as a solicitor in England in
1975 and in Hong Kong in 1976. He is a sole proprietor of Arthur
Au & Co., a firm of solicitors established since 1979. Mr. Au is a
Notary Public and was a member of the Notary Public Disciplinary
Tribunal Panel. He is also a School Management Committee Member
of the Clementi Secondary School. He now serves as legal adviser to
the Association of Hong Kong Nursing Staff (previously named as the
Association of Government Nursing Staff) and The New Territories
North District Manufacturers Association of Hong Kong Limited.
Mr. Au is an active Rotarian, he was a District Governor of Rotary
International District 3450 (Hong Kong/Macao/Mongolia) in 1990-
1991.

DR. MA HUNG MING, JOHN
PhD, BBS

aged 48, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 3 December 2012 and he has also served as a
member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. Ma currently is the
managing director of Carrianna Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of
Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited, is responsible for
property development operations. He has extensive experience in the
catering industry, as well as property management and development.
Besides, he is the Chairman of Shenzhen Oceanus Group which
engages in shipping and freight transport services. He was awarded
the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) from The Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region in 2003 and a Honorary
Doctorate of Philosophy by Morrison University in 2004. As for the
community service, Dr. Ma was the Chairman of Tung Wah Group
of Hospitals for the year 2002. He is a member of Tung Wah Group
of Hospitals Advisory Board, the Standing Committee of Shenzhen
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and the President of Youth Council. He also serves as the Vice
Chairman of Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community
Organisations and the Vice President of Kowloon Federation of
Associations. In addition to his directorship in the Company, Dr. Ma
is an executive director of Carrianna Group Holdings Company
Limited. This is a public company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Ma did not hold
any directorship in any other public listed company in the last three
years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)
MR. CHENG YUK WO

Msc (Econ), BA(Hons), CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA(Practising)

aged 54, was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 7 March 2014 and he has also served as member of
the Audit Committee. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master of Science
(Economics) degree in Accounting and Finance from London School
of Economics, England and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in
Accounting from University of Kent, England. He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr.
Cheng has over 20 years’ of expertise in accounting, finance and
corporate advisory services. Mr. Cheng is currently an independent
non-executive director of Chong Hing Bank Limited, C.P. Lotus
Corporation, CSI Properties Limited, HKC (Holdings) Limited,
Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited, Imagi
International Holdings Limited and Top Spring International
Holdings Limited, the abovementioned companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. His other
directorships in public companies in the last three years include 21
Holdings Limited and South China Land Limited, both are public
companies listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Cheng has not held any directorship in any other
public companies the securities of which are listed on any securities

market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MS. EVA LIU

MA (Cantab), DipArch (Kingston), MA (City), ARB (UK), RIBA

aged 51, Director of Projects & Maintenance. Ms. Liu is a Chartered
Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degrees, in Architecture
from the University of Cambridge, and Property Valuation And Law
from The City University in London. She was in architectural
practice in England before joining the Company in 1999. She is the
daughter of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and the sister of Mr. Liu Kam Fai,
Winston.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESKSREBAEBN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
MR. LUK CHI CHUNG

FCCA, CPA (Practising), MAEB

aged 47, Director of Finance. Mr. Luk is a professional accountant,
holding Master of Arts Degree in Electronic Business and has over
twenty five years of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Luk
joined the Company in 1995 and is in charge of Finance Management

Department and Information Technology Department.

MS. CAVIOR LIU

aged 50, Director of Human Resources & Administration. Ms. Liu
holds a Bachelor degree in Psychology from University of British
Columbia. She joined the Company in 2000, in charge of Human
Resources & Administration Department. Ms. Liu is a school manager
of Liu Po Shan Memorial College. She is the daughter of Dr. Liu Lit
Mo and the sister of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston.

MS. YAN YUET LAM, CHARMAINE

aged 40, Director of Business Development. Ms. Yan was educated in
Vancouver, Canada. Before joining the Company, Ms. Yan had
worked with various mainland companies at senior management post
for leading and handling numerous successful real estate projects
including the Shanghai Forest Manor, one of the top residential villa
projects in Shanghai. In addition, Ms. Yan has extensive experience in
business club operations both in Beijing and Shanghai. Ms. Yan is
currently in charge of the Company’s hotel business and education

project in China.

MR. LAM SHIU CHEUNG

MRICS

aged 54, Director of China Property. Mr. Lam joined the Company
in 1994. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Civil Engineering and has
over twenty years of experience in development, construction and

sales of real estate projects in the PRC.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
MR. WONG YUK CHI, ALLEN

MSc., MBA, MRICS, MHIREA, FCIPFM

aged 55, Director of Property Management Department. Mr. Wong
joined the Company in 1997. He holds double Master Degrees in
Property & Facility Management and Business Administration, and
has over twenty years of experience in Property and Facility

Management.

MR. PAN SZE YUEN, CECIL

MA (Cantab), DipArch (Cantab), RIBA

aged 51, Assistant Director of Projects. Mr. Pan is a Chartered
Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degree in Architecture from
the University of Cambridge, and has over twenty years of experience
as a practicing architect in both UK and Hong Kong. Mr. Pan joined
the Company in 2006.

MR. LAU PING LEUNG, STEPHEN

FHKIS, FRICS, MHKIE, MHKICM, P.FM, RPE, RPS

aged 62, Assistant Director of Maintenance. Mr. Lau is a professional
surveyor and professional engineer and has over thirty years of
experience in property development, building construction and

quantity surveying. Mr. Lau joined the Company in 2009.

MR. JAN KWOK WAI, KIM

BEng (Civil), CEng, MICE

aged 46, Assistant Director of Projects. Mr. Jan joined the Company
in 2008. Mr. Jan is a professional engineer with over twenty years of
construction and project management experience representing
Clients, Consultants and Contractors on both private-sector and

government funded projects in China, Hong Kong and Macau.

I__lul éig}\,g‘(mg
SRithkE

MSec., MBA, MRICS, MHIREA, FCIPEM

At FE MEEHIMEE - EAER
—SLILEEMAA L\ o A P 3 Tk
it A B T A R K AR
DL E W 3 K it 5 BRAR B o

BRIERE

MA (Cantab), DipArch (Cantab), RIBA

A —k > HARAE - BCLERRERE
XELMPB GG L FAKERGKEE
FREL > R AFU AR KA
LA SRS B o W e AR TR NAE N
ARRH o

BIRR&E

FHKIS, FRICS, MHKIE, MHKICM, P.FM, RPE, RPS

ANt HEER Bl —H
S T B il % 23 A R S R A B R = 4R
uL%%%%‘ﬁ?EﬁﬁiﬁM%ZI
YEREER - BURAER “FFIFMALLF -

| 48 B o

BEExXE

BEng (Civil), CEng, MICE

Mbt7Smk - HERIAE - AR
JNAEMARANT - ERAEBEETARTRE
R R AR DL R R HH A
Z LRSS > WRMIEHE S RESRE - &
W > g BB R - B A A
FOoREE 2 BALE RBUNERRIEE -

HE N 27 NOILYWYIOINI SY4IATOHIYVHS ANV ILVIOJHOD

=]
==

=
3

Q

EVHBXITERE

IEE L



0
N

7102 1¥0d3¥ TYNNNY | A3 LIWIT LNIWLSIANI ONIH ONOHD NI

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IR SRBRIFA S B S

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of Liu
Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) for the year 2015
will be held at 27th Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre, 24 Des Voeux
Road Central, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 29 April 2015 at
11:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and adopt the audited Financial Statements together
with Reports of the Directors and Auditors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

2. To approve the payment of the final cash dividend of HK$0.25
per share for the year ended 31 December 2014.

3. To re-elect Directors and to fix the directors’ remuneration for

the year ending 31 December 2015.

4. To re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as Auditors and to

authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or
without modifications the following ordinary resolutions and special

resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION & &R

5. “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to
Buy-back shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) or on any
other stock exchange on which the shares of the Company
may be listed and which is recognized by the Securities
and Futures Commission in Hong Kong and the Stock
Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in accordance
with all applicable laws and the requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
or of any other stock exchange (as amended from time to
time), be and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;
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6.

(b)

©

the aggregate nominal amount of the shares of the
Company which the Company is authorized to buy back
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above shall not
exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing of
this resolution, and the said approval shall be limited

accordingly; and
for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of

this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of

the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is required
by the articles of association of the Company or the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) to be held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting.”

“THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares in the capital of
the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and
options (including bonds, warrants, debentures, notes and
any securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are
convertible into shares of the Company) which would or
might require the exercise of such power be and is hereby

generally and unconditionally approved;
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IR SRBRIFA S B S

(b)

©]

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorize the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) to make or grant offers, agreements
and options (including bonds, warrants, debentures, notes
and any securities which carry rights to subscribe for or
are convertible into shares of the Company) which would
or might require the exercise of such power after the end

of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
(whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) and issued
by the directors of the Company pursuant to the approval
in paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a
Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) the exercise of
any rights of subscription or conversion under any
warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and any securities of
the Company which carry rights to subscribe for or are
convertible into shares of the Company; (iii) an issue of
shares of the Company upon the exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to any options granted under
any share option scheme adopted by the Company; (iv)
an issue of shares as scrip dividends or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment of shares in lieu of the whole
or part of a dividend on shares of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association from time to time; or (v) specific
authority granted by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in
issue at the date of passing of this resolution, and the said

approval shall be limited accordingly; and
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(d) for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of

this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of

the Company; or

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is required
by the articles of association of the Company or the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) to be held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period
fixed by the directors of the Company to holders of shares
or any class of shares of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on a
fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of
such shares as at that date (subject to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the directors of the Company may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognized regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any

territory applicable to the Company)”.

(d)
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“THAT conditional upon Ordinary Resolutions Nos. 5 and 6 set
out in the notice convening this meeting being passed, the
general mandate granted to the directors of the Company to
exercise the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal
with additional shares pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No. 6
set out in the notice convening this meeting be and is hereby
extended by the addition thereto of an amount representing the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company
bought back by the Company under the authority granted
pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No. 5 set out in the notice
convening this meeting, provided that such extended amount of
shares so bought back shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at

the date of passing of this resolution.”

SPECIAL RESOLUTION %5 lliR 3% 5

“THAT the Company’s new articles of association, a copy of
which are contained in the document marked “A” and produced
to this Meeting and initialled by the Chairman of this Meeting
for the purpose of identification, be and is hereby approved and
adopted as the articles of association of the Company in
substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the articles of
association of the Company in force immediately before the
passing of this Special Resolution and THAT any Director or
the Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to do all things necessary to effect and record the

adoption of the Company’s new articles of association.”

To transact any other business.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IR SRBRIFA S B S

7. [ By A K g i BT SR S B 6 TH
MR HREEERE - WRA LA ESR
PERR T 7K & 78 & B iR 98 26 6 TH %
7 PR S AT AT A mIE D DL
BAT I R By 2 — AR - FEH B
T3 TR A A2 R AR 98 A K g7 o P
AR S TR 8 IR R AR T 2 AT [m]
WEAS A W) 2 IR TN > % b 22 [m]
S B A3 B AN A5 BB A8 AR 0 ) A A e
FWBH B E AT kA (AR
10% © J

y

8. [ Bl At ik K PR A AR 2 W] 2 ALAR
R AR - Gy AL = A A0 U kA TA
TFTHZBIACIREARAREG Wil KE
TR DUE ) B A R 2 LA
EARANA > LU R 3 B B AR 4
PR S 7 2 T A A 2 AR m AL AR
FEAHA - S By HEA X RAE T # F
W mEE A LT HEE > DE
AT B e Bk PR A AR 3 ) 22 T AL A T AR A
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By Order of the Board R H
Dr. Liu Lit Mo B 2
Chairman e

Hong Kong, 26 March 2015 Ty “F—-HE=H_1+RH



Notes:

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the 2015 annual general
meeting is entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote in his
stead. A member who is the holder of two or more shares may appoint more than one
proxy to attend on the same occasion. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authority (if
any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged with
the Company’s Share Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

Record dates of entitlements of the Members:

(a) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at the 2015 Annual General Meeting to be held on Wednesday, 29 April
2015 (“2015 AGM”), whose name should be recorded in the Company’s
shareholders book on Tuesday, 28 April 2015. The Register of Members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 27 April 2015 and Tuesday, 28 April 2015,
both days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2015
AGM, all share certificates with completed transfer forms either overleaf or
separately must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 24 April 2015.

(b) For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for the 2014 Final
Dividend, whose name should be recorded in the Company’s shareholders book
on Friday, 8 May 2015. The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 6 May 2015 to Friday, 8 May 2015, both days inclusive. In
order to qualify for the final dividend, all share certificates with completed
transfer forms either overleaf or separately must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 5 May 2015.

As at the date hereof, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises Executive
Directors: Dr. Liu Lit Mo (Chairman), Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer), Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Deputy Managing Director), Mr. Liu Kwun
Shing, Christopher (also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) and Mr. Lee Wai Hung;
Non-executive Directors: Dr. Liu Lit Chung, Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred
and Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher; and Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr.
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr. Tong Tsin Ka, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr. Ma Hung Ming,
John and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo.
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MARKET PRICE MOVEMENT AND MARKET CAPITALIZATION CHART
mMEBEBKRMEE X

Closing Price per Share SR HE

Last Trading Date Closing Price per Share Marketing Capitalization
of Each Month SRR Gl Haen 2018 o Degmee 20
SAB%XSA (HK$ 7885 ) (HK$ in million SB¥EE T ) I -
HK$
20
31/01/2013 9.390 3,555
18
28/02/2013 11.300 4,278 6
28/03/2013 11.700 4,429 14
30/04/2013 11.600 4,392 12
31/05/2013 10.980 4,157 L
8
28/06/2013 10.800 4,089
6
31/07/2013 11.420 4,323
4 . B
30/08/2013 14.540 5,505 5 |
30/09/2013 18.940 7,170 0
8 8 § & 8 8 ® 8
31/10/2013 17.240 6,527 e g g S 5 g2
-
29/11/2013 15.600 5,906 3 ] g g 8 N 8 g
S 8§ 3¢ 8¢ ¢ s
31/12/2013 14.820 5,611 @ 2 9 P o5 8 g =
30/01/2014 15.280 5,785
28/02/2014 15.920 6,027 Market Capitalization Hi{E
March 2013 to December 2014
—R-=FZRE-ZT-MF+-A
31/03/2014 16.000 6,057 S i il BT B
8,000
30/04/2014 14.860 5,626
30/05/2014 9.750 3,691 7,000 ‘
30/06/2014 9.180 3,475 6,000 e
31/07/2014 10.200 3,862 5,000
29/08/2014 10.200 3,862 4,000
30/09/2014 9.630 3,646 3,000
31/10/2014 9.810 3,714
2,000 -
28/11/2014 9.830 3,721
1,000 -
31/12/2014 9.800 3,710
(0]

note:  Closing price (HK$) are extracted from the web site of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Limited. (Stock code: 194)

Mt - BT EDLREEEBARXZMARDRMY - (RMHAR :194)

28/06/2013 4,089
30/09/2013 7,170

31/12/2013 5,611
31/03/2014 6,057
30/06/2014 3,475
30/09/2014 3,646

31/12/2014 3,710
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LIU CHONG HING GROUP SIMPLIFIED CORPORATE STRUCTURE CHART

ERIEKERBIRIEES

As at 31 December 2014
R-T—ME+-A=+—H

LIU’S FAMILY

LIU’S HOLDINGS LIMITED

N BREERRATE

OTHER INVESTORS
HitiREE

21.03% 34.95%

*LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED

*BRIETEERATF

44.02%

Property
Investment

YIRIE

Property
Development

ISR

Chong Hing
Bank Centre
R ERAT H O

Western Harbour
Centre

gl

100% 100%

The Grand Riviera/
Grand Jardin,
Foshan

By
HERE
(1L

100% 90%

Chong Hing
Square

RIELES

Chong Yip Centre
-IELEE

100%

Fairview Court
=EEH

100%

Chong Hing
Finance Centre,

Shanghai
ESRIE S FAR L

100%

*Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
HRREEABRERGMERAT LT

Property
Management

YIEE

Trading &
Manufacturing

Liu Chong Hing
Property
Management &
Agency Limited
BRIEY TR
REEFRAH]

100%

Guangzhou Wealth
Good Property
Management
Company Limited
&N T ¥ TP 36
EEERAF

100%

Maanshan Gaoke
Magnetic Material
Company Limited
EH BN
MREERQE

51.54%

Hotel
Business

EE Sy

Hanting Express-
Shanghai
Shang Nan

EFEREE
LB ErRE

100%

Hanting Hotel-
Shanghai
Song Jiang FangTa
RS
TR EE

100%

Hanting Express-
Beijing
Da Guan Yuen
ERERE
TR ABEE

100%

Hanting Express-
Guangzhou
Yue Xiu Pan Fu

EERE
FUNEL E5

100%
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AND ASSOCIATES

SERBESL A ETSMER

As at 31 December 2014 p=Z—-mF+-HA=+—H

Interest in
the property  Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sqa. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use
REBELEZ BAmEEE BERFEAEE
Bt MERER (EAR) (EAR) R AE
Investment properties
Hong Kong:
&k
1.  Chong Yip Centre 100% 32,400 54,000 Cc/P
402-404 Des Voeux Road West
CESER
EEIET 402-404 5
2. Fairview Court 100% 30,000 26,000 R/P
94 Repulse Bay Road
"“‘ii%j
R 9457
3. Chong Hing Bank Centre 100% 7,100 110,000 O
24 Des Voeux Road Central
SIEERFTH L)
EagiEH 24 5%
190,000
Kowloon and New Territories:
NERFR
4.  Chong Hing Square 100% 12,300 182,000 C
593-601 Nathan Road, Mongkok
BlE R
W AT 20E 593-601 %%
5. Bonsun Industrial Building 100% 18,000 8,200 I/P
364-366 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
ERT£AE
FIEDI8E 364-366 %%
6. Chatham Gate 10% 40,700 305,000 R
388 Chatham Road North 61,000 C

Hung Hom
AP

AR

RREL 3885

556,200




Interest in
the property  Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use
AEEREGZ BAnEEE ARFEEERE

Bt MRS (FAR) (EAR) RERZ

Investment properties

People’s Republic of China:

] :

7. Chong Hing Finance Center 100% 55,000 103,000 C
No. 288 Nanjing Road (W) 413,000 0
Huang Pu District 180,000 P
Shanghai
BB R L
st
R R 288 9%

696,000
1,442,200
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AND ASSOCIATES
SERBESL A ETSMER

As at 31 December 2014 p=Z—-mF+-HA=+—H
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N

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq.ft.) Existinguse  Status
AEEEGz BOMEEE SARFEEEE
it LEL: o (FAR) (FEAR) REAZ IREE
Properties under development/Properties under development for sale
BREIYE TFHERRPYE
Hong Kong:
EF
8. Waestern Harbour Centre 100% 11,500 n/a n/a  Planning
181-183 Connaught Road N TEB FrEHR
West
EREF L
FHIEF181-183 5%
9. Various Lots in D.D. 29 100% 262,000 n/a n/a  Planning
Ting Kok Road, Tai Po TNEH NER  FrEF
AT AR
T SRHER
People’s Republic of China:
] -
10.  The Grand Riviera/Grand 90% 2,755,000 5,842,000 R First phase: Completed
Jardin 350,000 C —H: B
West of Luocun 2,099,000 P
Luocun Social Management 32,000 S Second phase:
Office 115,000 T expect to complete
Shishan Town in second quarter 2015
Nanhai District EH: ﬁ?r:;ﬁfﬁi
Foshan B-F
BiNERE B RE
LT Third and Fourth phase:
EapistA Planning stage
WLUBEENTeERE =R
9 7 R R FtEl
8,438,000

C=Commercial % I=Industrial T%

P=Car Park #f

S=Clubhouse and recreational facilities & B & 44355

R=Residential £ 0=0ffice EF#&
T= Others (including kindergarten, property management office, etc.)
Hin (REPHE - WEEERAES)



SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION A% 5R &

FINANCIAL CALENDAR As at 4 March 2015 8
B ¥ BmR-—E—aE=AmA ?;
RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT g
4=x / m
¥ [I=RWAN ﬁﬁ )Z>
Interim Results : Announced on 8 August 2014 O
for six-month ended 30 June 2014 ‘ﬁ
HE-_FT—NFA=1+HIE ERZE—WENANB LM S
NE Rz R ER AR =
Annual Results : Announced on 4 March 2015 §
for year ended 31 December 2014 &
BE-_Z—NF+-"A=+—HL ER=ZZE—RF= ANB QM z
FE2EFHE §
SHAREHOLDERS® MEETING f>|
BRRAS o
Annual General Meeting : To be held on 29 April 2015 >
RREAFRE BR—_E—RFEOA -+ NLBE8T %
Latest time to lodge transfer forms : 4:30 pm on 24 April 2015 ]
BB P X B B —E-RENA=-+MATFRE=1H ;ﬂ
Closure of Register of Members : From 27 April 2015 to 28 April 2015 k4
(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements (both days inclusive)

to attend and vote at the 2015 Annual
General Meeting)

TiEmEROBAPERFE —hAFNA T+ +EHEZZE—RAFMHA=+/\H
(BEAREFE_Z—hF (EFW%@%EW)
BRRERBFERERIEE)
CASH DIVIDENDS
RERR
Interim cash dividend : HK$0.15 per share
HPHIER SR E BRRA¥E 0I5 T
Paid on : 24 September 2014
S THEA —E-NFNA=ZTHEA
Proposed final cash dividend : HK$0.25 per Share
RIRARERSRE BiR#E®0257T
Payable on : 14 May 2015
XA A —E-RAFHA+MA
Ex- dividend date of final dividend : 4 May 2015 103
RERERR B —E—-RFHHAMA -
Latest time to lodge transfer forms : 4:30 pm on 5 May 2015 E
R X Ex1& BAPR —E-AFRARATTNE= -
Closure of Register of Members : From 6 May 2015 to 8 May 2015 af
(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements (both days inclusive) “
to receive the final dividend)
TiEREROHBPERFE —hAFRANBEZE—RFAHA/NAR
(HE B REWEUCR B 2) (%FW%@%EW)

IEE L
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SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION A% 5 &

Share Registrars and transfer office

RN ERLRE R R

Share listing

ey

Stock Code

AR 5%

Board lot

BEEBA

No. of issued ordinary share
BEITERKRROEE
Company’s e-mail address
UNGICSEGS: 1hi]

Investors and Shareholders contact

REE MR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East Wanchai,

Hong Kong

EAEFREBEHFELERAF
BRETERRERISIHR

AR LTEE—tE—ZFE—t— R

The Company’s shares are listed on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
RARRERBEBBERZABR AR
HEEE

194

194

2,000 shares
2,000 fi%

378,583,440 shares
378,583,440 ik

info@lchi.com.hk
info@Ichi.com.hk

Attention: Mr. Lee Wai Hung/Ms. Nelly Ng
23rd Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2983 7779

Fax: (852) 2983 7723

Website: http://www.lchi.com.hk

B FEELLE REEE

FEEHEBED —+ERAIRERITHR O+ =2

T|aE ¢ (852) 2983 7779
{EH : (852) 2983 7723
#E : http://www.lchi.com.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B i S eh iR E 2

Deloitte.
45

I

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Liu Chong
Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group™) set out on pages 109 to 235,
which comprise the consolidated and Company’s statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”), and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

HERIEERBRATIEIRR

(REBEMALZ BRAF)

ARBED QAT B8 [ 09)) B M BHBR
H109ZE 255 AMBAIMA R ERART ([ &A
A1) REHE AR (G [ B K ) AT
BE - UEANBEERBER - M4
+Z A=+ -BaEARARYBRAER
HERALFENGABEER HABER
Hip2ERER  GAEREDERGAR
SRER - DREBEHHEHE R
G

ESMECUBRRARENST

ERREFARRARBEE LM AGHEM
MEBM B REER NEBRRIEPIE 622F
REABMIFHEAMBERE - ARERS
EZRA/VENARAEE  UERER
HFEMBRERE N FEARKFRERME
HHBERBRERML



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 1
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

% SMem B & 1
BPNEERRERMANERYZESEEY
BREELRERL  WRBEBRRGRAIKR
SEBOMREMEBBIRME - M EEMAE -
BATERARENARHEMEMBALR
EERAEEFMEE - HPERBEF B G5
RERMONBEBEEANETER - ZFE
AIZREFIETERRE  YREIRATE
%o B AEREXSHEAMBRRES T
FAEMERERRAL -

BERSRAITEFABRARS S MBE®RK
eI BEEENNERERE - TBEZ
RFBURRZBE WAL - 2RFEEEH
REFRERMEBBE A BRERFEEK
H AR PRALEY LR - AP AR R - R E
fiZEEEZARRAEAEEMAFOES T
WERAAONIEE - URFEENEZXIE
Fr B IS ERNAMEREMEERER -
ERNERTEEEMRASHBREESR
ELAEL A REAE  ARFHESR
EUBHRERNERZISA -

HAEE - RPESNEZERE DR ME
B RRMNBZERRHER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ¥& 37 ii% 21 6 3k &5 =2

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
4 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mOoBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #E-ZF-WE+-A=+—HBIL5E

2014 2013
“2-|mE —E-=F%
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Fiazx BETT BETTL
Continuing operations BERE
Revenue e 8 565,875 403,488
Direct costs BERK (133,237) (107,905)
432,638 295,583
Other income HepA 9 12,970 10,079
Administrative and operating expenses IR EBHEY (186,641) (144,645)
Other gains and losses Hivlhm hEE 10 252,943 229,412
Finance costs BIRA 11 (82,428) (89,133)
Share of results of joint ventures FibAgrEEE (184) 107
Profit before tax BE AT 429,298 301,403
Income tax expense BRI 12 (26,492) (27,830)
Profit for the year from continuing operations HECERE R 402,806 273,573
Discontinued operations BRI EE
Profit for the year from discontinued operations BRIHEERER R 13 2,983,607 552,163
Profit for the year REERH 14 3,386,413 825,736
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company HERAR BIREMREE EF
— from continuing operations - RERELE 393,600 268,905
— from discontinued operations - REELLERE 1,963,335 274,555
2,356,935 543,460
Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests 7 At JEiR IR R R MR F R F
— from continuing operations - KERELE 9,206 4,668
— from discontinued operations - REBRIEEE 1,020,272 277,608
1,029,478 282,276
3,386,413 825,736
Basic earnings per share BREAZR
— from continuing and discontinued operations - REBERBKLLE 17 i HK$6.23 B HKS1.44
— from continuing operations - RERELE 17 BE HK$1.04 BEHKS0.71
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

RoBREMHEMEERNAR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

2014 2013
“E-mE “E-=F
HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BRI
Profit for the year REEHF 3,386,413 825,736
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hit2m () e
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: REA BN A EZRn k2 BE
Exchange differences arising on translation BEMEEERLZS (11,557) 115,527
Fair value gains on available-for-sale investments HREERE ATEENS 49,752 55,251
Income tax relating to fair value change of available-for-sale BRAHERENTEEE
investments ZEER = 514
Amount reclassified to the profit or loss upon disposal of FHEMHLIEREBYENHE
available-for-sale investments HEREz S (26,803) (62,303)
Income tax relating to disposal of available-for-sale investments  BRHEREEEREZHER - 261
Share of other comprehensive income of associates it E AR EmEERE = 464
Reclassification adjustments for amounts transferred to REENBRAREBHEN N ERE
profit or loss upon disposal of subsidiaries BRETEREEE (90,376) -
(78,984) 109,714
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: AT eEfr B2 =R IER -
Gain on valuation upon transfer from property, plant and BIE  BELSEERERENE
equipment to investment properties B R (E 1,469,601 -
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) AEEEME2ENE (BHE) 1,390,617 109,714
Total comprehensive income for the year REE2AREBE 4,777,030 935,450
Total comprehensive income attributable to: PEMEBEAER
Owners of the Company NI & 3,780,072 628,052
Non-controlling interests IR R RS 996,958 307,398
4,777,030 935,450




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

n 6 B85 R i &

As at 31 December 2014 R=F-mE+-F=+—H

2014 2013
“2-|mE —E-=F%
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Fiazx BETT BETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties RENE 18 7,776,590 5,962,913
Property, plant and equipment e BERERE 19 102,401 303,522
Properties under development BERPME 20 714,892 702,200
Investments in joint ventures RELEIRE 22 2,584 2,768
Investments in securities BERE 23 825,978 424,541
Advances to investee companies BRFRE DT 25 4,891 193,424
Fixed bank deposit with more than three months to BAZEA%ISE TS
maturity when raised RITER 28 380,276 -
Deferred tax assets EERARE 31 7,235 630
9,814,847 7,590,048
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development for sale FLERRTNE 20 1,055,855 642,547
Properties held for sale FLEmE 20 566,908 590,967
Inventories FE 26 21,995 18,467
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMENERR 27 143,599 113,929
Investments in securities BERE 23 359,055 20,004
Fixed bank deposits with more than three months to BAZ(EA%IS 2 E 8
maturity when raised RITER 28 1,553,835 122,620
Other bank balances and cash HiBreaEE S 28 1,138,582 465,682
4,839,829 1,974,216
Assets classified as held for sale PERGNEEE 13 = 84,876,561
4,839,829 86,850,777
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables ECVEST T 29 354,843 152,939
Taxation payable FERTR 4,664 5,413
Borrowings — due within one year g3 — R—ERZIH 30 737,483 1,833,774
1,096,990 1,992,126
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale S AGFHEREIRERE 13 - 77,214,362
1,096,990 79,206,488
Net current assets MEEAEFR 3,742,839 7,644,289
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAR 13,557,686 15,234,337
Non-current liabilities FREAE
Rental deposits from tenants mAPWE HERSE 105,828 59,726
Borrowings — due after one year B3 — R—ER3IH 30 2,196,764 1,948,402
Deferred tax liabilities ECHEERE 31 218,318 209,887
2,520,910 2,218,015
11,036,776 13,016,322
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
= 6B RS R IR &

As at 31 December 2014 R=Z—mE+=-A=+—8

2014 2013
“E-mE “E-=F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
M BETT BETL
Equity R

Share capital AR 33 381,535 378,583
Reserves & 10,627,724 8,739,736

Equity attributable to: RIE R BER
Owners of the Company /NI & 11,009,259 9,118,319
Non-controlling interests IR R 27,517 3,898,003
Total equity R 11,036,776 13,016,322

The consolidated financial statements on pages 109 to 235 were  #HRF109E 235 B 2 LAV BREC KR -
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 4 —FH4&= AUREZE St E R IZER{T

March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTIATRESZE :
DR. LIU LIT MO MR. TONG TSIN KA
BREEL BRZESE
CHAIRMAN CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
E2 FRZECRTRE



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

87 5 3R i &

As at 31 December 2014 R=F-mE+-F=+—H

2014 2013 ;E>
“E-MmF 2= K
NOTES HK$'000 HK$000 =
Fiazx BETT BETTL E
(@)
Non-current assets ERBEE ]
Investment properties RENE 18 1,675,000 - =
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KR 19 599,894 2,150 %
Investments in subsidiaries WBARZERE 21 394,654 363,454 m
Investments in joint ventures BENEIRE 22 3 3
Investments in securities BHLE 23 123,732 130,399
Amounts due from subsidiaries L CENEIE S 24 4,397,055 4,210,408
Deferred tax assets EXETRBEEE 31 7,235 680
7,197,573 4,707,094
Current assets RBEE
Properties held for sale FHENE 20 2,808 2,808
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWRERR 27 24,475 5,122
Investments in securities BERE 23 359,055 20,004
Fixed bank deposits with more than three months to BAZ{AR%EH
maturity when raised EHRITER 28 1,543,111 239,394
Other bank balances and cash HtRIER RS 28 736,820 378,956
2,666,269 046,284
Current liabilities mBaE
Trade and other payables ZHREMENER 29 8,701 10,352
Borrowings — due within one year E3 - N—ERE|H 30 678,300 1,813,601
687,001 1,823,953
Net current assets (liabilities) MEEE(BE)FHE 1,979,268 (1,177,669)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDARE 9,176,841 3,529,425
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Rental deposits from tenants AP HER S 39,308 -
Borrowings — due after one year B2 — PA— 145 30 1,255,767 1,364,144
Non-interest bearing advances from subsidiaries WELRZE8EH 32 2,445,783 143,933
3,740,858 1,508,077
5,435,983 2,021,348
Capital and reserves BARRG#E
Share capital [ 33 381,535 378,583
Reserves EhiE 34 5,054,448 1,642,765 LE]
wa
5,435,983 2,021,348 i
5
ot
%
DR. LIU LIT MO MR. TONG TSIN KA —
BERREL ERRALE .
CHAIRMAN CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
Ed-3 EREAOTE "
W
=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GORBSBEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company A7 &R R (L

Property  Investment Capital Non-

Share Special revaluation revaluation redemption  Exchange Accumulated controlling

capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
NEERE  REER  RAEE FER

BRA S e i e  EXREE 2EER @ RRER E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  E%TT BT BT BETr  B%Tr  B%Tr BT BBt BETn
(note a) (note b)
(Wzta)  (fitio)

w
2

At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%-F—H 378,583 13915 1,711,859 248,655 2,952 499,882 5,740,424 8596270 3,696,759 12,293,029
Profit for the year Z].Kijg/ﬁﬂ - - - - - - 543,460 543,460 282,276 825,736
Exchange differences arising on BEMEEZERES

translation - - - - - 88,212 - 88,212 27,315 115,527
Fair value gains on available-for-sale  AItHEREZ AT

investments Bk - - - 57273 - - - 57273 (2,022 55,251
Income tax relating to fair value BRAHHERERT

change of available-for-sale EEH 2 AER

investments - - - 258 - - - 258 256 514
Amount reclassified to the profit or loss B & [ HERE

upon disposal of available-for-sale BYENHED

investments BaEze® - - - (61,515) - - - (61,515) (788)  (62.303)
Income tax relating to disposal of BRHEAEEERE

available-for-sale investments ZFiER - - - 131 - - - 131 130 261
Share of other comprehensive FriEBEAREMEE

income of associates zs - - - 233 - - - 233 231 464
Other comprehensive income FEEEMZANE

for the year - - - (3,620) - 88,212 - 84,592 25122 109,714
Total comprehensive income AEE2ENGLE

for the year - - - (3,620) - 88,212 543,460 628,052 307,398 935,450
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ EHERADEZRE

(note 16) (GEAD) - - - - - - (106,003)  (106,003) - (106,003)
Dividends paid to non-controlling FOERAI e 2

interests HRE - - - - - - - - (106154)  (106,154)
At 31 December 2013 WIE-=F

+-ZA=1+-H 378,583 13915 1,711,859 245,035 2,952 588,094 6,177,881 9118319 3,898,003 13,016,322




Attributable to owners of the Company 7K 72 51 R FE{h

Property Investment Capital Non-

Share Special revaluation revaluation redemption  Exchange Accumulated controlling

capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
NEERE  REER  RAEE FER

BRA S e i e EXREE 2RER o RRER b
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  E%Tr BT BT BETr  B%Tr  B%Tr BT BBt BETn
(note a) (note b)
(Miita)  (Fitio)
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At 1 January 2014 R-E-Nm&E—F—H 378,583 13915 1,711,859 245,035 2,952 588,094 6,177,881 9118319 3,898,003 13,016,322
Profit for the year REEHRF - - - - - — 2356935 2356935 1,029,478 3,386,413
Exchange differences arising on BERELVERESE

translation - - - - - 2951 - 2,951 (14,508) (11,557)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale  AIEHEREZ AT

investments BERE - - - 67,764 = - - 67,764 (18,012 49,752
Amount reclassified to the profit or loss  [&IH &7 H &1 &

upon disposal of available-for-sale EREHES

investments BaEze® - - - (26,803) - - - (26,803) - (26,803)
Amount reclassified to AHERBARER

the profit or loss upon disposal EFDRRIEREY

of subsidiaries (note 37) S8 (M3E37) - - - (68,406) - (21.970) - (90,376) - (90,376)

Gain on valuation upon transfer from  #41% + BE Rk
property, plant and equipment to BRZRANER
investment properties (note 19(c)) fiEERS

(BzE19() - - 1469601 - - - - 1469,601 - 1469601
Other comprehensive income AEEEMEZEYE
for the year - — 1469601 (27,445 - (19019 - 1423137 (32520) 1390617
Total comprehensive income TEERENELE
for the year - - 1469601 (27445 - (19019 2356935 3780072 996,958 4,777,030
Transfer upon abolition of par value B EBHHEE R REH
under the new Hong Kong BEREERATEER
Companies Ordinance (note ¢) (F3Ec) 2,952 - - - (2,952) - - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HEMBAR (ME37) - - (224,603) - - - 24643 - (3,893,588) (3,893,588)
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ EHRADRZKE
(note 16) (M6 - - - - - - (1,889,132) (1,889,132 - (1,889,132
Dividends to non-controlling interests {4 FEIRARAR E 25
e - - - - - - - - (9738%)  (973,856)
At 31 December 2014 eSS
+=A=1-8 381,535 13915 2956817 217,590 - 569075 6870327 11,009,259 27517 11,036,776
notes: Bt sE
(a) Special reserve represents the difference between the consideration  (a) |hEEEAEERBE-_SENF+_A=+—
paid and the carrying values of the underlying assets and liabilities BEFERBE-_S——F+_A=+—BItFEE
attributable to the additional interest in a subsidiary acquired during 1) — i B 8 2 @) P 2 X8 BB A ok B 2 R RE SN
the year ended 31 December 2004 and the year ended 31 December Rz iBEERBERAE =5 -
2012.

(b) Property revaluation reserve represents the reserve arising from  (b) WEEGEEREERAZEYEE (HEDE K

115
valuation of properties under property, plant and equipment upon EREEE T EEA MRS - &
transfer to investment properties. :

m»

(¢)  The Company has no authorised share capital and its shares have no (¢ EFEEAQTIEEBEEER (- ZE—mE= "
par value since the commencement date of the new Hong Kong A=ZR)  ARARWEEFERAE - HRGMEE 2
Companies Ordinance (i.e. 3 March 2014). 8 - >

¥ HEHEW - &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

llTDIﬁ@)ﬁ%

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z —

~WEFZA=+-BLEE

2014 2013
—E-|mE —F-=f
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
st BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RSP
Profit before tax BT R
— from continuing operations - REBELY 429,298 301,403
— from discontinued operations - REERIHEE 3,002,023 664,600
3,431,321 966,003
Adjustments for; AR
Net interest income — financial services FIEMAFE - 2 RRE (154,534) (1,015,502)
Net charge of impairment allowances on BB ENR
loans and advances 5,352 35,237
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties  #&MEATEESENE (152,503) (148,302)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HERENENE = (2,327)
Gain on disposal of Chong Hing Bank Limited PEGRERTERATNE 37 (2,891,156) -
Gain on initial recognition of BRBEAAEHERE RS
available-for-sale investments (84,159) -
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale-investments HEMHEEERE RS (26,853) (63,011)
Share of profits of associates B LR E R = (32,103)
Dividend income from investments UL ON (10,031) (11,108)
Interest income — non-financial services FEBMA — 2 BRH (69,216) (20,593)
Imputed interest income on non-current interest-free A—FEREAEHELERBEE
advances to investee companies B 2 HEMBHA (3,045) (2,951)
Share of results of joint ventures FbAErEXE 184 (107)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ BERXERTE 10,115 66,626
Finance costs — non-financial services HBHA - L RRH 82,428 89,133
Net losses (gains) on fair value hedge AFEHER FEE (KR) 1,883 (536)
Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BEREBENR (739) (6,303)
Exchange adjustments BN R 9,221 17,697
Release of prepaid lease payments for land ENLHAEEREH - 66
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital Kit&EE £ EE v KLHETE 148,268 (128,081)




2014 2013
—E-PE —T=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Decrease (increase) in operating assets: BEBERS(EM) :

Other advances to customers EHEFER 1,821,817 (4,200,689)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATEET AR SRERE (320,779) 1,148,425
Trade and other receivables 25 REMERER (29,960) (29,404)
Bills receivable MR 11,744 (33,523)
Properties held for sale FHENE 22,153 4,967

Placements with banks and other financial institutions with B=ERZE 2 FRETRER
original maturity over three months B g 2R 1,330,449 (2,663,657)

Money at call and short notice with original maturity a={EANRBRRERER
over three months 1,980,725 249,906
Advances to banks and other financial institutions ROREMEBREER - 2,164,842
Other accounts Hip#EIE 38,229 36,851
Trade bills B5%E (160,675) (1,711,314)
Exchange fund bills with original maturity over three months M-EAMIERSERE (89,983) (509,278)
Properties under development for sale FRPELENE (388,384) (157,978)
Properties under development BERPME (12,692) -
Inventories RE (3,527) (1,050)

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities: BBREZENED)

Deposits from banking customers RIIBRPER 593,061 3,656,156

Deposits and balances of banks and other financial institutions B=EAZE BT REMETS
with original maturity over three months BERT RS (1,009,567) (202,593)
Trade and other payables B REMENER 260,931 93,994
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements REBEBETLE SREE 167,159 822,976
Certificates of deposit FE 100,685 (104,633)
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 30,034 (106,862)
Cash generated from (used in) operations e meE (A B 4,489,688 (1,670,945)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BAEARER (16,393) (69,366)
The People's Republic of China Enterprise Income Tax paid ERTEARAMBLEHMEHR (8,119) (2,253)
Overseas tax refunded (paid) BRE(BR) MR 156 (23,050)
Dividend received on investments BUIRERE 10,031 11,108
Interest paid ERFIE (76,090) (522,745)
Interest received BRI S 267,907 1,328,167
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETBME (A 2BEFE 4,667,180 (949,084)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

llTDIﬁ@)ﬁ%

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z2-2—ME+-A=+—RAILEE

2014 2013
—E-mEF “E-=F
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
st BT BETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEHE
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of REHERIRBITERARZ
Chong Hing Bank Limited Remibss 37 (14,048,928) -
Purchase of held-to-maturity securities BABZIHB 2 ES - (18,738,706)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments RAEERE ZRELN (186,996) (1,400,026)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE BEREE (571,704) (39,060)
Purchase of an investment property BEREME (1,671,422) =
Increase in fixed bank deposits with more than BAZEAR S 2 RTF LM
three months to maturity when raised (1,569,732) (162,475)
Repayment from investee companies B E R A 191,714 130,000
Proceeds from redemption of held-to-maturity securities BRI 23|87 BHFEHE 1,087,711 20,012,004
Proceeds from sale and redemption of available-for-sale & REEE Al HEREH1SHE
investments 48,078 87,781
Interest received on available-for-sale investmentsand  WEAT K ER B RIEZFIE A
held-to-maturity securities EH2HE 37,018 302,391
Dividend received from Chong Hing Bank Limited WERBIRRITER AR 2R E 986,876 -
Dividend received from associates WEmE SRR Z IR E = 16,100
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREMEMEFE = 9,697
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEWE - BE L REFETE 3,146 8,472
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE (A MERETE (15,694,239) 226,178
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEH
New borrowings raised HMEGER 1,216,263 1,310,660
Repayments of borrowings BEER (2,064,676) (1,252,816)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company ERRARRERS (1,184,967) (106,003)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BEERRERE = (106,154)
Interest paid on borrowings B ERFE (109,594) (101,708)
Interest paid on loan capital EREEERNE (11,673) (62,006)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETBRAZEETE (2,154,647) (318,027)




2014 2013
“2-|mE “E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETL
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRBSEEBERNDFE (13,181,706) (1,040,933)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THEYEAR  F{zBE4&RE4L%FER 14,322,810 15,382,661
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES INEHRRES o (2,522) (18,918)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR ERVASRASEEEE 1,138,582 14,322,810
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, represented by: FRASRASEEER I
Money at call and short notice with original maturity of FEHBAIR=AAZBAR
less than three months BEER - 9,132,026
Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions BeRERETREGEBSERE 1,138,582 3,830,463
Placements with banks and other financial institutions with FEHEA PR =A 2 FHRET
original maturity of less than three months REME TR - 1,776,448
Exchange fund bills with original maturity of FEHBAIA=EAZ
less than three months SNEELZE - 300,000
Deposits and balances of banks and other financial institutions REHHALR=EA 2 RITREM
with original maturity of less than three months HERET T REH = (716,127)
1,138,582 14,322,810
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr © B 75 3k R Bft 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

1.  GENERAL

The Company is a public limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The address of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company is
25/F, Chong Hing Bank Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in notes 42 and 22

respectively.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
ICONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

The Group and the Company have applied for the first time in the

current year the following new interpretation and amendments to

HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants ("HKICPA™).

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

The application of the new interpretation and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and the Group’s and the Company’s
financial positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

. —REIR
ARBR/—REEBEIMRILZ ARERE
ERF EBROREBBER AR QA
(I EBH AP ]) B R - RAT) 2 MM EE
Wik T EE XMW AT EEHET TN
SRAIERERITR O+ A8 -

HREMBREARNRRZEEEEE (8
D25 -

REIZEEXERBYMERE R EZR -
DB RAIREECEZEEEK DRI
FIFAMTEFE 42 K222 ©

N
x

2. EHMIIRKEEIISBUBRS
HA(TSBMBRSER])

AEERARBARAFEBEREREATIEE
BEMAR(BESHMAG)EMZE
B E RN e R EANERT

BRHBREEAZI05
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
ICONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HIKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

The Group and the Company have not early applied the following

new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BRUBRERAZOR SRIA
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers? BENBREENZ 105 REZPR AN
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative? BEGHEAE R (BTE) rEDZ
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of BEGIEAZE6R (BITA R BENERBHENTET
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation* EAOIEAZ RS (BIL)  AE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants? BASHENEGTH (BN R BE: £EEEY
and HKAS 41 BRGHEAE NS (B3TA)
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions® BEerENEOR(BA)  RERNHE EEMC
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements*  ZAEHEHZVH(BIAX)  BUNBRRTRAERE
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an BRUBRERUZI0% REZEHEBECERAE
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture* (BAIA) RERGHER ERMEELES
EYCEACHE) A
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation BRVERSENE 0T REZEAHHS
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Exception’ (BEIK) - BARBREER
E0% (BTA) RE# G S
228% (B3T5)
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in BAYBRELAENR WELRCSRENEHE
Joint Operations* (%)
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 BAYEREEN (BTK) ERYBHREEN-_2-552
Cycle® “E-CERE RS
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 BAMBREER (BHTA) EAYBRSEN_F——F2
Cycle? TE-CERS ERMES
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 ERMBRERD (BTA) BANBREEN_2-—F2
Cycle? “E-MEEH FRAE
B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with RoBE—NE— A — BT BEL s EEHE

earlier application permitted R WA RS E A

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with 2 RoTE—+F— B —BR 2 ERA Y FEHM4E
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3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with 3 R-E—NME+A—A % HE s EEBHE4E ;':
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£
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with 4 RN-E—XE—B— AR RHGE s EEHEE 2
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oy

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with 5
limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted

R-F-NELA-RRZEAEHBRZFEHRE
B RELEBERGISN - AR

B Ebm-— &= |



N
N

$T0Z 140d3¥ TYANNY | QILINIT LNINLSIANI ONIH DNOHD NI
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
ICONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HIKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the

classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was

subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised version
of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include (a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and (b) limited amendments to the
classification and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair
value through other comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement

category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

. All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms of the financial asset giving rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end of
subseqguent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,

with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

2. [ERMWMIIREEITIEBUBHRS
HA(EBUWHHRSER]) (&)

SBUBHREENBOREM T H
R-ZTNFERM 2 BBPBREERNE IR
SINEREENDBEREZHRE - HER
R -THREI BB BREEREIRE
RUHSRABZVBERFTENRR IR
BE YR-ZF—=FFE—HEBFT - UH
A—REPEHANIRE R-_T—TFR
2 BB EREERE 955 —ELERTMR
AEXZMA)ERAEMEEZRERTE  &b)
HAETHEGBHTASIAEBEMEEK
ARRFEEIE] ((EREME2ERARA
FEEIRDFERR  HOBMAERE
EHBRERT -

BAUGEWEREAFE W 2 F B F St
T

. MABRAGHEREIR SR TE:
REAE | BERNZABEERR TR
BE  HROWBHEKALRFEER
BB BENKEBEHNRERE
ZEBRANMBE  BaHREeRE
ERINAERKERE 2 E/EH
BAMFACERRE - —RNEERE
FHRR AR RBIEKAGE - REW
RAKKEEORERRHESHEE
ZEBRATRHRBEZEG LA  UEkE
REEGRSREERBELZRSR
MER/INAE RREEAS ZHEH
BEHTE  WERBEMEEBARAF
BEMKRZHAE - IEEMEERR
BN R EGNER S RS RE
BAFEERE - i RIBFBRMH

WELERFEON - BRAATAHE M
EENAEMEEEEZ27IRERE (I

FRFEEMR) CHRAHEEEZS
i —RREMB e BRFER LS WA -



2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
IKONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HIKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 29, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as

fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit
loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a
credit event to have occurred before credit losses are

recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for
hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic
relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness
is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements
about an entity’s risk management activities have also been

introduced.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
ICONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HIKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future

may have a material impact on amounts reported in respect of the

Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. However, it is not

practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a

detailed review has been completed.

HIKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations

when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has
been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
ICONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HIKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HIKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH

CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of

HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the amounts

reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial

statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable

estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a

detailed review.

Other than as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and revised HKFRSs will

have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA and comply with the applicable requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern the preparation of
financial statements, which for this financial year and the
comparative period continue to be those of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with the
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are
set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the

historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial

instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value
in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its

entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:
. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of

the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting

rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the

size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,

including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even

if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the

Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of

the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on

initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement

of financial position at cost (including deemed capital contribution),

less any identified impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are

accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received or

receivable.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties

sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations. Under the equity method, an investment in
a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity

method from the date on which the investee becomes a joint

venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture, any

excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the

net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is

recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount

of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair

value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the

investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit

or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable

amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be a joint venture, or when the
investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former joint venture and the retained interest is a
financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between the
carrying amount of the joint venture at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that joint
venture had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a

reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership

interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in a joint venture but
the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies
to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or

liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group (such

as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from

the transactions with the joint venture are recognised in the Group’s

consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in

the joint venture that are not related to the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in joint

ventures are stated at cost, less any identified impairment loss.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a

completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest

in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value

less costs to sell.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including property under construction for such
purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value. All of the Group’s
and the Company’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which they

arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the

investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no

future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain

or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in

which the property is derecognised.

For a transfer from properties under development for sale to
investment properties (which is evidenced by commencement of an
operating lease), any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised

in profit or loss.

For a transfer from investment properties to properties under
development for sale which is evidenced by the commencement of
development with a view to sale, any difference between the fair
value of the property at the date of transfer and its previously
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. The property’s
deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date

of change in use.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated in the
statements of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained

profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development which are intended to be held for sale
are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the
costs of land, development expenditure incurred and, where

appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised during construction period.

Properties under development for sales are transferred to properties
held for sale when the relevant completion certificates are issued by

the respective government authorities.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by reference to

estimated selling price less selling expenses.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary

to make the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group

entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is
either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be

designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or

losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net

gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or

interest earned on the financial assets and is included in other gains

and losses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed

or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including

advances to investee companies, trade and other receivables, fixed

bank deposits with more than three months to maturity when raised,

other bank balances and cash and amounts due from subsidiaries of

the Company) are measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less any identified impairment (see accounting

policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest

would be immaterial.

AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables,

(b) held-to-maturity investments or (c¢) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group and the Company that
are classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on AFS equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of
AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets

below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss

when the Group’s and the Company’s right to receive the dividends

is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets

below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash

flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of that security below its cost is considered to be objective

evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation; or

disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties.

3. FT2EsHEHR (&)

e T H (&)

SREE (&)

AR & E ()

BN B RN R AU B R R B S B
AT E A T AR B ROEMRIBEER -

A HERNIRER AN ERTISRMAT
B MEXAFEETEERTE  HEPF
BRERAREGH R BAAG 2 ZMEOTT
RAEENITETE - & UKARBUE( 7T #E
BREEENREHREERFE8(RTXE
FATREERMEZEHHE) -

CREE(TEREEATEEFABEZZSR
BE)DRNEREPEEEAFERTBRE
PR EEREERVRERRELE AN
ZHREMMEYATBEBRERACREEL
EARKRERERINTE - B R/HERR
B

1

MRAHHEZRAREMS  ZEFIAF
BEABRIFEEREXAFRREREEH
FEEERALIRRE -

AR ERMEEMS
B

A2 BB ER

s BOAXRGEFHIBEEATHR
i

 ERAWH - mEMAERHERASH
B

© BRABARERESGETMEEMR X

. AN BRBSRRSRMEEZERDS
TEEE -



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the

impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s

carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest

rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the

impairment loss directly for all financial assets.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

When an AFS financial asset carried at fair value is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other

comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of investment revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition

of the impairment loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified

as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the

substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bank and
other borrowings, and advances from subsidiaries of the Company)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to

make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs

because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are

subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities

and Contingent Assets; and

. the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the

revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group and the Company derecognise a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group and
the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group and the Company continue to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group and the Company retain substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group and the Company continue to recognise the financial asset

and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group and the Company derecognise financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s and the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation

(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that

the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of

the time value of money is material).

IMPAIRMENT ON NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company
review the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to

determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit

or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,

rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective

control over the goods sold;
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction

can be measured reliably.

(i) Property development

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business is
recognised when the respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under current liabilities (as deferred income).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

(ii) Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established

(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

(iii) Sales of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are

delivered and titles have passed.

(iv) Management fee of property management

Management fee income is recognised when services are rendered.

(v) Adgency fee of property management
Agency fee income is recognised when services are rendered.

(vi) Hotel operation income
Hotel operation income is recognised when services are provided.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing

below.

LEASING
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as

an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASING (CONTINUED)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense

on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and

building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is released over the
lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and

equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they

are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of

each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in

the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the

business combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction

or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily

take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use

or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the

assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in

terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise except for:

. exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating
to assets under construction for future productive use, which
are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency

borrowings;

. exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to
hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting

policies below); and

. exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from

equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-

controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the

owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are

described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to

make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from

other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based

on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company has reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and concluded that (a) the Group’s
investment properties in Hong Kong are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time, (b) the
Group’s investment properties in the PRC are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore,
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties
in Hong Kong, the directors of the Company have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties
located in Hong Kong as the Group is not subject to any income taxes

on disposal of these investment properties.

4. LEHHET NG ARBRRE
ZEZRIR

R AR E 2 @5FBUR (KT FE 3 ATt 65 -
ARBEBAYARENE B EMIRREZ
BENMBEREEFLAE  E5RKR&-
At KA RRR T B EER kR R HERE
ZHMEAZAER BERERITESEHZT
fAEt AR -

fAat R RR IR FEE R R - 85t
stfe JTJH’W&HEZ{ 7] 2 B RER (W ET
(EFEZHRE) - HMERTHIRE MR K R (fin
&% TVQ;LZISHAQFEJ&*XHHF?)&E

ER8st BRNEZHIE

BREANEFTHEBINRETX)  UTEES

RERUGEAMBRRAERSBAREAY
B2 ARESTTHRR 2 BBRIEHIE -
BREYRIELERIR

A EAAAFEEREAFENRENRE
EZBEERBABRSIELCHBEEMS @ XN
RAEEZRHNAKREERERPEARKMN
B(HE])Z2REVEEEGRRR (A%
BAEEB ZEYRIIFIAE EREREEFE
HEWENFERBRIBMDEBEN R 2 XH
BARE  OAREETBEZRENENE
EREFRERZFRENZERBABOHL
Nz EBEAFE - At > st ELAKE
ERBZRENMENEEHRAR - ARFE
FERE  MAAFEEEAGENREY
EZEREETBBIHE2BREZ AREREK
WEBZIRE - R - ARAREEF G
ERFREVERBMETMAEN  AREAL
BRURBEZREMENRFEEE B
REATEER A



4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KKEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and

other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the

reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated and the
Company’s statements of financial position at 31 December 2014 at
their fair value, details of which are disclosed in note 18. The fair
value of the investment properties was determined by reference to
valuations conducted on these properties by an independent firm of
property valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
certain assumptions of prevailing market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions may result in changes in
the fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s investment
properties and corresponding adjustments to the changes in fair
value reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
carrying amount of these properties included in the consolidated and
the Company’s statements of financial position. The carrying amount
of Group’s and the Company’s investment properties at 31 December
2014 is HK$7,776,590,000 (2013: HK$5,962,913,000) and
HK$1,675,000,000 (2013: Nil), respectively.

Impairment of properties under development for sale/properties
held for sale

The Group’s properties under development for sale and properties
held for sale in the PRC and Hong Kong, details of which are set out in
the consolidated statement of financial position and note 20, are
expected to be recovered through future sales. In case the future
selling prices, less all related direct selling expenses, are less than their
current carrying value plus further costs to complete the properties
under development for sale to a saleable condition, the Group will
recognise losses. Future selling prices of properties in the PRC will be
affected by a combination of political, economic and other factors that
are beyond accurate prediction. The carrying amount of properties
under development for sale and properties held for sale of the Group
at 31 December 2014 is HK$1,055,855,000 (2013: HK$642,547,000)
and HK$566,908,000 (2013: HK$590,967,000), respectively.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

IKEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)

Recognition and allocation of construction cost on properties

under development for sale

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties under

development for sale during the construction stage and will be

transferred to profit or loss upon the recognition of the sale of the
properties. Before the final settlement of the development costs and
other costs relating to the sale of the properties, these costs are

accrued by the Group based on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the
development projects into phases. Specific costs directly related to
the development of a phase are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to phases are allocated to individual phases
based on the estimated cost of each phase as a percentage of the
total estimated cost of the entire project, or if the above is not
practicable, the common costs are allocated to individual phases

based on saleable area.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related cost allocation is
different from the initial estimates, any increase or decrease in the
development costs and other costs would affect the profit or loss in

future years.

Fair value of unlisted available-for-sale investments

The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale investments that are
stated at fair value are determined with reference to market values
of underlying assets, or arrived at using valuation techniques,
including market multiple approach and discounted cash flow
techniques, which included some assumptions that are not
supportable by observable market prices or rates, the inputs may
include prices information, volatility statistics, liquidity statistics and
other factors. In determining the fair value where discounted cash
flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on
management’s best estimates, earnings growth factor and the
adjusted discount factor. The carrying amount of the Group’s and the
Company’s unlisted available-for-sale investments at 31 December
2014 is HK$475,673,000 (2013: HK$404,651,000) and
HK$72,798,000 (2013: HK$110,886,000), respectively.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KKEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2014, unused tax losses of approximately HK$94

million (2013: HK$50 million) has been recognised as deferred tax

asset in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses of
approximately HK$364 million (2013: HK$309 million) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are less
than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which

such a reversal takes place.

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and

equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
the borrowings disclosed in note 30, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and various

reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and their associated risks. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of

new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6A. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s financial
services operations were discontinued. The disclosures in 2013 as set
out below do not include any amounts of financial instruments of

these discontinued operations.

6. &M IR

6A. ERM T RANH
BE_T—=Ft_A=t—HLEHFE X
SEHOREEZSRRBER - TXHEN
TE-ZHERBEYTERERNCRIELEDN
TR T AR -

THE GROUP F£8E THE COMPANY A 2A 5]
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z-NE “F=F “E-mE —F=F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BET T BETT
Financial assets SREE
FVTPL EATEBETABRE
Held for trading HIEEERR 11,972 11,042 11,972 11,042
Designated at fair value EERATEYR 346,942 27,215 346,942 27,215
Loans and receivables (including  EF R EKE (B
cash and cash equivalents) ReRhBeZEEER) 3,186,878 866,013 6,701,150 4,833,598
Available-for-sale investments At &ERE 826,119 406,288 123,873 112,146
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost B 3,023,010 3,891,527 4,386,056 3,328,140

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include investments in
securities, advances to investee companies, trade and other
receivables, fixed bank deposits with more than three months to
maturity when raised, other bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables and borrowings. The Company’s major financial instruments
are the same as the Group’s, except it further includes amounts due
from subsidiaries, non-interest bearing advances from subsidiaries

but excludes advances to investee companies.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), liquidity
risk and credit risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. ErMI A (&) =
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6B. HIFRREIEBIENIR (&) :Z:
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2
Market risk TG E %
() Currency risk () EEEER =
The Group and the Company undertake certain transactions AEBRARRARBEENRZEAINEETT g
denominated in foreign currencies and, hence exposures to exchange  FTA S X ERZE)IFE o g
it

rate fluctuations arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s monetary ~ RIREHIR - NEBRA QR ABBEEED
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period that BEEBEUIINEEI|E s EREEREK GE
are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of  BREIEZAT :
the relevant entities are as follows:
THE GROUP ££ &
Assets BE Liabilities & &
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NE —E-=f “E-mE “T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BET T BETT
HK$ B 7,054 = 258,100 258,292
United States dollars (“US$") e 294,276 251,124 - -
Renminbi ("RMB”) ARE 2,423,317 383,489 - =
THE COMPANY A2
Assets BE Liabilities &£1&
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE =% —E-|mE —T—=%
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT BETT BETT
us$ e 294,256 290,467 - —
RMB ARE 2,423,299 458,642 - -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

() Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group and the Company are mainly exposed to the fluctuation
of US$ against HK$ and of the HK$ against RMB. The following table
details the Group’s and the Company’s sensitivity to a 1% (2013: 1%)
increase and decrease in HK$ against US$ and 10% (2013: 10%)
increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB. The respective
percentages are the sensitivity rates used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for the respective
percentages change in the exchange rates. A positive number below
indicates a decrease in profit or equity where the HK$ strengthen 1%
(2013: 1%) against US$ and 10% (2013: 10%) against RMB. For a 1%
(2013: 1%) weakening of the HK$ against US$ and 10% (2013: 10%)
against RMB, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the

profit or equity, and the balances below would be negative.

6. =TI R (&)
6B. MEREKREIRBIRKIR (18)

ik ()
()  E¥EE (&)

AEERARREEMmMBETLABE RABE
RARBERERBNEAR TRIFHLAEE
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THE GROUP F£8 THE COMPANY A 2A 5]
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF “T-=F —Z-mE “Z-=F%
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BETT BETT
Profit or loss B
HK$ Vit (20,962) (21,567) - =
US$ e 1,445 1,184 1,445 1,512
RMB ARE 202,347 32,021 202,345 38,297
Other comprehensive income  H#t2ElE
US$ e 1,212 1,093 1,212 1,093




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(if)  Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a

financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of

a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest rates.

The Group and the Company are exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed rate structured deposits designated at FVTPL
and debt securities classified as available-for-sale investments (see
note 23 for details). The Group and the Company currently do not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant

interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its
variable-rate structured deposits, bank balances and borrowings. The
Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its
variable-rate amounts due from subsidiaries, structured deposits,
bank balances and borrowings (see notes 23, 24, 28 and 30 for
details of these financial instruments). It is the Group’s and the
Company’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating rates of interest

so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s and the Company’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s and the Company’s cash flow
interest rate risk are mainly attributable to fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) and London Interbank Offered
Rate (“"LIBOR”).
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6B. MEREKRERBIRKIR (48)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for the Group’s and the Company’s
derivative and non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis point (2013: 50 basis point) fluctuation is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

6. &M T R(#&)
6B Bﬁf“ﬂﬂ““éfﬂ@ff&—&ﬁk%("ﬁ)

misEk ()
3D FIER
BEE DT

TXHHRELTIREAEERARFR
ITERIFVTE T EAEREHIRAZ B RE
RETE - MEIMERRN RS PARKRE
MEmMTEEEFANAIN  REHETE
EIEA B [E N R R B B A _E 50 B T AR
FE( T —=F 50HTF) KREEBEYH
MERAEGIER LN EE AN ZE BT

(%)

2014 2013
—Z-NE —F-=%
Change in basis points Change in basis points
=Ly 1) g
+50 =50 +50 -50
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BB BT BETT
The Group K5E
Profit or loss (net of tax) BRI EE (BE%) (8,747) 8,747 (13,840) 13,840
Other comprehensive income Efemia (3,354) 1,304 (6) 6
The Company /N
Profit or loss (net of tax) RIEE (BH%) 12,063 (12,063) 5,854 (5,854)
Other comprehensive income Hth2EiE (3,354) 1,304 (6) 6

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

(iif) ~ Price risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to equity price risk through
their investments in equity securities. The management will closely
monitor the price movement of the securities and regularly review

the performance and asset allocation of the portfolio.

The Group’s and the Company’s equity price risk are mainly

concentrated on listed and unlisted equity securities.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(ifi) ~ Price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 10%
(2013: 10%) higher/lower:

. the Group’s and the Company’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2014 would increase/decrease by
HK$1,000,000 (2013: HK$922,000) as a result of the changes in
fair value of investments held for trading;

. the Group’s investment valuation reserve would increase/
decrease by HK$77,526,000 (2013: HK$40,512,000) as a result
of changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments; and

. the Company’s investment valuation reserve would increase/
decrease by HK$7,301,000 (2013: HK$11,098,000) as a result
of changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments.

The Group’s and the Company’s sensitivity to price risk has not
changed significantly from the prior year.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group and the Company
monitor and maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance its operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group and the Company rely on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2014, the Group and the
Company had available unutilised bank loan facilities of
approximately HK$745 million and HK$745 million (2013: HK$656
million and HK$548 million), respectively. Details of the amounts
utilised at the end of the reporting period are set out in note 30.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z2-2—ME+-A=+—RAILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s and the Company’s remaining

contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and

financial guarantee contracts. The tables below have been drawn up

based on the contractual maturities of the undiscounted financial

liabilities including interest that will accrue, with reference to their

respective contractual interest rate, and for those variable-rate

instruments, by using the appropriate prevailing market rates at the

end of the reporting period as stated in their contracts.

6- %HEIE(mE)
6B. HHRKREIZBEIR KRR (1)

nREBETRRE (&)
AREBERARRNETESRAE MM BHE
RENFARIIAFIIN T X - TRERE
AUBCRABRERENENANIHA
Ml - &G 5IAKE R R KFEHH
RTA  DH2RAREHAREFHTIHH R
mE °

THE GROUP A%

Repayable  Repayable  Repayable

Weighted  Repayable after after after Total
average  on demand Imonth 3 months 1year undiscounted
interest ~ orwithin  butwithin  but within  but within financial Carrying
rate Imonth 3 months 1year Syears liabilities amounts
EZXs, -fEAE =A% —£Z  RBEH
mE  —EAr =@AR —£R IFR  SEEE
TR iz &g &z Bz FSEE FEE
notes % HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz BRI BRI BETTL BETTL BETTL BRI
At 31 December 2014 RZE-—m&E
+ZA=1+-8
Trade and other payables BAREMEMER = 88,763 - - - 88,763 88,763
Bank borrowings with repayable BAEEEREEEY
on demand clause ZBITfER (i 138 10,000 - - - 10,000 10,000
Other bank borrowings EBER (i) 312 7,588 16,436 774015 2,349,556 3,147,595 2,902,482
Amount due to a joint venture  [ER —BAL A - 1,498 - - - 1,498 1,498
Amounts due to non-controling [ FEE R R 5
interests shareholders
— Interest bearing -8 192 9,069 - - - 9,069 9,069
— Non-interest bearing -85 - 11,198 - - - 11,198 11,198
Total &% 128,116 16,436 774015 2,349,556 3,268,123 3,023,010
At 31 December 2013 RIE-=%
toA=t-
Trade and other payables ‘é’%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ 7 - 109,351 - - - 109,351 109,351
Bank borrowings with repayable B2 REEEREREN
on demand clause LBR{TER (i) 179 80,000 - - - 80,000 80,000
Other bank borrowings ERTER (i) 241 7,480 64814 1659009 2218688 3949991 3,680,117
Amount due to ajoint venture  Eff—HAZHETT 0.10 1,886 - - - 1,886 1,886
Amounts due to non-controlling & JEHRIRM R %
interests shareholders
— Interest bearing —iE 2.02 9,260 - - - 9,260 9,260
— Non-interest bearing -65 - 10,913 - - - 10,913 10,913

Total ] 218890

64814 1659009 2218688 4161401 3,891,527




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6- %HEIQ(NE)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6B. B EMEIRB TN IR (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TBESERE (&)
THE COMPANY 4]
Repayable  Repayable  Repayable
Weighted ~ Repayable after after after Total
average  on demand Imonth  3months 1year undiscounted
interest ~ orwithin  butwithin  but within  but within financial Carrying
rate Imonth 3 months 1year Syears liabilities amounts
EZXd —f@RAE Z=fiRZE £ RERH
mE  -EARm =EAR —FR IER 2EEE
TR BE BE & = ik REE
notes % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it BB BB BETTL BRI BETT BETT
At 31 December 2014 R-E-DMF
TZA=+-AH
Trade and other payables B A REMEMER - 6,206 - - - 6,206 6,206
Bank borrowings with repayable B2 RERBEEREEEN
on demand clause BT (ii) 138 10,000 - - - 10,000 10,000
Qther bank borrowings EfBER (i) 1 2,763 5,525 693,150 1,361,504 2,063,032 1,922,569
Amount due toa joint venture  ER—FIA&MERE - 1,498 - - - 1,498 1,498
Non-interest bearing advances  MIBAFZ £ E8H
from subsidliaries - - - - 2445783 2445783 2,445,783
Financial guarantee contracts ~ BIBERAHN () - - - - 727,663 727,663 -
Total &% 20,467 5,525 693,150 4535040 5254182 4,386,056
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F
TZA=+-H
Trade and other payables B S REMEMER - 6,462 - - - 6,462 6,462
Bank borrowings with repayable A4HEEELEEEN
on demand clause LBER (in 179 80,000 = = = 80,000 80,000
Qther bank borrowings BRI (i) 1.85 4,792 50438 1634815 1536861 3235906 3,095,859
Amount due to a joint venture R —RAEMERT 010 1,886 - - - 1,886 1,386
Non-interest bearing advances HBARZ 2285
from subsidiaries = = = = 143,933 143,933 143,933
Financial guarantee contracts ~ BIBERAH (i) - - - - 728,464 728,464 -
Total &% 93,140 50438 1634815 2409258 4,196,651 3,328,140
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

6.
6B.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL RISKK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

notes:

®

(i

(i)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

The Group’s and the Company’s bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the “repayable on demand” time band
in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate
carrying amounts of these bank loans were HK$10,000,000 (2013:
HK$80,000,000). Taking into account the Group’s and the Company’s
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans will be repaid
after one year but within five years after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and interest
cash outflows will amount to HK$10,138,000 (2013: HK$81,896,000).

Financial guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts the Company
could be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty to
the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Company considers that it is more likely than not that no
amount will be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit

risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to

discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the

carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as

stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

6. &M T R(#&)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a

financial loss to the Company due to failure to discharge an

obligation by the counterparties is arising from:

. the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the statement of financial position; and

. the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantees issued by the Company as disclosed in note 39.

The Group had a significant concentration of credit risk at 31
December 2014, because (i) it had advanced approximately HK$5
million (2013: HK$193 million) to a single investee company (2013:
two investee companies) and (ii) placed its structured deposits of
approximately HK$347 million (2013: HK$27 million) with three
(2013: two) financial institutions. The directors consider that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality of the
counterparties and the balances are considered to be fully

recoverable.

The Company has significant concentration of credit risk on its

advances to its subsidiaries.

In order to minimise the credit risk of debts, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
management has regular liaison with the borrowers to understand
their financial position and to identify any early sign of potential
problems. Should any potential default situation arise, management
will take prompt actions to safeguard the Company’s and Group’s
assets. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Company’s and Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-

rating agencies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z2-2—ME+-A=+—RAILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Some of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets are

measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The

6- EHEIE‘(HIE)

6C. ERMTERFEMESS

AREBEMARRRED

PEMEBEENSREHR
MAFEEAE TRERABSREEZ

following table gives information about how the fair values of these A EEFEHARNMNES (EEmME @ BMHES
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation JEREBAMEAZE) -
technique(s) and inputs used).
2014
—Z-NE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—RA EZR E=RA et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT BETT BETT
THE GROUP biN-4c]
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEFARR
LEMERE
Non-derivative financial assets RIERBERB ZHTE
held for trading SHEE 11,972 - - 11,972
Financial assets designated as EERATEE;A
at FVTPL BRZEREE - 346,942 - 346,942
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AftHESFEE
Listed equity securities IR AES 299,582 - - 299,582
Unlisted equity securities ELEMBRAES - - 402,875 402,875
Listed debt securities IhEKES - 50,864 - 50,864
Investment funds REES - - 72,798 72,798
Total k) 311,554 397,806 475,673 1,185,033
2014
“E-mE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—RE EZRA E=RE et
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
THE COMPANY FUNG
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEMABRYZ
Non-derivative financial assets BIEEERR AL
held for trading SREE 11,972 - - 11,972
Financial assets designated as BERATEETARR
at FVTPL LEBEE = 346,942 - 346,942
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AftHESREE
Listed equity securities FRAES 211 - - 211
Listed debt securities IhEKES - 50,864 - 50,864
Investment funds REES - - 72,798 72,798
Total o 12,183 397,806 72,798 482,787




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6C. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. =TI R (&)
6C. e T BN FEESE (&)

2013
—T-=%
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R5 EZ51 E=HAl fk]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BETT
THE GROUP FiN-E]
Financial assets at FVTPL RAVEESABR
LEREE
Non-derivative financial assets BIEEERBRZIFTE
held for trading SHEAE 11,042 - - 11,042
Financial assets designated as EERATEETA
at FVTPL BazeREE = 27,215 = 27,215
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ At HELFEE
Listed equity securities IR AES 473 - - 473
Unlisted equity securities FIMRAESR = - 293,765 293,765
Listed debt securities IhEKES - 1,164 - 1,164
Investment funds RERES = - 110,886 110,886
Total ok 11,515 28,579 404,651 444,545
2013
“F=F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-7l &5 F=47 ok
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BETL BETT BETL
THE COMPANY NG
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEFABRZ
Non-derivative financial assets RIERBERB ZHTE
held for trading SHREE 11,042 = = 11,042
Financial assets designated as EERATEEFAER
at FVTPL LEREE = 27,215 — 27,215
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ F{tHELRERE
Listed equity securities A ES % - - %
Listed debt securities IhEEES - 1,164 - 1,164
Investment funds REES — — 110,886 110,886
Total ot 11,138 28,579 110,886 150,403

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of listed equity securities are determined with

reference to quoted market bid prices from relevant stock

exchanges.

The fair values of debt securities classified as available-for-sale
investments are determined based on indicative prices provided by
the dealers and brokers. In addition, the Group makes comparison of
the indicative prices with the prices obtained from pricing services
providers and with the values calculated using valuation models such
as discounted cash flows method to substantiate the indicative prices
of the debt securities. The key inputs used in the valuation models
are the interest rate data, which are observable at the end of the
reporting period. The objective of valuation models is to arrive at a
fair value estimation that reflects the price of the financial instrument
at the reporting date, which would have been determined by market
participants acting at arm’s length.

The fair values of structured products designated as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are calculated using discounted
cash flows analysis derived from quoted interest rates, which are
observable at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of investment funds are determined by using
valuation technique of market approach, which included some
assumptions that are not supportable by observable market prices or
rates. The inputs used in estimating the value of investment funds
include the original transaction price, recent transactions and market-
multiple of the same or similar instruments, completed or pending
third-party transactions in the underlying investment.

The fair values of unlisted equity securities are determined with
reference to market values of underlying assets, which mainly
comprise investment properties held by the investee company. The
valuation of the properties was principally arrived at using the
comparison method, in which property is valued on the assumption
that the property can be sold with the benefit of vacant possession.
Comparison based on prices realised on actual sales of comparable
properties is made for similar properties in the similar location.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

6. =TI R (&)
6C. e T BN FEBESE (18)
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ARMBIFTRRSRESHERNGTER
SHEEMALE  ASBEBEIEHFOERE
EREMORE - HERANEIZEAZEH
RNEREIE - ZBBE RS BRE A AR
G- HEEANERRERIRREMT
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6C. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial

6. =TI R (&)
6C. e T BN FEESE (&)

EREEE =B D FETEN

assets
THE GROUP KEEH
Financial
assets Available-
designated for-sale
at FVTPL investments Total
EERATERE
FABHEZ
tREE AHHERE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—-F—H&H 419,101 404,595 823,696
Total net losses recognised in profit or loss NERRNER L FERER (493) - (493)
Total net gains recognised in other REM2ERENER RS
comprehensive income Fak - 66,301 66,301
Purchases BE - 28,425 28,425
Matured/disposals B8/ e (418,608) (84,594) (503,202)
Return of capital contribution RETE - (3,634) (3,034)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale BEEHEAGLESE - (6,442) (6,442)
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-E-=4+-A=1+—-B&H - 404,651 404,651
Total net gains recognised in other REMZERENER 2 F R
comprehensive income k] - 104,431 104,431
Purchases BE - 13,455 13,455
Matured/disposals B/ e - (46,864) (46,864)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-Z-F+-A=+—B&H - 475,673 475,673
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6C. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial

assets (Continued)

6. =TI R (&)
6C. e T AL FEESE (&)

SRMEEF =B D FEFENFE ()

THE COMPANY AN
Available-for-sale
investments
AHHERE
HK$'000
BRI
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=F—-A-H 134,743
Gain recognised in other comprehensive income REM 2 EREAER 2 K 35,946
Purchases BE 28,425
Matured,/disposals 38/ e (84,594)
Return of capital contributions (note 23(d)) RETE (5 23(d) (3,634)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZB-=F+-A=1—-H 110,886
Loss recognised in other comprehensive income REMZERENER BB (4,679)
Purchases BE 13,455
Matured,/disposals B8/ e (46,864)
At 31 December 2014 —E-ME+-A=1+—H 72,798

During the year ended 31 December 2013, of the total net gains or
losses for the year included in profit or loss, HK$493,000 gains are
related to these investments held at the end of the reporting period.
Fair value gains or losses of these investments are included in net

gains on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of HK$109,110,000
(2013: a gain of HK$66,301,000) related to available-for-sale
investments held at the end of the reporting period.

The majority of the Group’s and the Company’s investments are
valued based on quoted market information or observable market
data. A small percentage, 3.3% and 0.7% (2013: 0.4% and 2.1%), of
total assets of the Group and the Company, respectively, are based
on estimates and recorded as Level 3 investments. Whilst such
valuations are sensitive to estimates, it is believed that changing one
or more of the assumptions to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions would not have a big impact on the Group’s and the

Company’s financial positions.

RZE—=F+ZA=+—0" £BHEA
MAFEFHEBEERER  Hp B
493,000 Tz B R S B A E BIF A%
BEM - WENDRFERGEXBREE B

SERATEEFABEZER T A2 FI
HEap2m AR EB109,110,000 (==

— =% : #¥%66,301,000 T E) - ERWME
AR RRANAHEERERR -

REBRRABKRITHOREBEIRET
HGHREXABENTHSEIRMETE - 58
BRRRFHREEN—/NBOEE - #33%
KO7%(ZF—=F : 04% & 21%) * JHRIE
AEERAARE=ZBRIREFERALRE -
S BHE G REEEHE - EE — @
BARZEEEEERAENRERRE - 48
ETREHARNEERARN BB RERE
RRE -



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The management performs regular reviews to determine the

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurement.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers or other service providers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The respective management team reports the findings to the
Board of Directors of the Company regularly to explain the cause of

fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities is disclosed

above.

6. =TI R (&)
6C. e T BN FEESE (&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

7. SEGMENTINFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resources allocation or assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods and services delivered or provided. No operating
segment identified by the chief operating decision maker have been

aggregated in arriving at the reportable segment of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. Property investment — investment and letting of properties

2. Property development — development and sale of properties

3. Property management — provision of property management

services

4. Treasury investment — dealings and investments in securities

and other financial instruments

5. Trading and manufacturing — manufacture and sale of

magnetic products
6. Hotel operation — management and operation of hotels

An operating segment comprising the financial services operations
carried out through the Chong Hing Bank Limited and its subsidiaries
(“CHB” and collectively the “CHB Group”) was reclassified as
discontinued operation during the year ended 31 December 2013.
The segment information reported set out below does not include
any amounts for these discontinued operations, which are described

in more detail in note 13.

7. NEER

RARRPITES  NFELEREA - 3
BRNEHFZDBREMER I DEBER
Nz e BB ARHAHEEMRBIEERD
rEE - BEAFTTELERREABAZE
BB ERARE 2 2RO

BEBR GRS ERAEE Y ¥HRE
|AMMT :

1L MERE -
2. PEBR-DEERLHEE
3. MEERE-REMEEERS

WMEREREE

4. HBRE - BFREMERTANRKS
k#FE

5. BSNEE-WMMEMBERHE

6. JEEKE - HEKERER

FBAIERITER D E R EMERE (85
RIT] R [RIERITEE ) AT R
W%@E’U%ﬁ%aﬁf\‘:g*EEJr:HE%*
HIESEEMDBREILEE - TXE®MH
DEERLTE %Eiiaﬂtﬁ““iﬂ‘kﬁ’ﬂi
M8  DRIEGENE - THBIANME
13 °



7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. HNEEN(E) %
. >

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS NEWBRNRES =
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from AT AERS|MREFDEZ AEEFELL =
=)

continuing operations by reportable and operating segment. W R EE DT - g
Property Property Property Treasury  Trading and Hotel Segment ;—U|
investment  development  management investment manufacturing operation total  Eliminations  Consolidated =
NERE WELR nEER GBRE g5REE EELE B 2t &8 %
HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 m

Al

ik Ao BETT ik o BETT it a o BETT BETR BT BRTR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 Z=2-R&

ToRET-ALEE
Segment revenue PENE 351,197 25,530 24,467 78,669 46,097 49,240 575,200 (9,325) 565,875
Comprising: g
— revenue from customers - BFli 350,989 25,530 15,628 78,301 46,007 49240

— inter-segment transactions (note) - £ERR 5 (fih) 208 - 8,839 278 - -

Operating expenses (98,943) (48,653) (16,373) (61,695) (43,728) (47,483) (316,835) 9,927 (306,908)
Losses on changes in fair value of

financial instruments at FVTPL - - - (1,152) - - (1,152) - (1,152)
Net exchange (losses) gains (1,728) 11,656 2 (19,357) - (©)) (9,410) - (9,410)
Losses on disposal of property, LENE B E&uﬂ%@f

plant and equipment - - - 0] ®) = (10) = (10)
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale  HET&EEREE

investments - - - 26,853 - - 26,853 - 26,853
Gain on changes in fair value of RENFLTERE NG

investment properties 152,503 - - - - - 152,503 - 152,503
Gain on initial recognition of BB ER AN

avallable-for-sale investments - - - 84,159 - - 84,159 - 84,159
Segment profit (1oss) Rt (5E) 403,029 (11,467) 8,116 107,475 2,361 1,794 511,308 602 511,910
Finance costs B (82,428)
Share of results of joint ventures flnaetsse (184)
Profit before tax from continuing RREERRER

operations 429,298
note: Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. Misk : EEANERERTESE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (CONTINUED)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from

continuing operations by reportable and operating segment.

Property Property Property Treasury
investment  development  management Investment
ES NEER nEER BiskE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT BETT AT L

7. DEER (&)
NRRBNRFRE (1)
UNTRIZZERREB DB 2 AEERFELE
Wza K B DT o

Trading and Hotel Segment
manufacturing operation fotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
BHREE BESE PR HH &4

HK$ 1000 HK$'000 HK$ 1000 HK$000 HK$1000
BRI BT BT BRI BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z=%-=%

ToRET-ALEE

Segment revenue PERE 270,109 12,538 16,022 24,056 42,49 51,177 416,398 (12.910) 403,488

Comprising: g

— revene from customers - BRli 267,990 12538 8,577 20,710 424% 51177
— inter-segment transactions (note)  — £ERR S (fitz) 2119 - 7445 3,346 - -

Operating expenses BERX (121,425) (15828) (23,009) (4,007) (42,309) (52,009) (258,587) 16,116 (242.471)
Gains on changes in fair value of BATRENABEZER

financial instruments at FVTPL TEATEERSNG = = = 1,902 = = 1,902 = 1,902
Net exchange gains (losses) B (B8 4302 6,943 (19) 9,054 (5 8 20126 - 20126
Losses on disposal of property, LENE  BERAESR

plant and equipment - (98) - (307) (32 - (437) - (437)
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale  HETHEEREE

investments = = = 61,429 = = 61,429 = 61429
Gain on changes in fair value of BEVEINSHE S

investment properties 146,392 - - - - - 146,392 - 146,592
Segment profit (loss) HER (B8) 299378 5,555 (7,18%) 9,127 150 (804) 387,223 3,206 390,429
Finance costs BERA (89.133)
Share of resuls of joint ventures filhaetsss 107
Profit before tax from continuing SETERH AR

operations 301,403

note: Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit/
loss represents the profit earned by/loss from each segment without
allocation of share of results of joint ventures and finance costs. In
addition, administrative costs incurred by the treasury investment
segment on behalf of other segments are allocated to respective
operating segments on the basis of revenues earned by individual
operating segments. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

MaE - EEAHERERHEIIE -

DB BREWNEI Mz NGBS
AHERAER - D BRF B EIBE ARG APT
HRELEXBENPBERAZBERTEDE
PRERER 28 F,/ RE 2 B8 - thsh - BB
= ‘*E*éﬁfﬂ%ﬂ‘%"*ﬂkﬁﬁﬁﬁf&ZﬁB{ﬁX
AERERZEB DR 2 Wt D i E
EEDM - ZK%@ELAEV“*EJ?%WEK &
EBREANZR YREERDERFZN R
= -



7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. HNEEN(E)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES nNpEENGgRE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by U TAEEHRS B2 AEBEEREES T

reportable segment:

Segment assets AEARE
2014 2013
“E-mE —T-=F%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

Continuing operations FERLE

Property investment MERE 8,054,537 6,423,380
Property development MELRE 3,003,448 1,965,283
Property management MEEE 9,595 2,629
Treasury investment HBREE 3,473,315 1,070,182
Trading and manufacturing EUNES: 86,565 79,811
Hotel operation BIEEE 17,397 19,531
Total segment assets PREERS 14,644,857 9,560,816
Investments in joint ventures RELEIRE 2,584 2,768
Deferred tax assets EEHBEE 7,235 680
Assets relating to discontinued operations HERHEEEBNEE = 84,876,561
Consolidated assets BABE 14,654,676 94,440,825

Segment liabilities nEEE
2014 2013
—E-NFE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

Continuing operations FEgE

Property investment MERE 186,728 140,851
Property development MERE 249,722 51,677
Property management MEEE 3,379 3,740
Treasury investment HBIEE 796 989
Trading and manufacturing BHREE 12,103 8,379
Hotel operation BIEEE 7,943 7,029
Total segment liabilities PEBELE 460,671 212,665
Taxation payable BRI 4,664 5,413
Borrowings EE N 2,934,247 3,782,176
Deferred tax liabilities RERAAE 218,318 209,887
Liabilities relating to discontinued operations HERHEEEBNER = 77,214,362
Consolidated liabilities FRAE 3,617,900 81,424,503
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &#Z=%

—EETZA=T-RLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. PEEN(FE)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) nEEENGRE(18)
Segment liabilities (Continued) PEEE(E)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating ARERSERBE LRI EEIEER - BRR
resources between segments, all assets are allocated to operating A& TCENERLBEERBEEN IEE
segments other than interests in joint ventures and deferred tax E¥NSEEZEEDE - MBREMETK - ER
assets. All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than RIEZERIBEEIN FIEBEH D EE XK
taxation payable, borrowings and deferred tax liabilities. DFE .
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hith NEERN
Continuing operations FEgE
Property Property Property Treasury  Trading and Hotel
investment  development management investment manufacturing operation  Consolidated
NERE NERR NEER HERE  B5REE EESE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BETT BETT BT BT
Amounts included inthe measure of B ENEEERNBEE
segment results and LEE:
segment assets:
2014 —E-ME
Capital additions EREM 5,459 576 = = 855 2,465 9,355
Depreciation g 4,868 657 3 685 1,619 2,83 10,115
Interest income A8IA - - - 69,216 - - 69,216
2013 “E-ZF
Capital additions BAEM 3,290 218 = 1,650 160 600 5918
Depreciation & 2,888 699 4 783 1,770 5,604 11,748
Interest income BN = = = 20,593 = = 20,593




7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7.08EMN (8)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) HhnwEam (§)
Geographical information HEER

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and other parts of AEEZEFLABEELHBEEAmibE -
the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing operations HARKNEBFEL LI RER ZWZE R T
from external customers is presented based on the location of the IREEEKEME 2R - BERNEEIER
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is  BVEEMERBIREEFTEME 24 o
presented based on the geographical location of the assets.
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Revenue Non-current assets
Wz FRBEE

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NE —E=F “Z-MF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BET T BETT
Hong Kong e 280,525 150,160 6,381,826 4,568,111
PRC e 285,350 253,328 3,420,895 2,827,833
565,875 403,488 9,802,721 7,395,944

Non-current assets exclude advances to investee companies and  FFRBEE T BEBMN KK E QB RIELTH
deferred tax assets. THEFE °

Information about major customers FEEXFER

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31 BE-_Z—HWF+-_A=t—HAR-F—=
December 2014 and 31 December 2013 contributing over 10% of the FT-A=1+—RILFE TEBRKEEFZ
total operating revenue of the Group. WS B AEEELERSEBBIO% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z2-2—ME+-A=+—RAILEE

8. REVENUE 8. W&

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from continuing AT AEAREBFESEHRFZRIEHINT

operations is as follows:

2014 2013
“Z-NE =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Gross rental income FHEEEA 350,989 267,990
Sales of properties held for sale HFHENEHE 25,530 12,538
Sales of goods ENEE 46,097 42,4%
Interest income on structured deposits, available-for-sale &R - ATHHERE - BTER
investments, bank deposits and bank balances Rggrz MEMA 69,216 20,593
Property management and agency fees MEERLAEE 15,628 8,577
Hotel operation income iy ON 49,240 51,177
Dividend income from listed investments held for trading  EH#{EEERRE 2B EMA 128 117
Dividend income from available-for-sale investments AHHEREZREMA 9,047 -
565,875 403,488
9. OTHERINCOME 9. Hfthik A
2014 2013
“E-mE “Z-=F%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Continuing operations FELE
Imputed interest income on advances to BRTFHEED A HERBHRA
investee companies 3,045 2,951
Others Hip 9,925 7,128
12,970 10,079




10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Hth i m R &8 =
>
2014 03 B
—E-pE -z [&
o)
HK$'000 HK$000 g
BETT BRI =
Continuing operations SERe =
R
%
Gain on initial recognition of available-for-sale BAEANENERE RS o
investments 84,159 =
(Losses) gains on changes in fair value of BATEETABRZEBTIA
financial instruments at FVTPL 2RV BEZE () (1,152) 1,902
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties RENMELNTEEEZDUE 152,503 146,392
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale investments HER T ERENE 26,853 61,429
Net exchange (l0sses) gains I 5% (B8) Wia (9,410) 20,126
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BRRRESE (10) (437)
252,943 229,412
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. B ¥ Ak
2014 2013
—E-NE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Continuing operations BEKE
Interest on borrowings wholly repayable within five years: AR A2 SEE 2 EHFIS.
Bank loans RITER 108,448 100,583
Other borrowings g 1,146 1125
109,594 101,708
Less: Amount capitalised as cost of properties under B ABENT190% 2 738% M E AL L&
development for sale at a capitalisation rate (Z2—=F:197%Z204%)
ranging from 1.90% to 7.38% SR ERBRIERT L
(2013: 1.97% to 2.04%) per annum BALEE (27,166) (12,575)
82,428 89,133
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. FrEfz

2014 2013
—2-mF —B-=%
HK$°000 HK$000
BETT BRI
Continuing operations SERe
The charge comprises: T
Hong Kong Profits Tax BETEH
Current year AEE 15,705 14,668
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (54) (9,575)
15,651 5,093
PRC Enterprise Income Tax MBI G 7,516 1,760
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") 1 B ET 603 525
8,119 2,285
23,770 7,578
Deferred taxation (note 31) EIERIE (F7E2)
Current year AEE 2,722 20,452
26,492 27,830




12.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12. P8z (5&) =
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the AFEZHIBS HEFEEB@m KT G2 (jz:
consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: HERT >
o)
2014 03 B
t- 12 it St I =
HK$’000 HK$'000 g
BETR v
Profit before tax (from continuing operations) BREARN (RERHELE) 429,298 301,403 o
Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) &% &165% (= F—=45 : 15%) &
LEEBHER 70,834 49,731
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures FiEEetERE RBTE 30 (18)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose  FANHBRZ KB TE 4,052 32,406
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BERPA B2 (60,603) (53,175)
QOverprovision in prior years BAFEREAE (54) (9,575)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTBEB L NBE 10,881 12,085
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously not FAABRBANBER HBTE
recognised (1,774) (3,670
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in -~ MEMEZEREE 7 HEA R AH X
other jurisdictions a7 2,636 2,847
PRC LAT BT ET 603 525
Others it (113) (3,326)
Tax charge for the year (relating to continuing operations) AFERIES H (BEELLHRE) 26,492 27,830
notes: MEE

(@) Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of the  (a)  &BEFIE L IHIRIE R EF Z b5 E R TR FlHIR D=
estimated assessable profit for both years. 16.5% (ZZF—=4 :16.5%) 71 & °

(b)  Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income — (b)  ZHEARLMECEEROE ([REMEHIE])
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the ROEMSHEERME  PEMNBARKEEA
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2013: 25%). 25% (=T —=4 : 25%) °

(c) Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates (o) HREMAZEEEETRELREGHEEER 2 RITH
prevailing on the relevant jurisdictions. EEHE o

(d) The Group has estimated the tax provision for PRC LAT according to  (d)  HREFEBZRRAGEBRTE - AEBDTEREF

the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. B4 I (ER o ELBE 4 IR ER B EURR T BRI
The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax MEREHEMNRIREMTE  BHEETETRA
authorities upon completion of the property development projects and AEEE T IS ER B BN EELE -

the tax authorities might disagree with the basis on which the provision
for LAT is calculated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE
13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS/ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE
On 25 October 2013, the Group entered into an irrevocable
undertaking with Yue Xiu Enterprises (Holdings) Limited (“Yue Xiu
Enterprises”), an independent third party to the Group, whereby the
Group agreed to accept the offer in respect of disposal of a
maximum of 218,359,628 CHB shares (representing approximately
50.2% of the issued share capital of CHB) held by the Group. CHB
Group is engaged in the provision of banking and related financial
services. The assets and liabilities attributable to the CHB Group,
which as at 31 December 2013 were expected to be sold within
twelve months, had been classified as “assets classified as held for
sale” and “liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale”
respectively and were presented separately in the consolidated

statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013.

The disposal of 167,951,210 CHB shares was completed in February
2014. On the same date, the Group acquired an owner-occupied
property from CHB Group for a consideration of HK$2,230,000,000
and a special dividend of HK$1,960,732,000, representing the gain
on disposal of the property to the Group, was declared by CHB
Group. Upon the completion of the disposal, the Group’s remaining
shareholding in CHB shares was remeasured to fair value and
classified as available-for-sale investments. Subsequent to the
disposal of CHB shares and the special dividend by way of
distribution in specie, as set out in note 16, the Group holds
17,397,945 CHB shares, representing 4.0% of the issued share capital
of CHB.

The profit from the financial services operations carried out by the
CHB Group, which are presented as discontinued operations, for the
current and preceding year and the gain on disposal of CHB Group

were as follows:

13. PREKRERFEHN "DER

FHESE=E

RZZT—=F+A=Z+HB A5SEHALES
rEER)ARAF ([BAERZE]) CBIRA
EEMME=F) I LI BEAFE R - &
bt - NEER B AL E &% 218,359,628 %
REBEFE 2 BIRRITRGD (BRI ERITE %
TIRARAI502%) 2 B4) - AIEIRITEE A
BRE/RETRIEES RS - A|HRTE

B S REFR_E—=F+=-A=1+—A8
ZENT_EARLENEERBES N

BITBAFHEEE] M2 BAFHEE
EZHBRE] YR _FT—=F1+_7
=t RAZBEEMBIRARANBILZS -

HE 167951210 [REIBIRITIRI —FER =T
—MEZARK - RA AEBEUAREEE
2,230,000,000 7Tl B R ERITEE B WS T — &
A% BlERITEEEMRERAAEREE
P iS I e B IR BIAR B8 #51,960,732,000
Lo B EEIER AEBNAFAENE
BIRITIRG - MATFEEEFFEALDER
AHEERE - ZRENSAIERTRM KA
EWMHIRENRERFRREE - S EERAM
7116 - AN £ B 5 5 17,397,945 1% Al #5R 17 f%
7 ARBIERITE BITIR AN 4.0%

RERERAEFERA EIH
TRRBEBRLER JE'ifET SEFF W
E2JRBERIELEZ®MMNT

2014 2013

—E-mE “Z-=F

HK$°000 HK$000

BETT BETTT

Profit of financial services operations for the year AEESRREEL G 92,451 552,163
Gain on disposal of financial services operations (note 37) H&4 BRI L7~ izs (FixE37) 2,891,156 -
2,983,607 552,163




13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS/ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

SALE (CONTINUED)

The results of the financial services operations for the current and

preceding year were as follows:

13. ERIERERFEEN"DER

FHEEEE(/8)

AEER EFESBRBGQENEENT -

2014 2013
—E-RE —T=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Interest income FEBA 248,502 1,593,618
Interest expense FEZH (93,968) (578,116)
Net interest income FEMA S5 154,534 1,015,502
Fee and commission income ERRBEEBA 36,051 283,196
Fee and commission expenses =G (9,716) (73,263)
Net fee and commission income ERLARWATE 26,335 209,933
Net losses on change in fair value on BATEBTNER ERIAZDTERE
financial instruments at FVTPL ZEHEFH (29,717) (22,414)
Net (losses) gains on fair value hedge NEEEERZ(BE) Yim (1,883) 536
Other operating income HEERA 58,208 232,019
Operating expenses BETL (92,007) (780,401)
115,470 655,175
Net charge of impairment allowances on loans and EXRELER
advances (5,352) (35,237)
Gains on disposal of property and equipment HEME LS Bl 749 6,740
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale securities HER T EEF N - 1,582
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties — #&ME 7 AL BEZ B - 1,910
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME W - 2,327
Share of profits of associates it - 32,103
Profit before tax BB R R 110,867 664,600
Income tax expense BRI (18,416) (112,437)
Profit for the year KEEGH 92,451 552,163
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE
13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS/ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE (CONTINUED)

13. PREKRERFEHN "DER
FHEEEE(/8)

2014 2013
—2-ME —F-=f
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI
Profit for the year from discontinued operations BRERERFERNOETIEE
include the following:

Depreciation and amortisation WERES - 54,878
Auditor's remuneration S 546 4,607
Directors” emoluments EEEA = 12,638
Employee benefit expenses EERAZM 58,124 451,402
Release of prepaid lease payments for land BRI S 2 & - 66
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and building T REFELRAZEE 5,163 32,888
Gross rental income from investment properties REMEERSIA 986 8,219

Less: direct expenses for investment properties that W EREEHSRMACRENSER
generated rental income during the year LeER (189) (1,034)
797 7,185

During the year, the discontinued operations received HK$4,927.7
million (2013: used HK$932.7 million) in respect of the Group’s net
operating cash flows, received HK$1,001.3 million (2013: received
HK$198.3 million) in respect of investing activities and paid HK$11.7
million (2013: paid HK$168.2 million) in respect of financing

activities.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of CHB Group at

the date of disposal are disclosed in note 37.

FRAERIEKEELAAEFBNKLEHSREF
EHHN 15 7 % 4,927,700,000 L ( =& — =4 :
FA 2 7% 932,700,000 7T ) + & E &) A E A
1375%1,001,300,000 7L (ZE— =4 : BUSH
#198,300,0007T) * BB EE HEAIAEB
BN700000t( ZF —=F: X B K
168,200,000 7T) °

BIERITEBENEERAERTEE MR
HEFERMFTEI -



13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED 13. 2#&1E&
OPERATIONS/ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

SALE (CONTINUED)

Except for the property sold by CHB to the Group upon disposal of ~ BRRFEMK H &

CHB Group, the major classes of assets and liabilities of the CHB
Group as at 31 December 2013 have been presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and are set out below:

BIBURTTREIR - mAIBRT
ETAKREZMEI - RIERITRER =
—=F+ZA=+—BZEEREE IR
BUBRRNERANRS 2 EEEHILAT

BREERNNER

FHESEE(8)

ZF A O

2013
—T-=f
HK$'000
BT
Cash and short-term funds EGFREREHES 16,145,437
Placements with banks and other financial institutions FHROREpHBRER—ZETZEAR
maturing between one to twelve months Bkl g 7,920,502
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 170,135
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ?E’&¥Ff§p+)\?aﬁﬁzﬁ§§§ 92,179
Available-for-sale securities A EES 5,433,241
Held-to-maturity securities BRIEES 8,326,722
Advances and other accounts BERREMIRE 45,761,325
Tax recoverable e 7%
Interests in associates BEDNRER 199,437
Investment properties (note a) wEME (MiTa) 136,575
Property and equipment (note b) % RaRs (D) 635,702
Prepaid lease payments for land (note ¢) BERLBEEER (o) 2,403
Deferred tax assets ELHBEE 1,501
Goodwill HE 50,606
Assets classified as held for sale PERFHEEE 84,876,561
Deposits and balances of banks and other financial institutions — $#17 R MBI K BT 2 Rt 1,674,231
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements B#ERE T HE SREE 1,256,657
Deposits from customers TEEH 70,923,145
Certificates of deposit BHE 563,003
Derivative financial instruments fTEemIA 100,653
Other accounts and accruals HEtRERERER 852,430
Current tax liabilities FERHIR 52,146
Loan capital EEER 1,766,436
Deferred tax liabilities ERTEAE 25,661
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale PEAGLEEE ABAR 77,214,362
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED 13. PRERERFERN NDER
OPERATIONS/ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR FHESEE(8)
SALE (CONTINUED)
notes: BisE
(a)  The carrying amount of investment properties comprises: (@ BREVMHEFRAERSE
2013
—2-=F
HK$'000
BETT
Leasehold properties HEE
Held in Hong Kong on medium-term lease (10 — 50 years unexpired) RREROEERENEE FBRFERTZERTER) 102,300
Held outside Hong Kong on medium-term lease (10 — 50 years unexpired) RYBEAEEARINMNGE FRFHARTERTER) 34,275
136,575
(b)  The carrying amount of property and equipment comprises: (b) YN EEREEERE
2013
—E-=F
HK$'000
BB
Leasehold land and building HETHRIET 506,076
Equipment & 129,626
635,702

The carrying amounts of leasehold land and building shown above comprise: HIHETRETRRERST

Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong EEEEANEE T RET
Held on long-term lease (over 50 years unexpired) RREEOHE MREHBALTF) 50,151
Held on medium-term lease (10 — 50 years unexpired) RPEENHE MREERTEITER) 448,266
Leasehold land and buildings outside Hong Kong EEBRIMBE L RET
Held on medium-term lease (10 — 50 years unexpired) RPEENHE MREERTEITER) 7,659

506,076

(¢) At 31 December 2013, the prepaid lease payments for land is held (© RZE—=F+ZA=+—0 BN THHEENK
outside Hong Kong with medium-term lease of 10 — 50 years DEBBRINEE - HAOBH SR (FerFBHR
unexpired. TERFTFA) -

During the year ended 31 December 2013, an amount of REEZZ—=F+_A=+—HILFEAN "

HK$13,618,000 relating to the disposal group classified as held for ¥ AFHEHREE P RKKEE12618000LE

sale had been recognised in other comprehensive income and ~ REMEEREANERIL Z5T ARER -

accumulated in equity.



14. PROFIT FORTHE YEAR

14, IREEEM

2014 2013
—Z-mE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI
Profit for the year from continuing operations FECE AR RFENBRTIIEE
has been arrived at after charging:
Directors” emoluments (note 15) EEYEACIREAY) 32,907 23,207
Other staff costs Hih B IHR 35,572 32,715
Staff retirement scheme contributions, net of HK$131,000 8 TiR(EFIEEE + BB 255131000 7T
(2013: HK$27,000) forfeited contributions (ZZ—=%: ¥ 270007T) 1,919 2,078
Total staff costs BT AL 70,398 58,000
Auditor's remuneration ZEEHE 2,568 2,706
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BERRENE 10,115 11,748
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings T REFEEEAN7AS 18,269 17,781
and after crediting: WA
Gross rental income from investment properties REMEERS WA 350,989 267,990
Less: direct expenses of investment properties that B EREEMSRAZRENEERER
generated rental income during the year (46,026) (36,144)
304,963 231,846
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z2-2—ME+-A=+—RAILEE

15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 15. EF - THREZNESHE
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 14 (2013: 14) B KEMNTUR(ZE—=F:4H)EF
directors were as follows: ZBewnT -
Other emoluments E &4
Performance Retirement
Salaries and related incentive scheme Total
Fees  other benefits payment (note c) contributions emoluments
FMR £EREN RINEA
ik Hitgdl RBe (o) SRR e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BETT BT T BT T BT
2014 —E-E
Liu Lit Mo (note d) BRE (5 d) 250 8,763 25 300 9,338
Liu Lit Chi (note e) BRI (Mite) 150 6,924 25 283 7,382
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BsiE 150 5,266 25 285 5,726
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B33 150 2,983 1,010 200 4,343
Lee Wai Hung TER 150 2,830 125 261 3,366
Liu Lit Chung BRA 150 1,052 - - 1,202
Andrew Liu EER 150 - - - 150
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BRE 150 - - - 150
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses 858 250 - - - 250
Tong Tsin Ka EER 250 - - - 250
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher 3743 250 - - - 250
AuKam Yuen, Authur ERR 250 - - - 250
Ma Hung Ming, John o 57 250 - - - 250
Cheng Yuk Wo el - - - - -
Total @it 2,550 27,818 1,210 1,329 32,907




15. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 15. EF - THRBNEEME (E)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Other emoluments Eft#4

Performance Retirement
Salaries and  related incentive scheme Total
Fees other benefits payment (note ¢) contributions emoluments

R SEREN RIKER
fika Htngdl  RES (e FTEIER as
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BETT BT BT BETL

2013 “E-=F

Liu Lit Mo (note d) BEUE (F3d) 450 9,196 34 294 9,974

Liu Lit Chi (note e) BRE (Mrte) 300 7,980 280 336 8,896

Liu Kam Fai, Winston BeE 150 4,904 170 233 5,457

Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher  Ziii, 400 2,542 140 153 3,235

Lee Wai Hung TEH% 150 2,563 154 212 3,079

Liu Lit Chung BAA 100 1,024 = = 1,124

Andrew Liu B 100 - - - 100

Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BlE 250 2,433 135 162 2,980

Ng Ping Kin, Peter ERE 200 - - - 200

Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HER 200 - - - 200

Tong Tsin Ka EER 200 - - - 200

Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher %% 200 — - - 200

Au Kam Yuen, Authur BiE 100 - - - 100

Ma Hung Ming, John 5k 100 - - - 100

Total st 2,900 30,642 913 1,390 35,845

notes: BitsE

(@) The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2014 and 2013 were (@) Z—Z—HWFER_T—=FAEEREEaHFAT
all directors of the Group and details of their emoluments are included o 2HARNKREES  HFHER EXXAEE -
in above. No directors waived any emoluments in the years ended 31 HE_Z—NFR_ZT-—=FF+_A=+—HILF
December 2014 and 2013. - BEEERERBEANS

(b)  During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the  (b) FR @ AEBHERAENESFKAEESHAL(E
directors or the five highest paid individuals (including directors) as an BES)INEEEHE  (EAMAXREE S MAR
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for EEF BB - FRUEEERELN
loss of office. None of the directors have waived any emoluments B o
during the year.

(¢)  The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference (0 &HEZZF-—HFt-A=+—RBILMEFERRRE
to the individual performance of the directors and approved by the Rz ZMREENELNREET  WHAEER
remuneration committee of the Group for the two years ended 31 MZ B gt -

December 2014.

(d) The Chairman of the Company and as Managing Director up to 26 (&) AARFERETEFLLEZ_T—NF_A
February 2014. Z+RB-

(e) The Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company (¢) RIZZE—NF_A-+ AREELRARIZEEHE

with effect from 26 February 2014.

EIRFRITIRAREL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

16. DIVIDENDS 16. iR
2014 2013
—E-mEF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: EREEIDEZIRE :
Interim dividend paid for 2014 — HK$0.15 per share ZE-PEERTPHREERAR S T
(2013: interim dividend paid for 2013 — HK$0.10 (ZT—=F: 2 =F4HREEKR
per share) BE0107T) 56,788 37,858
Final dividend paid for 2013 — HK$0.18 per share “E-ZHFERAEREEREL 018 T
(2013: final dividend paid for 2012 — HK$0.18 per share) (ZZE—=%: —E——FXHKE
SRAL08TT) 68,145 68,145
Special cash dividend paid due to the completion of Arm i EsERTERMS R
disposal of CHB Group — HK$2.80 per share ZEARERESRER 280
(2013: Nil) (ZZ—=%:8) 1,060,034 =
Special dividend by way of distribution in specie (note)  UEHH R ARE 2 BRI & (i) 704,165 -
1,889,132 106,003
note: For the Annual General Meeting held on 22 April 2014, a resolution was ~ MizF: RZZE—NFNA -+ ZARTHRREAFAE
duly passed to declare a special dividend to be satisfied by way of - mBA-EEREIREARAER  UEMHDIK
distribution in specie in the proportion of 1 share in the issued share MR - FI0RARAFE BHITIRAR R8I BR
capital of CHB for every 10 shares in the issued share capital of the TTE BT « FARER S KL 37,858344 % 8] H
Company. A total of 37,858,344 CHB shares with an aggregate market RITHR(D - BT EAB 704,065,000 7T °
value of HK$704,165,000 was recognised as distribution during the
year.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in  RWMEHR BE-_T-—HNF+_A=+—
respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 of HK$0.25 per share, BIEFE 2 REREFRBEE 0257 &4
totalling HK$94,645,860 (2013: final dividend in respect of the year & #94,645860L(=ZE—=F : #HE_FT
ended 31 December 2013 of HK$0.18 per share, totalling —=F+ZA=+—HLEFEZRHAKES
HK$68,145,019) has been proposed by the directors and is subject BB 0.187T + & LB #68,145,0197T) * &L H
to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general EZgE:H:  WAREERERFAFTAg LE
meeting. SIRERE



17. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

FROM CONTINUING AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$2,356,935,000 (2013:
HK$543,460,000) and on 378,583,440 (2013: 378,583,440) ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$393,600,000 (2013:
HK$268,905,000) and on 378,583,440 (2013: 378,583,440) ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$1,963,335,000 (2013:
HK$274,555,000) and on 378,583,440 (2013: 378,583,440) ordinary
shares in issue during the year which is HK$5.19 (2013: HK$0.73).

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there were no

potential ordinary shares in issue during the years 2013 and 2014.

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. SRERRW
7'5@?%.EEE§§”:W(T(%

AR REEERERBF TIERBERFE
NN R AR R FE 5 2 A1 5 2,356,935,000 7T
(ZZF— =4 : B 543460,0007T) RAFE
BT T @A378583440 (=T — =4 ¢
378,583,440 %) 5T # »

=+ 43 4 EX
REBERKE

RARRREEERERBF TKEARFEE
AR BN FEAG 2 5 I %5 393,600,0007T (=
T— =4 : F#268905000T) RAFEE
B 17 A AR 378583440 ( = F — =
378,583,440 B8 ) 5+ & ©

REERIEKE

ARG EEEFRERRF - HEREAF
&R B IR R 15 2 s ) 7 #61,963,335,000
(=T — =4 : B¥274,555000 7T) R AR
EE BT E BN 378583440 (=T — =4 :
3785834400k ) st B - RABEBSORT(ZF
—=%F : B¥0737T) °

TE-ZHERCE-MFERSEEMEEE
B A EEER AN TME2W

18. ¥&EWMHE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
K58 NG|
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
FAIR VALUE AVEE
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%—-Ff—H 5,868,769 -
Currency realignment g 89,787 -
Disposal of an investment property HERBME (7,370) -
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss PRFSEBARER . AT RELNFE 148,302 -
Transferred to assets classified as held for sale (note 13)  BEZEH 1B AL EEE (Fi:13) (136,575) -
At 31 December 2013 WZE-=F+ZA=+—H 5,962,913 -
Currency realignment EHAR (10,248) -
Addition of an investment property (note 19(c)) AR EME (fHE19(0)) 1,671,422 1,813,493
Net increase (decrease) in fair value recognised in RN EENERZ A FEEEMN
profit or loss (R 38 152,503 (138,493)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MF+=A=+—H 7,776,590 1,675,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 18. REME (18)
notes: BisE
(@) The carrying value of investment properties shown above comprises: (@ LR EMEZEREERE
THE GROUP A%E THE COMPANY A2 7
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE & —E-mE “E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BRI BT BETT BETT
Properties held under: BTROBE 2 0E -
Long leases in Hong Kong WEEZ RHHEL 4,732,900 2,939,500 1,675,000 -
Medium-term leases in Hong Kong it it 30,000 29,200 = -
Long-term land use rights in the PRC ReEy RE T ERE 268,095 260,112 - -
Medium-term land use rights in the PRC Rz P E RE 2,745,595 2,734,101 - -
7,776,590 5,962,913 1,675,000 -
(b)  All of the Group’s and the Company’s property interests held under  (b) AEELRAAREEROFAUENAS 2B
operating leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value MERRIIEAFEEERGZ  WHERIEKR
model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties. WEWE -
(¢)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes (©  AFEEFENHERE

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, it is the Group’s
policy to engage third party qualified external valuer to perform the
valuation. The management works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation technique and inputs to
the model.

On 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, independent valuations
were undertaken by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Ltd., an
independent firm of professional valuers not connected to the Group
which has appropriate professional qualifications and recent experience
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

The valuations have been arrived at using direct comparison method
and income capitalisation method, where appropriate. In the valuation,
the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units as well as other
lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation
rate adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by the
valuer for the similar properties in the locality and adjusted based on
the valuers’ knowledge of the factors specific to the respective
properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use.

EFHEEMEN AT EER  AEENBERDER
FEZNRERINELEMETHE - BEERE]
RESNEHEMR A (F - BIEE A S ERITH
HERE G AR -

RZE—NMF+—A=+—AK=T—=F+=A
=t+—A ButERARBHEETEERER
REBEST - BRI RBEARBR T EHE Y BT HE
RERTT - BRI A ERTHERAE
EOEEER AL -

HEAEZELBARREENMOE(RERE) G
e MEET - MEMA ARG ELNTISEET
SEZAMAE EDER WA BRI R ENE
BB RGNS o EFAANEAMCLLRTIE
SEHEMRZBENBUDEBRSEMSH N
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HRFERRA

EAAMEATEER
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 18. REME (18) §
notes: (continued) B () =
@)

(¢)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued) © AFEEFENHERRE (&) ,32
=

The following table gives information about how the fair values of TRIEEBIREMEN AT EEBNAETHEL 8
these investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation (BEHEREFRANGEERTIREAZE) - UK ;OU
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into BATEEFERHOEAZEHA] LUBRSEHHRE 1
which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) B #BAFEEFENHEENTEAREBETHORA %
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value (B—Z2F=HH) - e
measurements is observable. o

As at 31 December 2014 R-Z-HmE+=-A=+—8

THE GROUP AER

Investment properties

held by the Group in the consolidated  Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservable
statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
KE@BENRENES TAUBAGENEHA
RIFEEBMRE ATEERE HERDRIEZY EATUBASHNEZE ATEENEER

Investment properties in Hong Kong Level 3 Direct comparison method

The key input is

(1) Unit sale rate Unit sale rate, taking into account the ~ An increase in the unit sale rate used
time, location, and individual factors, ~ would result in an increase in the fair
such as frontage and size, between  value measurement of the investment
the comparable and the property, properties by the same percentage
ranging from HK$2,100 to HK$9,700  increase, and vice versa.
per square feet on gross floor area
basis for properties and ranging from
HK$400,000 to HK$490,000 per unit

for car park spaces.
EEBNRENE E=45 ERLEE
FERUA
M EfHERR ZRIBHE  HERABNEENELRS FRNELHEEE B 82RE

ZENERER - mPEEERFE 8 WENHATEENERRENEALE
UHEBREABEDNETAREESE M R2HA -

2I00 TEA 9700 T (REEEER

1) BB RIEE%400000TE

FBH 490,000 T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn 6 B 15 R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (continued)

(c)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 (Continued)

18. &M (18)
BiaE : (&)

(© AFEENEAGEEREE)
R-Z-—NE+=-A=+—A0(#)

THE GROUP (Continued) AEE (%)
Investment properties
held by the Group in the consolidated  Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservable
statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
KE@BENRENES TAUBAGENEHE
RIFEEBMRE APEERE HERDRIESY EATTHRSHNZE ATEENER
Investment properties in Hong Kong Level 3 Income capitalisation method
The key inputs are
(1) Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account A slight increase in the reversion yield
of the capitalisation of rental income  used would result in a significant
potential, nature of the property and  decrease in the fair value
prevailing market condition, ranging  measurement of the investment
from 2.5% to 4.8%. properties, and vice versa.
(2) Monthly market rent Monthly market rents, taking into A slight increase in the monthly
account of time, location and market rent used would resultin a
individual factors such as frontage significant increase in the fair value
and size, between the comparable measurement of the investment
and the property, ranging from properties, and vice versa.
HK$29 to HK$280 per square feet per
month on lettable area basis.
EEENREME E=15 lhé:y-vNld
O HREBEHERE ZRIMEBERAEAL - MEMER FRANRRENEREEFEN LA &
BETR EiTREETAL%Z48% SRENENATEEIZFEATHR
RZTM% °
() BAMEHS ZRIEHE B RUBNEENELY FRANSATSHASEAEM LT €2

ZENENER  prmkFE  8AT REMENATEEHEFEALA R
SRETARILARBEISTAREE 2R
B9 BR80T



18.

©

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 (Continued)

18. R&EMK (1&)
FsE © (4

©  AFEEFEMGHERE(E)
R-ZE-—NE+=-A=+—A0(#)

THE GROUP (Continued) AEE (%)
Investment properties
held by the Group in the consolidated  Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservable
statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AEEBENRENED TAUBAGENEHE
RIFEEBMRE APEERE HERLREEZE EATTBASHNZE ATEENES
Investment properties in the PRC Level 3 Direct comparison method
The key input is
(1) Unit sale rate Unit sale rate, taking into account the  Anincrease in the unit sale rate used
time, location, and individual factors, — would result in an increase in the fair
such as frontage and size, between  value measurement of the investment
the comparable and the property, properties by the same percentage
ranging from RMB6,550 to increase, and vice versa.
RMB24,700 per square meter on
gross floor area basis for properties.
TEHREMRENE E=H7 ERLEE
(M EMAERR ZRIEHE B RUBNERNELY FRANENHEEER-BLH €%RE

ZANENEZ  pMERERFE B WENATEENERAENEALE
UHEBREABEDNETIRBAR M RZHR -

#6550 TE AR 247000 (REGIEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn 6 B 15 R B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (continued)

(c)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 (Continued)

18. &M (18)
BiaE : (&)

(© AFEENEAGEEREE)
R-Z-—NE+=-A=+—A0(#)

THE GROUP (Continued) AEE (%)
Investment properties
held by the Group in the consolidated  Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservable
statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
KE@BENRENES TAUBAGENEHE
RIFEEBMRE APEERE HERDRIESY EATTHRSHNZE ATEENER
Investment properties in the PRC Level 3 Income capitalisation method
The key inputs are
(1) Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account A slight increase in the reversion yield
of the capitalisation of rental income  used would result in a significant
potential, nature of the property and  decrease in the fair value
prevailing market condition, ranging  measurement of the investment
from 6.5% to 7.0%. properties, and vice versa.
(2) Monthly market rent Monthly market rents, taking into A slight increase in the monthly
account of time, location and market rent used would resultin a
individual factors such as frontage significant increase in the fair value
and size, between the comparable measurement of the investment
and the property, ranging from properties, and vice versa.
RMB164 to RMB821 per square meter
per month on lettable area basis.
ERENREME E=15 lhé:y-vNld
O HREBEHERE ZRIVEBERAEAL - MEMER FRANRHENEREEFEN LA &
BEMR - EiTRERTHOS%ET% . SRENENATEEHEEEATS
RZTM% °
Q) BAMEHS RIS B RUBRNEENELY FRANSATSHSEAEM LT €2

ZERERNER  prmKFE  8AT REMENATEEHEFEALA R
BRETARITLEARETAREA ZHAR -
REG4TEARESTT °



18.

©

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

18. REMK (1&)

Bt - ()

(© AFEEFEMNGEEBRE(E)

As at 31 December 2014 (Continued) R-B-OF+=A=+—H (@&
THE COMPANY /N
Investment properties
held by the Company in Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservable
the statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AEEBENRENES ARG ENE YR
REHBHRF ATEERE HERORTEZE EATTHASHNEH ATEENBE
Investment properties in Hong Kong Level3 Income capitalisation method
The key inputs are
(1) Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account A slight increase in the reversion yield
of the capitalisation of rental income  used would result in a significant
potential, nature of the property and  decrease in the fair value
prevailing market condition, ranging  measurement of the investment
from 3.3% to 4.0%. properties, and vice versa.
(2) Monthly market rent Monthly market rents, taking into A slight increase in the monthly
account of time, location and market rent used would result in a
individual factors such as frontage significant increase in the fair value
and size, between the comparable measurement of the investment
and the property, ranging from properties, and vice versa.
HK$52 to HK$135 per square feet per
month on lettable area basis.
EEBNRENE E=R5 WEHERL
TERYA
O TEBEMHEIRE ZRI\OBLMAEAL MEMER FANEHENREEEFEN LA €
BEMR - BiIREETAIINEL0% . SBRENMENATEEHEFEATHR
RZIA
QFATERE ZRIERE B RURNEENELY FRANSATSHEEAEM LA €2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (continued)
(c)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013

18. &M (18)
BiaE : (&)

©  ATEETEREEDE ()
W=g-=£+=A=1—A

THE GROUP RE
Investment properties
held by the Group in the consolidated  Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservable
statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AEEBENRENES TABAGLNEHE
REEHBRRE ATEERE HERORTELE EATTHASHNEH ALEENER
Investment properties in Hong Kong Level3 Direct comparison method
The key input is
(1) Unit sale rate Unit sale rate, taking into account the ~ An increase in the unit sale rate used
time, location, and individual factors, — would result in an increase in the fair
such as frontage and size, between  value measurement of the investment
the comparable and the property, properties by the same percentage
ranging from HK$2,100 to HK$7,900  increase, and vice versa.
per square feet on gross floor area
basis for properties and ranging from
HK$350,000 to HK$462,000 per unit
for car park spaces.
EEBNRENE E=5 ERLEE
TERYA
() BAHERR ZRIEHE B RERNERNERS FRANELHEEK-BLA €2RE

ZBBERRE - WMERERFE & WENATEESRAKNE S L
UHEBRTABESAGTHIRARE M RZHA-

2100 TEAR 7900 T (REEEHR

i) - RESH A BhEE 350000 L FE

8 462,0007T °



18.

©

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013 (Continued)

18. R&EMK (1&)
FsE © (4

©  AFEEFEMGHERE(E)
R-B-—=F+=ZA=+—H @&

THE GROUP (Continued) AEE (%)
Investment properties
held by the Group in the consolidated  Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservable
statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
EEBENRENES TABAGLNEHE
REEHBHRRE ATEERE HEROREELE EATTHASHNEH ATEENBE
Investment properties in Hong Kong Level 3 Income capitalisation method
The key inputs are
(1) Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account A slight increase in the reversion yield
of the capitalisation of rental income  used would result in a significant
potential, nature of the property and  decrease in the fair value
prevailing market condition, ranging  measurement of the investment
from 2.5% to 4.8%. properties, and vice versa.
(2) Monthly market rent Monthly market rents, taking into A slight increase in the monthly
account of time, location and market rent used would result in a
individual factors such as frontage significant increase in the fair value
and size, between the comparable measurement of the investment
and the property, ranging from properties, and vice versa.
HK$29 to HK$280 per square feet per
month on lettable area basis.
EEBNRENE E=R5 WEHER
TERYA
O TRBEMHEIRE ZRIBOBTMAEAL MEMER FRANHERENEGREEFENLA €
BETR  BiINEXTA2LNEL%N . SREMENATEEHEFEATHR
RZIA
QFATERE ZRIERE  ERERNEENELY FRANSATSHSEAEM LA 82

ZENERER  mAARFE  §AT RENENATEEHEFEALA R
SRTARTERERETIREE 2%
B9 EAM 80T
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

18.

©

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

18. &M (18)

Bt - ()

(© RAFEEFAENGHERR(E)

As at 31 December 2013 (Continued) R-B-—=F+=ZA=+—H @&
THE GROUP (Continued) AEE (%)
Investment properties
held by the Group in the consolidated  Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservable
statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
EEBENRENES TABAGLNEHE
REEHBHRRE ATEERE HERORTFELE EATTHASHNEH ALEENER
Investment properties in the PRC Level 3 Direct comparison method
The key input is
(1) Unit sale rate Unit sale rate, taking into account the ~ An increase in the unit sale rate used
time, location, and individual factors,  would result in an increase in the fair
such as frontage and size, between  value measurement of the investment
the comparable and the property, properties by the same percentage
ranging from RMB6,440 to increase, and vice versa.
RMB24,700 per square meter on
gross floor area basis for properties.
EHRESREME E=R5 ERLEE
TERYA
() BAIHERR ZRIEHE B RERNERNELY FRANELHEEK-BLA g2RE

ZBHENRE  IMERERFR &
NHEBREABESAGTIRAAR
H6,4400 TE AR 24,700 (RERE
HEE)

NENATFEESSRAGNED LA
me RZHHh



18.

©

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013 (Continued)

18. R&EMK (1&)
FsE © (4

©  AFEEFEMGHERE(E)
R-B-—=F+=ZA=+—H @&

THE GROUP (Continued) AEE (%)
Investment properties
held by the Group in the consolidated  Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservable
statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
EEBENRENES TABAGLNEHE
REEHBHRRE ATEERE HEROREELE EATTHASHNEH ATEENBE
Investment properties in the PRC Level 3 Income capitalisation method
The key inputs are
(1) Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account A slight increase in the reversion yield
of the capitalisation of rental income  used would result in a significant
potential, nature of the property and  decrease in the fair value
prevailing market condition, ranging  measurement of the investment
from 6.5% to 7.0%. properties, and vice versa.
(2) Monthly market rent Monthly market rents, taking into A slight increase in the monthly
account of time, location and market rent used would result in a
individual factors such as frontage significant increase in the fair value
and size, between the comparable measurement of the investment
and the property, ranging from properties, and vice versa.
RMB164 to RMB821 per square meter
per month on lettable area basis.
TEHRESREME E=R5 WEHER
TERYA
O TRBEMHEIRE ZRIBOBLMAEAL MEMER FRANHERENEGREEFEN LA €
BETR  BiIBEETACSHET% . SBREMENATEENEFEATHR
RZIA
QFATHERE ZRIERE  WERURNEENELY FRANSATSHEEAEM LA €2

ZENERER  mARRFE  §AM RENENATEEHEFEALA R
BRETARTEAERTETAREA 2R -
REBATEARESANTT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (continued)

©

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

The fair values of all investment properties at 31 December 2013 and 31
December 2014 were measured using valuation techniques with
significant unobservable inputs and hence were classified as Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties, the
Group used market observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment properties.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs
where inputs can be derived observable quoted prices in the active
market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt
valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a
material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the Company.

18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#n 6 B 5 3R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #E-ZF-WE+-A=+—HBIL5E

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. % - BMERRK

Furniture, fixtures,

Leasehold land motor vehicles
and buildings Plant and and computer
(note a) machinery equipment Total
HETHRET Gl £B =5
(GET) ELE REKEE g
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BT BETT BETT
THE GROUP TEE
CosT AR
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=5—-R—A 957,506 28,904 665,212 1,651,622
Currency realignment EHRER 406 780 3192 4378
Additions 0 6,675 1,651 30,734 39,060
Transferred to assets classified as ~ BRENEAFLELE
held for sale (note 13) (Ksk13) (659,066) - (565,426) (1,224,492)
Disposals HE (560) (320) (10,119) (10,999)
At 31 December 2013 RZB—=F+ZA=1—H 304,961 31,015 123,593 459,569
Currency realignment ol - (92) 1,320 1,228
Additions 0 - 855 8,500 9,355
Transferred to investment BREERENE o)
properties (note ¢) (223,477) - - (223,477)
Disposals & - (75) (669) (744)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A=+—H 81,484 31,703 132,744 245,931
DEPRECIATION AND WER#E
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%—f—H 163,454 14,923 506,338 684,715
Currency realignment AR 359 409 1,558 2,326
Charge for the year AEEYH 18,744 1,770 46,112 66,626
Transferred to assets classifiedas  BEZENBAFHERE
held for sale (note 13) (Ksk13) (152,990) - (435,800) (588,790)
Eliminated on disposals R ERY (195) (288) (8,347) (8,830)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=Zf=1—H 29,372 16,814 109,861 156,047
Currency realignment EHRER - (51) (191) (242)
Charge for the year AFEYH 1,531 1,619 6,965 10,115
Transferred to investment EREREME Hic)
properties (note ¢) (21,656) - - (21,656)
Eliminated on disposals R ER - (67) (667) (734)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+ZA=+—H 9,247 18,315 115,968 143,530
CARRYING VALUE FHE
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A=+—H 72,237 13,388 16,776 102,401
At 31 December 2013 N e = 275,589 14,201 13,732 303,522
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w6 B F5 ¥k K B 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. M% - MERxRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Furniture, fixtures,
Leasehold land motor vehicles
and building and computer
(note a) equipment Total
HETHRET HR £E 2§
(fizEa) RERKRE faE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT
THE COMPANY b NG|
CosT B%
At 1 January 2013 N-_ZT—=F—H—H 555 14,073 14,628
Additions 0 - 601 601
Disposals e - (1,049 (1,049
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+-HA=1+—H 555 13,625 14,180
Additions byl 606,057 3,157 609,214
Disposals k- - - _
At 31 December 2014 RZE—mN&E+=-A=1+—H 606,612 16,782 623,394
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION WE R
At 1 January 2013 WZE—=F—-F—H 11 12,285 12,296
Charge for the year KEEZH 11 772 783
Eliminated on disposals R ER - (1,049) (1,049
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-A=1+—H 22 12,008 12,030
Charge for the year REETH 10,455 1,015 11,470
Eliminated on disposals R ER 3 - - -
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-mE+-A=+—H 10,477 13,023 23,500
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2014 RZE-mE+=-A=+—H 596,135 3,759 599,894
At 31 December 2013 RZE—-=F#+-HA=1+—H 533 1617 2,150




19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. M*%  -WMEK%E(E)
(CONTINUED)
notes: B E
(a) This includes certain leasehold land as the allocation between the land (@) HBRETWEREE LMW REFEERELS
and building element of certain properties cannot be made reliably. il - ETHELMNAGREES -
As at 31 December 2013, included in leasehold land and building is RZE—=F+ZA=+—H0 HETHREFE
property with carrying value of HK$269,268,000 sold by CHB to the E—EEREE R B 269268000 T2 W - R
Group upon disposal of CHB Group. FERG B BRI TR E R - RAIFRITE TAKE -
(b)  The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on  (b) L% - BE LEHE B i EGEENTHE
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: RITE -
Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease or 2% to 3% HETREF BB 2 T FEs 2% &= 3%
Plant and machinery 10% B R e 10%
Furniture, fixtures, motor vehicles and 10-20% RIFA - HE - BEEH 10-20%
computer equipment LEMZE
() During the current year, the Group’s owner-occupied property with  (¢c) AFERN - AEELERIHIRITEER - EHREHR
carrying value of HK$201,821,000 was transferred to investment BIERITEENSERON BEEEREBE
properties upon commencement of an operating lease to CHB Group, 201,821,000 W E AV EHBEREMET - BH
subsequent to the disposal of CHB Group. Fair value of the owner- MENRTFHEERERE A RE%1,671,422,0007T
occupied property at the date of transfer amounted to HK$1,671,422,000 BHRFAYESHEBHSAGERRZBE
resulting in a gain on valuation of HK$1,469,601,000 credited to property 1,469,601,000 7T °
revaluation reserve during the year.
(d)  The carrying amounts of leasehold land and buildings shown above ()  LilfE+LiEREFHERRERRE
comprise:
THE GROUP A% THE COMPANY &2
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mEF —T-=% —E-mEF —2-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong: REBNRE L LET
Held on long-term lease BREROEE
(over 50 years unexpired) (FIRFEREaTE) 66,160 269,268 595,613 -
Leasehold land and buildings outside Hong Kong: REBUNMBE L RIET
Held on medium-term lease HRHEOEE
(10-50 years unexpired) (FIRFERTERTER) 6,077 6,321 522 533
72,237 275,589 596,135 533
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2014, properties under development for sale and

properties held for sale of HK$1,055,855,000 (2013:

HK$642,547,000) and HK$566,908,000 (2013: HK$590,967,000),

respectively, are expected to be recovered within one year after the

reporting date.

As at 31 December 2014, properties under development amounting
to HK$714,892,000 (2013: HK$702,200,000) represent the cost in
relation to the redevelopment of a property located in Hong Kong

into a hotel.

The cost of properties held for sale recognised as an expense during
the year amounted to approximately HK$22,153,000 (2013:
HK$14,480,000).

THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, properties held for sale of HK$2,808,000
(2013: HK$2,808,000) are expected to be recovered within one year
after the end of the reporting period.

20. BRDME HHEBRDME
FHEEMR

K&ES

R-T—NE+-_A=+—0 " HFHEXE
TYMERFEEMES DRNEEE
10558550007L( = & — = F: & ¥
642,547,000 7T ) & % % 566,908,000 7T ( = &
— =4 : B%590,967,00070) EHERE R
HitE —F Rl o
RN-ZE—NFE+—_A=+—H BERYE
BB E4892000T( T —=F: B
702,200,000 7T) K&k M — B R BF BB W

EIEE OB R ©

FRN ERREBRAIZHFLEWENELYN B
W MED2153000L( — F — = F£ B K
14,480,000 7T) ©

yIN/ANI=T|

R-EBE—NE+-_A=+—0 FLHEWE
5B 2808000t ( ZF — = F: B

2,808,000 7T) TEHAR # 5 HRR —F 12 41 [0] -

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21. BRI IRE
THE COMPANY A2 &

2014 2013

“E-mE “T-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Cost of unlisted shares/deemed capital contribution ELETRG / BRIETERA 596,457 565,257
Less: Impairment loss recognised W ERRREER (201,803) (201,803)
394,654 363,454

In view of the accumulated losses and net liabilities position of
certain subsidiaries, the directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of investments in these subsidiaries are not
recoverable and, accordingly, the investment costs in these

subsidiaries have been fully impaired.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013 are set out in note 42.

ERETHEBAR Z REEELABFEMNR
N ARAEERR REAEMBRARZER
BREETDAARE - Btk 2 RSB
RAZREKRATRETRBE R -

R-ZF-ME+-A=ZF—AR=F—=F
AT -BZAREEEWBRAFE
MR 42



22. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

22. BETLHXEE

THE GROUP R &E THE COMPANY £ 4 8]
2014 2013 2014 2013
23 —2-=f —E2-|F =
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BB
Cost of investments in joint ventures BN A S % 7 i K
— unlisted —3EWm 3 3 3 3
Share of post-acquisition results — FiEKBEALE R E
and other comprehensive 2ENE  NBE
income, net of dividends WER &
received 2,581 2,765 - -
2,584 2,768 3 3
notes: BiRE -

(@) As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Group had the
following interests in principal joint ventures:

Place of incorporation/

@ RIZE-—NF+-_A=+—-BR-ZT—=F+-A8
=t—H AEEBEATIEEEEME I ER

Name of joint venture operations Class of shares held Ownership interest Proportion of voting power held Nature of business
RELEER Rl AE-E3:] FrisBR A ER FrEkER FERERZILA #H1E
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z-MmE “E-=F —Z-MmF “Z-=F
Falconmate Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% 50% 50%  Property investment
EE il NERE

(b)  The summarised financial information below represents the aggregate

) ATBERZ M BERHEARERERNFERZEE

amount of the Group’s share of its interests in joint ventures which are I ERER
not individually material:
2014 2013
- 13 =%
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expense) income for the year  AEE (B18) &R 2 E (X ) Yz (184) 107

(¢)  There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the joint venture to
transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends, or to repay
loans or advances made by the Group.

(© HRURSBEESNFAAAIEERERESHEER
SEMRERERRBRZAECEEMENLES
KR
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23. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 23. FHIKE
THE GROUP A% THE COMPANY A2 ]
Financial assets at FVTPL Financial assets at FVTPL
BATEEAER BRATEETARR
LEREE LEREE
Available- Available-
Held for Designated for-sale Held for Designated for-sale
trading at fair value investments Total trading at fair value investments Total
RE RE
B BROTEE W WHEE B RAVEE  THEE
EER#Z 7k k& &%  EERZ 51k & ek
notes HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
it BT A¥Tn A% E¥Tn BT BMTn  BMTn  BMTn
2014 ZE-[F
Equity securities; BARES
Listed in Hong Kong FELm 11,972 - 298,549 310,521 11,972 - - 11,972
Listed overseas L = - 1,033 1,033 - - 211 211
11,972 - 299,582 311,554 11,972 - 211 12,183
Unlisted ¥ @) - - 402,875 402,875 - - - -
11,972 - 702,457 714,429 11,972 - 211 12,183
Debt securities: EBES:
Structured products EEHETE (b) - 346,942 - 346,942 - 346,942 - 346,942
Qther debt securities AEBES
— Listed —km (© = = 50,864 50,864 - - 50,864 50,864
- 346,942 50,864 397,806 - 346,942 50,864 397,806
Investment funds RERS (d) = - 72,798 72,798 - - 72,798 72,798
Total: B
Listed in Hong Kong BALT 11,972 - 349,413 361,385 11,972 - 50,864 62,836
Listed overseas BT - - 1,033 1,033 - - 211 211
Unlisted b - 346,942 475,673 822,615 - 346,942 72,798 419,740
11,972 346,942 826,119 1,185,033 11,972 346,942 123,873 482,787
Market value of listed securities:  FZE%mIE
Listed in Hong Kong BALm 11,972 - 349,413 361,385 11,972 - 50,864 62,836
Listed overseas st/ W) - - 1,033 1,033 - - 211 211
11,972 - 350,446 362,418 11,972 - 51,075 63,047
Analysed as: PER:
Non-current assets FREAE 825,978 123,732
Current assets THEE 359,055 359,055
1,185,033 482,787




23. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 23. BHIRE(8B) %
THE GROUP £ £ THE COMPANY A2 5
Financial assets at FVTPL Financial assets at FVTPL =
BATEESA RS BATEEIARR E
LRREE LeREE g
Available- Available- =
Held for ~ Designated for-sale Held for ~ Designated for-sale ffi
trading  at fair value  investments Total trading  at fair value  investments Total ﬁ
i 14 i
B BATEE  THEE B RATEE  WHHE

RS iR && &%  BERS i %A %
notes  HKH000  HK§000  HKFO000  HK$000  HKFOO0  HKH000  HK$O0O  HK$000
i3 AT EETT  A%Tn BBt BETr  BBTn  BETr #ETx

2013 —E-cF
Equity securities: RAES -
Listed in Hong Kong BELW 11,042 = = 11,042 11,042 - - 11,042
Listed overseas iz Sulio - - 473 473 - - 9% 9%
11,042 = 473 11,515 11,042 = 9% 11,138
Unlisted ¥Im ©) - - 295765 293,765 - - - -
11,042 - 294,238 305,280 11,042 - % 11,138
Debt securities: EfES
Structured products HEUTE (b) - 21,215 - 21,215 - 27,215 - 27,215
Qther debt securities AEBES
— Listed —-tm (© = = 1,164 1,164 = - 1,164 1,164
- 271215 1,164 28,379 - 21215 1,164 28,379
Investment funds FEES (d) = - 110,886 110,886 - - 110,886 110,886
Total: B
Listed in Hong Kong BELW 11,042 — — 11,042 11,042 — — 11,042
Listed overseas iz i} - - 1,637 1,637 - - 1,260 1,260
Unlisted ¥tm - 27215 404651 431866 - 27215 110886 138,101

11,042 21215 406288 444545 11,042 21215 112146 150403

Market value of listed securities:  FZ%mIE:

Listed in Hong Kong BELT 11,042 = - 11,042 11,042 - - 11,042
Listed overseas %/ i) - - 1,637 1,637 - - 1,260 1,260
11,042 - 1,637 12,679 11,042 - 1,260 12,302
Analysed as: nEA:
Non-current assets EREEE 424,541 130,399
Current assets THEE 20,004 20,004
207

444,545 150,403 &
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

23.

notes:

@

()

©

)

24

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2014, unlisted equity securities classified as
available-for-sale held by the Group amounting to approximately
HK$402,875,000 (2013: HK$293,765,000) are carried at fair value at
the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2014, structured deposits of HK$346,942,000
(2013: HK$27,215,000) held by the Group have maturity date in 2015
(2013: ranging from 2014 to 2015) and carry interest rates at coupon
rate, LIBOR or LIBOR plus a variable margin. Such structured deposits
are designated as financial assets at FVTPL.

As at 31 December 2014, debt securities listed in Hong Kong
comprised a perpetual capital securities issued in September 2014 with
a fixed distribution rate of 6.5% per annum payable semi-annually for
the first five years.

As at 31 December 2013, debt securities listed outside Hong Kong
comprised a debenture with fixed interest rate of 9.5% and maturity
date on 24 December 2014.

The investment funds invest in unlisted equity securities issued by
private entities incorporated in Asia Pacific region. They are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Investment funds with
less than 12 months operation period before voluntary liquidation from
the end of reporting period are classified as current portion in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group has committed
to contribute a pre-determined capital amount in these investment
funds and the realised gains or losses of these funds are recognised in
the profit or loss. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
investment funds returned capital of HK$3,634,000 to the Group and
they may call upon further capital contribution if required up to the
pre-determined capital amount (note 39(C)). There was no capital
returned to the Group from the investment funds during the year ended
31 December 2014.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

THE COMPANY

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed

repayment terms. Of the amounts, approximately HK$2,462,226,000
(2013: HK$2,673,878,000) bear variable interest at an effective
interest rate ranging from 1.91% to 2.12% (2013: 1.97% to 2.04%) per

annum (repriced semi-annually) and the remaining balance is non-

interest bearing. The effective interest rate used in calculating the

present value of the estimated discounted future cash flows of the

non-interest bearing amounts due from subsidiaries is 1.92% (2013:
2.02%).

23. BEHFRE(B)
P -

RZE—WE+ZA=+—0 ' AEEMFHEUE
HHRANATEENE  DEAHEENIEL
TR B H 4 BB 402,875000 T (Z T — =4 ¢
75 ¥ 293,765,0007T) °

@

RIZZ—NF+_A=+—08 AEEHENEHE
77 5K BB ¥ 346,942,000 0 (Z T —=F : B
27,2150007T) * REXRGFERFEAE - MBERTT
A2 S R M BERTT R EF B IF BB FE 2 5
iR iH%#:;—ﬁE@JHH(:z—Ei CR
—E-NEE-T-RFHEH) REHEEUTN
RBIEERAT 1;@;#)\?@ SZERMBE -

(b)

RZZE—NE+ZA=+—H BB LTEBES
B BE-RAERHELAES REFN_F
—ENRET REXEEREF65%  BRF
GHEFERE—R-

©

RIE-—=F+"A=+—8B REBEUHLTH
BEBESFEE —DEENERRISKIHR =T~
FHZAZ+MAZIHOEREE -

ZEREESTIREARETARAMK I ZAEE
BT TRAES - AERENBEHK
RATEENE - EREHRURNEREEANE
BRI ZEAZREESRGREFBRRARA
BRYEE - AEBEFRERZFREESE
BEEANEITEZEME ﬁJ%RQZE“ﬁWﬁ
SEBIRERENER BHE-T2—=41+=A4
E+—E¢¢E'%%&§gﬁamm%5@ﬁ%
¥3634,000 L 2T E - ATRAELEINEERE)
B WAEEEARERR(MEING) - RZF
—ME+-—A=+—BILFER  ZEREEST
EmRIANEERETE -

()

/\ *g

24, [E UL E 2 SRR

JIW/N=]

FE BT BB A I BR R A R e A B e A KR o
SRR - 497858 2,462,226,000 T (=&
—=1F : B¥2673878,00070) BEFIRERF
FFRNTI19%ZE212% (T — =4 1 197%
ZF204%) B (B¥FEHAFX)  #RERR
B-RitBEEKHNBARRERRAZGE
BRARKBREREREFKAZERFER
192% (ZFB—=4 : 202%) °



24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the amounts due from
subsidiaries will not be repayable in the next twelve months from the
end of the reporting period and, accordingly, the amounts have been
classified as non-current assets. The carrying amounts of the
amounts due from subsidiaries approximate to its fair value. The
credit risk on amounts due from subsidiaries is limited as the
subsidiaries are in sound financial positions. There is no collateral for

the amounts due from subsidiaries.

25. ADVANCES TO INVESTEE COMPANIES

The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
repayment terms. The effective interest rate used in calculating the
present value of the estimated discounted future cash flows of the
advances is 2.23% (2013: 2.36%).

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the investee companies
will not fully repay the advances in the next twelve months from the
end of the reporting period and, accordingly, the amounts have been

classified as non-current assets. There is no collateral for the

24, r”&ﬁﬁ% __IE'FT}\(mE)

KT (48)

KARREEZER  FBRHEQBRRS
TERBEHREFT AR+ EARERER
ﬁ&t%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ\a%ﬁ"%ﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁé o R
MEBARRRZREEEE N FEEMRS
FEH&MTJ%’ATEE AZEERBRER  RAR
ZEMBAR MBI RIEE - BEHEBL
AR B o

25. BT ENT

ZERFRAEER REREERTERS -
HEZERRAGEMRAKRESRER
BERKAZERRER223%(ZT—=4:
2.36%) °

KARBEEZER  BHREARTEN®
SHRREF KRR —EAAREBERZSF
BN At WRREARIERBDEE -
A BRI B -

advances.
26. INVENTORIES 26. &
THE GROUP ££E
2014 2013
—2-pmF I
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
The Group’s inventories comprise: TEERERE:
Raw materials i 1,830 2,074
Work in progress FEIN 6,169 4,490
Finished goods 2 13,996 11,903
21,995 18,467

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year
amounted to approximately HK$33,658,000 (2013: HK$30,473,000).

The inventories are expected to be realised in the next twelve

months from the end of the reporting period.

REAFERRBEILEIHFERRY BB
33,658,000 L ( — & — =4 : B 30,473,000
JT) °
FEBEHRREHBMRBAARTZ@EARN
I o
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. BEFZ K E fth [E UK B8R FK
THE GROUP x&E THE COMPANY A2 5]
2014 2013 2014 2013
—3-m# “3-=% —g-mF ~g-=%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BET T BETT

Trade receivables B SRR 16,527 15,373 - -

Deposits for construction costs ~ BEMARES 21,980 18,965 - -

Other deposits, prepayments HEfRES  BRES

and receivables RIEMER 105,092 79,591 24,475 5,122
143,599 113,929 24,475 5,122
notes: BEE -

(a) Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential (@) EMEAHEFH  AfEFGEBERFZEEYE
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits ERBERFPZEELR -BEPLREHES - K
attributed to customers are reviewed periodically. Majority of the trade B9 E 2 RUERRI SR HsOR(E - BER MR -
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have no default
payment history.

The Group’s credit policy allows its trade customers an average credit AEENEERRRAESER (TREREESYN
period of 30 — 90 days, other than proceeds from sales of properties NRZEEWE)REFIHI0-90B 2 ZEH - —
which are settled in accordance with the sale and purchase BAEALHAEH0KRNA - NAREHR - KEZAH
agreements, normally within 60 days from the date of agreement. The 75#16,527,000 70 ( = ZT — =4 : ##15373,0007T)
aged analysis of trade receivables of HK$16,527,000 (2013: ZHRER DT
HK$15,373,000) presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:
THE GROUP ~£E
2014 2013
—E-mF 3%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB

Within 30 days 30 BA 6,086 5,451

Between 31 days to 90 days JIZ90H 7,557 6,352

Over 90 days iH90 B 2,884 3,570

16,527 15,373

(b)  As at 31 December 2014, debtors with an aggregate carrying amount (b)) RZ-ZE—WE+-_A=+—08  FALEEEKE
of HK$2,884,000 (2013: HK$3,570,000) were past due and aged over R HEBREEAB 2884000 L (ZE—=4F : 8
90 days at the end of reporting period but the Group has not provided #3,570,0007T) + EARERATRE HIR 2@ HRBIB 90
for impairment loss for these balances as management considers that B AREETERZSEH 2 RERBIBREE
the fundamental credit quality of these customers has not deteriorated. RAAEREE EREZEAGEELGRWER
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. R o REEWERZ S ARETE EEARY) o

(c)  All of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in the functional  (¢©) AEEFAE S EWERAKEERNERTE I
currency of the individual entities within the Group. BEEMIIE -

(d)  The Company had no trade receivables at the end of the reporting d)  ARRRMEPRTEZ S EKER -

period.



28. FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH MORETHANTHREE 28. FA=ARZZHA 2 EHARTHF
MONTHS TO MATURITY WHEN RAISED/OTHER ROEMBITERRRE
BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01%  SRITERMAUT SN EFENHFE - N F
to 0.35% (2013: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum. The fixed deposits carry FOO%ZE03BN(ZF —=F:001%=E
fixed interest rates ranging from 1.00% to 5.39% (2013: 0.03% to  0.35%) - EMEFRMEETEF S - N FEHF
3.55%) per annum. 1.00%%E5.39%(=F—=14 : 0.03%Z%3.55%) °
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The Group’s and the Company’s bank balances and fixed bank AEBEARBIAFEHEEERNIIEES
deposits that are denominated in currencies other than the functional ¥t EEVIRTTF RN E BHIRITHFR - HI A

currency of the relevant group entity are set out below: N
THE GROUP F£8 THE COMPANY £/ 8]
Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated
in RMB in US$ in RMB in US$
NAREIE NETHE NAREIIE NETHIE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT BETT BB BT
As at 31 December 2014 RZE-NF+-A=+—H 2,094,595 154,860 2,094,577 154,840
As at 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+-A=+—H 305,656 78,311 449,785 162,776
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. B KEMER R
THE GROUP x&E THE COMPANY &2 8]
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z-ME “T-=F —E-NE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BETT BT
Trade payables B SRR 10,977 4,601 - -
Construction costs payables JER SR A 45,643 58,181 - -

Deposits received and receipt in -+ %BMEZ YRS
advance in respect of rental of  RFEMIES

investment properties 37,270 38,421 286 -

Receipt in advance on HEMERIT
properties sold 225,309 14,664 - -
Other payables HiERER 35,644 37,072 8,415 10,352
354,843 152,939 8,701 10,352

At the end of the reporting period, included in trade and other RIMEHRLEEH B 5 FE B G K
payables are trade payables of HK$10,977,000 (2013: HK$4,601,000) 10,977,000 7T( —ZE— =4 : i#&#4,601,0007T)
and the aged analysis of which presented based on the invoice date DB ZHEAB S REMERNER - H

is as follows: ERER D ATIOT
THE GROUP ~5£E
2014 2013
“Z-NE 2%
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BRI
Within 30 days 30BA 10,977 4,601

The Company had no trade payables at the end of the reporting ARAFRIRMEIRIEE H BN -

period.

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. The BEESW s FHEEEAZI0H - REED |
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that FERRAKBEERSE @ IWERAEENER
all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. REEBRRNZT -



30. BORROWINGS

30. f&®

THE GROUP KR &E THE COMPANY A2 5]
2014 2013 2014 2013
“2-ME —E-=F “E-|mE “F=F
notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz BET T BT BETT BT
Bank loans RITER
Secured BHEA 1,536,605 842,525 556,692 258,267
Unsecured EEH 1,375,877 2,917,592 1,375,877 2,917,592
Total bank borrowings RITIER AT 2,912,482 3,760,117 1,932,569 3,175,859
Amounts due to joint ventures EREELEHR (a) 1,498 1,886 1,498 1,886
Amounts due to non-controlling JERFEERR AR R AR
interests shareholders (b) 20,267 20,173 - —
2,934,247 3,782,176 1,934,067 3,177,745
The maturity of borrowings is ERZESMAMT
as follows:
Carrying amount repayable: BEEEEE: (©
Within one year —FR 715,718 1,731,715 676,802 1,731,715
More than one year but not — R ETBBRE
exceeding two years 1,640,072 418,952 699,075 406,802
More than two years but not MERBETERRF
exceeding five years 556,692 1,529,450 556,692 957,342
2,912,482 3,680,117 1,932,569 3,095,859
Carrying amount of bank loans BERNRERRRT —FR
that are not repayable within BE WEEREREEZ
one year from the end of RITEREAE
the reporting period but contain
a repayment on demand clause - 80,000 - 80,000
Amounts due to joint ventures [ERE&REIE 1,498 1,886 1,498 1,886
Amounts due to non-controlling JERFEFERR AR R AR
interests shareholders 20,267 20,173 - =
2,934,247 3,782,176 1,934,067 3,177,745
Amount due within one year R—ERFHRZ
— Bank borrowings —FIER 715,718 1,811,715 676,802 1,811,715
— Amounts due to joint ventures —ENAENETE 1,498 1,886 1,498 1,886
— Amounts due to non-controlling  — R JEEIRARE B
interests shareholders 20,267 20,173 - -
737,483 1,833,774 678,300 1,813,601
Amounts due after one year R—E#IHRH
— Bank borrowings —FIER 2,196,764 1,948,402 1,255,767 1,364,144
2,934,247 3,782,176 1,934,067 3,177,745
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

30. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 30. fEM(£&)

notes: BisE

(@) These borrowings are unsecured, non-interest bearing (2013: bear (a) ZEERAEER 2R (ZT—=F: 8FR¥
variable interest at an effective interest rate at 0.10% per annum BFEFE BEEMEE010%(BFAETHX))
(repriced monthly)) and are repayable on demand. WAREEREE -

(b) These borrowings are unsecured and repayable on demand. An (b))  ZEEFRABEEIF KAEREZRKEZRE LB 9,069,000
amount of approximately HK$9,069,000 (2013: HK$9,260,000) bears TL(ZZT— =4 : #%9,260,0007T) 2 RBEFFIZ
variable interest at an effective interest rate of 1.92% (2013: 2.02%) per FEA RS BEEAERIN2%(ZFE—=4F:
annum (repriced monthly), while the remaining amounts are non- 202%) (B AERTFR)  REAARE -
interest bearing.

(c)  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in © BEARFIRE S BEETETER B E5IE -
the loan agreements.

(d) The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than (@)  AEBUEBEEBEEFEIEER AN Ha BT
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out below: BZERNT -

Denominated in HK$
WBHTIE

HK$'000

BETT

As at 31 December 2014 RZE-NF+=-A=+-8 258,100

As at 31 December 2013 R-E-—=F+-A=+—H 258,292

(&) As at 31 December 2014, bank loans of HK$1,932,569,000 (2013: (& R=F—EF+_A=+—R RTEHEH
HK$3,397,324,000) and HK$979,913,000 (2013: HK$362,793,000) are 1,932,569,000 7T (=% — =4 : /5 #3,397,324,000
variable-rate borrowings which carry interest at HIBOR and prevailing TT) R B #979913000L( =B — =4F : B
interest rates offered by the People’s Bank of China, plus a margin per 362,793,000 70) 73 BI BIA BB RITRERF BT M
annum, respectively. The effective interest rates ranged from 1.38% to FEMER  RAPEARRTUBRITEXBEFS
7.38% (2013: 1.87% to 6.60%) per annum. Interest rates are repriced INFIZE R F BAE TR - BERAR N T 5 4138%
monthly. Details of assets pledged are set out in note 38. E738%(ZF— =4 : 187%£660%) ° M F & A

BHEE c BHEFEEFEHNMEIS -

31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. IRIETRIE

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position and statement of financial position, certain deferred
tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the

analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

MEINEEMBIRRAR LRI BIRREKME
FTEEHRBEEERBEDEN - A TR
BTSSR B 0 Z R IR SR DT

THE GROUP X&£& THE COMPANY £/ 8]
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mE —F-=f% ~F-mF —F-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Deferred tax assets EXHBEE 7,235 680 7,235 680
Deferred tax liabilities EREREERE (218,318) (209,887) - -
(211,083) (209,207) 7,235 680




31. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets

recognised by the Group and the Company and movements thereon

31.
ATAREERARBNRANFERAEFE
ERCEIEEEHHEABREENREE

IRSE W IR (48)
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during the current and prior years. £/
Difference of Collectively Revaluation Revaluation
accounting assessed  ofinvestment  of available-  Remeasurement
and tax impairment properties for-sale  of retirement
depreciation allowance inthePRC  investments henefits Tax losses Total
EiENE SR Bt BTt BifHE
fEEE HERE LRENE LERE RiNER it it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT AT AT AT A RETT BT
THE GROUP A£H
At T January 2013 R-F-=E-F-H 38,465 (20531) 172,586 52613 1,694 (8,000) 210827
Charge (credit) to profit or loss REREFRGIA)
— from continuing operations -REFETE 911 - 19897 - - (356) 20,452
— from discontinued operations - REERIOE 4,188 (3,253 198 - - - 2,863
Credit to other comprehensiveincome RAEERpRAERZEREA

for the year

— from discontinued operations - REEHLEE - - - (775) - - (77)
Transferred o assets classified as ERENEARLERR (M)

held for sale (note 13) (15575) 29,784 (483N (51,838) (1,694) - (24,160)
At 31 December 2013 RZF-Z§+2fA=1-R 27,989 - 189,574 - - (8,556) 209,07
Charge (credit) to profit orloss RERERIR (GTA)

— from continuing operations -REfEEE 1444 - 8,382 - - (7,104) 2122
Exchange realignment ExE - - (846) - - - (846)
At 31 December 2014 WZF-METZA=+-A 29433 - 197,110 - - (15460) 211,083
THE COMPANY K0T
At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 R-E-=£--B}R

ZR-ZETZA=T-R (680) - - - - - (680)
Credit to profit or loss REREFA (100) - - - - (6,455) (6,555)
At 31 December 2014 WZF-METZA=+-A (780) - - - - (6,455) (7,23)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately HK$458 million (2013: HK$359 million) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$94 million (2013: HK$50
million) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax loss of approximately HK$364 million
(2013: HK$309 million) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2014
are tax losses of approximately HK$124 million (2013: HK$102
million) that will expire within 5 years from the year of originating.

Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$39 million (2013: Nil) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of approximately HK$39 million (2013: Nil) of such losses.

The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to HK$8,560,000 (2013: HK$18,139,500) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of these
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

31. IRIEMIA (F8)

RIREHAKR NS B 8 H 478 % 458,000,000
TL(ZT—=1F : B¥ 359,000,000 7T) Z K&
AR IEE B AT AR R AR T o EHR LB
#94,000000L( = T — = F: B %
50,000,000 TE R AELERIEEE - AN
MmO TEOR R R R M RIR - HBH B
364,0000007C( — & — = F: B ¥
309,000,000 7%) 2 #5185 48 I R HE 3R /iR i
MIBEE -BHEEBEAIERBALEE R_F
—mEFE+ZA=+—B  KERREEBEFR
BEEAFEEAFANIBNOREBERLOE
#124,00000070( = T — = F: B ¥
102,000,000 7T )  E fth %% 18 &5 18 15 4% % IR HA
REET—FF -

BEFER ARAAERDABREEBLNE
#39,000,000 L(ZF— =4 : ) o] A{ER
HAKRGMN EREBEBREFNEBE
39,000,0007C(ZF— =% : &) BRIELTH
BEE ZEDEBBEAERAZEEZ T —
FEo

BERECEMGEHRE BT NF—A
— R - PEKE A BRI SR 2 &
BIRBMTEM - AR AN EE AL
ERZEZRECER MEATREZEAETE
FAR] R SR B - B R AR A M S KR 5
FEMBEARRERANc ERERER
8,560,000 7L(=F— =4 : #%18,139,500 7T)
PEHIRE TR IR -



32. NON-INTEREST BEARING ADVANCES FROM 32. BRI ZRRBERM
SUBSIDIARIES

THE COMPANY i/ |

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are not ZEHRELEER RERBANRERE!

repayable in the next twelve months from the end of the reporting REFFAKR+ZEARNERE Bt - 258
period. Accordingly, the amounts have been classified as non-current  FEDEABIERSEE RETEZSTERZ
liabilities. The effective interest rate used in calculating the present fhEtERBRARRERERERKA 2 ER
value of the estimated discounted future cash flows of these  FHMZEZ192%(ZF—=4 : 2.02%) °
advances is 1.92% (2013: 2.02%) per annum.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. BRIk
Number of shares HK$'000
RIPEE BETTL
Authorised: EERA
At 1 January and 31 December 2013 WZZE-=f-A—-AKktZA=1—H
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each BREESE T2 LBk 600,000,000 600,000
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-mE+-A=1+-H N/A (Note)
Issued and fully paid: BEIRERRA:
At 1 January and 31 December 2013 RZE-=5-F-BKk+=-A=1+—H
Ordinary share of HK$1 each BREESK I T EBR 378,583,440 378,583
Transfer from capital redemption reserve upon BREERGRAELREER
abolition of par value - 2,952
At 31 December 2014 WZE-mF+-A=+—A
Ordinary share of no par BEEILER 378,583,440 381,535
note: Par value of the Company’s shares is retired and requirement for K&t : A= G = A= B A BEHDERE - AR
authorised capital is abolished upon the commencement of the new AIEEBERRMNEE - REETERANEEINE E
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance on 3 March 2014. 1k
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

34. RESERVES 34,
Property Investment Capital
revaluation  revaluation  redemption  Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve profits Total
MEERRE REEGREE RABQRESE 2REF s

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BB BETR BETT BETT BETR

THE COMPANY N
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—A—H 448 53,470 2,952 1,695,479 1,752,349
Profit for the year REF T - - - 21,238 21,238
Fair value loss on AfRHEREZ A TEESR

available-for-sale investments - (24,819) - - (24,819)
Total comprehensive expense  RNEE R EWNEEE

for the year - (24,819) - 21,238 (3,581)
Dividends recognised as ERERAED RIS

distribution - - - (106,003) (106,003)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=ZRA=+—H 448 28,051 2,952 1,610,714 1,642,765
Profit for the year REFHF - - - 5,334,971 5,334,971
Fair value loss on AfRHEREC AT EEERE

available-for-sale investments - (4,401) - - (4,401)

Amount reclassified to the RLEELEREEHEN
profit or loss upon disposal of ~ HFEFIEREZ £

available-for-sale investments - (26,803) - - (26,803)
Total comprehensive income A& 2 H U858

for the year - (31,204) - 5,334,971 5,303,767
Transfer upon abolition of BB BB D LD

par value under new BERREE R AR (7T

Companies Ordinance (note) - - (2,952) - (2,952
Dividends recognised as BRERADRZIE

distribution - - - (1,889,132) (1,889,132
At 31 December 2014 RZE-N&E+=-A=1+—H 448 (2,553) - 5,056,553 5,054,448

note: The Company has no authorised share capital and its shares have no  Bi&E : I A RBKINERE B (= —WF=A=H)
par value since the commencement date of the new Hong Kong B ARBBEEERAN - EROAWEE -
Companies Ordinance (i.e. 3 March 2014).



35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 25 April 2002, for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees, and expired on 24 April 2012. Under the 2002 Scheme,
the Company could grant options to eligible employees, including
executive directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe
for shares in the Company at HK$10 per option. Additionally, the
Company could, from time to time, grant share options to outside
eligible third parties at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the total
number of shares in respect of which options could be granted under
the 2002 Scheme was not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time. The number of shares in
respect of which options could be granted to any individual was not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any

point in time.

Options could be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the
share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise
price was to be determined by the directors of the Company, and
would not be less than the higher of the nominal value of the
Company’s share on the date of grant, the average closing price of
the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant, or the closing price of the shares on the date of grant.

No options were granted under the 2002 Scheme since it was
adopted. The 2002 Scheme expired on 24 April 2012.

A new share option scheme was approved and adopted by the
Company pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 9 May 2012
(the “2012 Scheme™). The terms of the 2012 Scheme and the 2002
Scheme are broadly similar. The 2012 Scheme is effective for a

period of 10 years.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its

adoption.

35. R EAiESt 8

ARARRER-_TZT_FOA_+HBEB
ZHRBERARO BMETE ([ T —F5f
2 FTEEMERRABBREFTRAERE
8 ZA8ER T —_FOA-t+WARE
wme RBE-_TZ_FHE ARAARAARE
REE(BEARALEMBATZHITES)

R USOMEESBI0OTRABALRT
BAn o b Sh - AR B AT PMERIESRE - RE S

ERBEREMEERIMNE =T R OBRNH
o

EEHE’\E' NEPRREAMET RE-F
—FEIEIR R L IR 2 B BB BB
$’L\ET??GE@%F‘%E%TTH%%Z@% CMET
EAERA L 2 BEPSR M EE NMFHB L
RABPERIR S HITRMD 21% °

Pt BAME AT 04X B B R AT 1 AR AAT S )
TE - TERERAXARRESTER  EMER
ARARBEORBEHARZEE REZERL
A#ATAER S A 2 ki FolmE &t
ERZEMHEMEzRSE °

—ETE -

T~ F AT BSR4 AR AR L IR B
e —_ T _FFHER_ZT-_FM0OA
ZTmBEER -

BER-_ZE-——FhANBRBZLERR
= IR BT EI( =S — =58
ERABMAERRK - —T——Ft8l 2§
FHE T _FHE 2 ERKRBGER - —F
——FHEBRAR/I0OF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

36. LOANS TO OFFICERS

The aggregate relevant loans to officers, included in “advances and
other accounts” in note 13, and disclosed pursuant to Section 161B

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

36. SIRAEER

RIBE B R FEDIZE161B 638 E & B IE1E M
HBERLHEMERES  BEESRABZE
AR NT

THE GROUP ~5%E
2014 2013
—E-pE e
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Aggregate balance of all relevant loans outstanding at ~ AREARZHEHEERF O
the end of the reporting period 2EBEE = 185,209
Maximum aggregate balance of relevant loans ENEHEERPRZRREHER
during the year 185,209 201,839
The loans bear interest at rates ranging from 0% to prime rate plus Ut FEE A F K 0% = & BB X IN10% T
10%. As at 31 December 2013, included in the loans to officers were F - R-T—=F+ZA=+—H & A
loans of HK$83,550,000 secured by collateral. These collateral were B ERF B R EE ¥ 83,550,000 T2 A H#
mainly properties, securities and fixed deposits. EX - -ZSHENEISaEME  E5REH
Fk e
37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY . HEMBRT
As referred to in note 13, the Group discontinued its financial EEZ!ZDWEIBFHE rEBEBEE-_ZT—=F
services operations during the year ended 31 December 2013 and T ZA=+t—HIEFEERILESBREL
the disposal of CHB Group was completed in February 2014. The net & HEBIEBEITEE —FXN T —NF =
assets of CHB Group at the date of disposal were as follows: Ak - HEE HAIERITEBEEFED
T
HK$'000
BETT
Satisfied by: &S
Cash received from disposal of CHB Group HERIRRTEBMUES 5,994,178
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HESBEEMNRSTILFE:
Total cash consideration received YIRS RERR 5,994,178
Transaction costs incurred in connection with the disposal of HEIEBITER 7 RIMA
CHB Group (234,089)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of WHEZRITEHRRES (19,809,017
(14,048,928)




37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

The net assets of CHB Group at the date of disposal were as follows:

37. HEMBELS (1&)
HEEARIERTRENFEENT

HK$'000
BETT

Cash and short-term funds EFReRELHES 19,849,649
Placements with banks and other financial institutions FHREREMHBRER—ZETZEAR

maturing between one to twelve months 3|87 2B 7,761,022
Derivative financial assets TESEE 157,264
Financial assets at FVTPL BATRETABR EREE 92,301
Available-for-sale securities AT EEE 5,567,497
Held-to-maturity securities F2IHES 7,239,011
Advances and other accounts BERREMIRE 44,065,070
Tax recoverable FEdEi R 463
Interests in associates BEDNRER 199,436
Investment properties b 136,575
Property and equipment VEYE T 631,519
Prepaid lease payments for land BRIHHEER 2,397
Deferred tax assets EEREEE 2972
Goodwill HE 50,606
Consideration receivable in connection with HERIBERITR L BERRE

the disposal of Chong Hing Bank Centre 2,230,000
Deposits and balances of banks and other financial institutions RAEREMBERETTRER (1,478,698)
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements REEBETHEZREE (1,423,816)
Deposits from customers BEPER (71,757,965)
Certificates of deposit TR (663,688)
Derivative financial liabilities TESRERE (141,909)
Other accounts and accruals HEtRERERER (876,837)
Special dividend payable in connection with the disposal of HERIEETRL 7 ERERRE

Chong Hing Bank Centre (1,960,732)
Current tax liabilities B (80,924)
Loan capital EEEX (1,801,057)
Deferred tax liabilities ERHIEAR (9,662)
Net assets disposed of LEEEFE 7,790,494
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) 37. HEMBAD (&)
HK$'000
BETT
Cash consideration received EURER(E 5,994,178
Net assets disposed of HELEFE (7,790,494)
Non-controlling interests JEIERRAR R R 3,893,588
Transaction costs incurred in connection with FHERIRRTEREL R FUAE
the disposal of CHB Group (234,089)
Cumulative exchange reserve and investment revaluation reserve HERERBENREERRBEEN D EZEER
reclassified to profit or loss 90,376
Fair value of retained shares in CHB Group classified as BRI TERRO 2 AT EE 2B AR
available-for-sale investments HERE 937,597
Gain on disposal of CHB Group HERIBRTER NS 2,891,156

The impact of disposal of CHB Group on the Group’s results and cash ~ ARNE R FEHEL|ERTEBE RNEFBHE
flows in the current and prior year is disclosed in note 13. BENIRE TR ERWBENWIT13 -

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38. E =t 19

At the end of the reporting period, the assets shown as below were  RIBEHIFK » THEEDET FIET - U@
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities made available — ZAN&EE KA N 5 ER T —RIEITRE o

to the Group and the Company.

THE GROUP £5E THE COMPANY £/ 8]
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-Nf —T-=f “E-|mE “T-=F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BET T BETT

CARRYING VALUE FHE

Leasehold land and building HETREF 66,160 - 595,613 -
Investment properties REN%E 5,253,095 3,505,501 1,675,000 -
Bank deposits RITER 414,314 1,897 34,038 35,569
Structured deposits HEENER = 8,857 = 8,857




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#n 6 B 5 3R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #E-ZF-WE+-A=+—HBIL5E

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 39. AINEBRAIE %
(A) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (A) IIREBRAIE —NEHEE (:Z:
— CONTRACTUAL AMOUNTS =
el
THE GROUP 748 THE COMPANY A2 3] g
~
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total :
e BRLEE 3 =
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 ﬁ
“E-mF  -%2-=f ZE-@F C-T-=f CE-MF "% ZE-@mF C—%T-=F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$000
L E AETTL BETR AETTL B¥TR BT BETR BETT
Direct credit substitutes EREARER
(note (i) (B3 (i) = = - 1041747 - 1,041,747 - -
Trade-related contingencies BESEE ANER = - = 479,05 = 479,056 = -
Capital commitments for FRHEENERAE
non-current assets (note 39(C))  (F339(C)) 69,835 83,290 - 7,049 69,835 90,339 69,835 83,290
Other commitments; EfpdE:
Which are unconditionally EGERER I HE
cancellable without ZHENE
prior notices - - - 6,804,582 - 6,804,582 - -
With an original maturity of FIHAN-FR—FNT
one year and under - - - 8212601 - 8212601 - -
With an original maturity of FEHAR-FH £
0Ver one year - - - 1899267 - 189927 - -
Lease commitments (note 39(8)) &% (7 398)) 132,725 141,542 - 55,424 132,725 196,966 11,414 5975
Financial guarantees for BBERTHEAR
subsidliaries (note (iv)) (FzEGw)) - - - - - - 727,663 728,464
202,560 224,832 - 18,559,726 202,560 18,784,558 808,912 817,729
notes: P&

BEZZ——F+-A=+—8 AEENSER
BEBIRBBERAEZ NMECEERBRSERE
#3196,283,000 7T » Mg EE R © 28 TIARIE [12
EEIHE - FEMEEERREE AR EN
T 0% Z 100% I 12 RCIR1T 5 (B 2) $ RIMVERT A ©

©) As at 31 December 2013, the credit risk weighted amount of ()
contingent liabilities and commitments of the Group is
HK$3,196,283,000 for financial services operations. The credit risk
weighted amount is calculated based on “standardised approach”. The
risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted amounts
range from 0% to 100% which is assessed in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules.

(i Most of contingent liabilities and commitments are denominated in (i)  REHKABEREEG BB IEREL -

Hong Kong dollars. 223

L}

(i) Direct credit substitutes included financial guarantees given by the (i) HBASERHMBERNEZEERER - :i
Group. =
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(A) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
— CONTRACTUAL AMOUNTS (CONTINUED)

notes: (continued)

(iv)  As at 31 December 2014, the Company had financial guarantees given
to a bank in support of banking facilities granted to subsidiaries, of
which an amount of HK$727,663,000 (2013: HK$621,085,000) was
utilised by the subsidiaries and recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as liabilities. The aggregate amounts
that the Company could be required to pay if the guarantees were
called upon in entirety amounted to HK$727,663,000 (2013:
HK$728,464,000). The directors of the Company considered that the
fair value of such guarantees on initial recognition and at the end of

the reporting periods were insignificant.

(B) LEASE COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under these non-cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows:

39. ANRBERAE (1&)

(A)RBBERAE — OEHER(E)

Bt - ()

(v) RZTE—WF+=-A=+—0  FAFRHBAF
FrERIRITREE MRITIE B ISR - BB
727,663,000 7T (= F — =4 : #¥621,0850007T)
BB R R B AWK AEBGRA MR R HER
RBAME - RRAIRZEEREERE2EETERT
AR EX N2 BREERT27663000T(=ZF
— =4 1 728,464,000 70) ° AR EER AL
ZRFESER RS AARNAFEERTRE -

(B) THEI A

R HAR AN S B N 1) J 8N A8 4 4 Th &
ER T FEHA I N 2 ARSZRBES T H
mE

THE GROUP £ 48 THE COMPANY A2 7]
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
HiELE BAILEE @it
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE  —E-=f  ZE-mE  “F-=f ZE-mF -3 CZB-MF C"Z-=F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BRI BETTL BB BETT BB BETT BYETT RETTL
Within one year —F 28,409 13,447 - 26,614 28,409 40,061 10,732 5975
Inthe second to fifth years RE_ZRER
inclusive (BEEERE) 63,502 74,466 - 28810 63,502 103,276 682 -
Qver five years nE% 40,814 53,629 - - 40,814 53,629 - -
132,725 141,542 - 55,424 132,725 196,966 11,414 5975

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain of
the Group’s offices, hotel premises and staff quarters. Leases are
negotiated for a range of one to sixteen years and rentals are fixed

throughout the lease period.

REEOFREAEBETRTE  BED
E¥NBEIBEEZENEZ - HEEMA—Z2
TARFEAE  BRESANESCEHEE
HIRTEE ©



39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 39. IRBERAE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(B) LEASE COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group as lessor had

(B) THAIAE (18)
RBERR ARBEESHBEBADRUTR

contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease R&EHR S HEBRTA

s}
z
>
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o
>
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2
_|
sm
=
S
H#
50
it

payments:
THE GROUP &£ THE COMPANY A2
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
BELE REIIG &5t
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mF  -F-=f ZE-RF -F-=f ZE-@mF -3 CE-@mF -T-=F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETR BETTL BB BETL BT BETT BETRL BETT
Within one year -£ 344,009 236,142 - 16,077 344,009 252,219 76,946 1,080
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE - ZRER
(REEREWE) 635,668 320,860 - 1,901 635,668 522,761 238,974 2,070
QOver five years nER 25,981 - - 2,730 25,981 2,730 - -
1,005,658 557,002 - 20,708 1,005,658 577,710 315,920 3,150

FRRER S I A BB 350,989,0007T(=
T —=4F : B 267,990,0007T) c FrBEME
HHRFEEAP—Z=RAFHHELY -

(C) BRAMR
R IR EARRBEBRIT -

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$350,989,000
(2013: HK$267,990,000). All of the properties held have committed

tenants for the next one to five years.

(C) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

THE GROUP £ £/ THE COMPANY A2 7]
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
HERe REJIR @5t
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE -3-=F ZE-BF <-F-=F <-E-ME -3 <—E-MF <-F-=F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 1000 HK$'000 HK$000
LR BETTL BETR AETTL B¥TR BT BYTR BETT
Capital expenditure contracted ~ BENERRGAEHK
for but not provided in the BRRBZERS
consolidated financial 2;5
statements in respect of: =
— Property, plant and equipment  —#91% - BER&E - - - 7,049 - 7,049 - - :
— Contribution to the capital - RAESMEREH %
of investment funds 69,835 83,290 = = 69,835 83,290 69,835 83,290 =

Wy EHE— &= |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& A\
ir B

Bt ¥5 ¥R 2% Bt 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

40. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

For its eligible employees in Hong Kong, the Group operates a
defined contribution schemes registered under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).

Contributions payable by the Group to the MPF Scheme are
determined based on the rules underlying the respective schemes
and are charged to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employees contribute 5% of the relevant payroll to
the MPF Scheme while the Group contributes 5% of the relevant
payroll to the MPF Scheme.

In addition, certain employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefits
schemes. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefits schemes
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
these retirement benefits schemes is to make the specified

contributions.

40. RN Wl 5t 8
rEERBEZAEREREET —AMREMH
a8 AR BIERTE S 8 T AEM (M98

EeEtE ) -

AEERBERESHEZABARURTETE
R ZHR SEGEe2HEERNR - 8
BeFdEERRRANRES A ES - &
AEBZzBEEDFERE - RIBREESE
BTRAREEBABHEMSKNBEEE
A - A S B MR B AERE B T AR #9 5% A58

BB EIHRK -

BSN - AEERPBEKZZHMB AR ZET
BERBERERRAKRBHGEZKE - %F
MEBAREREMEE T A DL RRKER
PEMEHRER . UBNERRN - AKEY
ZERARBENE 2 —BETIEHEEEHR

Eo
N



4]. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 41, FABATIRESIA =
. >
(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (A) BAEtA TS =
During the vyear, the Group and the Company entered into the WRAFE @ AEBE KRR R HEER A TF 2 >
following significant transactions with related parties: UTERRS : %
o)
THE GROUP A8 THE COMPANY £ 47 -
=
2014 2013 2014 2013 %
—E-mE —F-=f —B-mE —2-=F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETIL
Income received and receivable B R EMHTEAT)
from subsidiaries ZWA
Management and other service  EE R EMRBEEUA
fee income - - 1,440 1,200
Interest income FIEMA - - 52,488 57,469
- - 53,928 58,669
Expenses paid and payableto B RENHEAR
subsidiaries &
Rental expenses e = = 548 4,380
Income received and receivable Bk FEUEL 4 A\ 5]
from associates ZHA
Interest income FBUA - 384 - =
Commission income HEON - 23,919 - -
- 24,303 - =
Expenses paid and payableto B REMEL AT
associates X
Interest expenses FIES - 389 - -
Other service expenses Hib RS E - 2,873 - -
- 3,262 - -
Income received and receivable  BUREKTEEEAS
from key management personnel  REZREZ A
and close family members
Interest income FIEUA - 6,673 - -
Other service fee income Hi R B A - 241 - -
- 6,914 - - 227
wa
Expenses paid and payable to key BN RENTEEEAS s
management personnel and LRERBzTH .
close family members 2
Interest expenses FIBS - 10,615 - - ke

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had financial R¥REHR AR AN E QA FTERIRT
guarantees issued to a bank in support of banking facilities granted ~ B4 & [MRTTIE B BB R o BT M5

to subsidiaries, details of which are set out in note 39. 390

I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

41. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED) 41, FABATIRESIE ()
(B) RELATED PARTY BALANCES (B) Rt AL 2E8R
THE GROUP & %8
2014 2013
—E-|F —F-=f
HK$’000 HK$000
BETT BETL
Loan to associates ETHENFZER = 11,503
Loan to key management personnel and BITEEEAEREFBZER
close family members - 507,899
Deposit from associates YNGR 2 - 110,166
Deposit from key management personnel and FTEEBABREZBZER
close family members - 786,463
Details of the Group’s and the Company’s outstanding balances with RZZE—MNFE+-_A=+—H0 AEEER
other related parties, at 31 December 2014, are set out in the ARIEHEMEAE AT 2 REBERDHNAE
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position and the SE&EE BN K RAR RM BRI K

Company’s statement of financial position and notes 24, 30 and 32. NBfsE24 - 30832

(C) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT (C) ETLERAEME
PERSONNEL

The emoluments of key management personnel of the Group during FW - AEEZZEBABZHMAT

the year were as follows:

THE GROUP £ 5E THE COMPANY £/ 8]
2014 2013 2014 2013
“Z-NE “T-=F “E-|mE “F=F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Short-term benefits RERN 42,787 99,105 41,873 32,202
Post-employment benefits ESEREF 2,188 6,281 2,125 1,477
44,975 105,386 43,998 33,679

The emoluments of directors and key executives are determined by ZZERTEBTBRABZHFMII BHFMEES

the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of IZEARELTISHBAET -
individuals and market trends.



42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013 are as follows:

42, TE2MBE LT

(A) B IR —KRER
RZEBE—WNF+_A=+—HER_ZE—=F
TZA=+T—H ARFBZEEWBRAFE
BT

Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation or share capital/
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Bl BRETLE RAFRECRIRARE/
HBLAFEE Wi R/ Eeg RA/ERER FMER LA TEEER
Directly Indirectly
ER e
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mf -T--f ZE-MEF —E-=%
% % % %
Abaleen Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 - —  Property investment
50 7E#100,0007 nERE
Alain Limited Hong Kong HK$9,500 100 100 - —  Investment holding
REBRAF Bh AE9,5007 REER
Bonsun Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 - —  Property investment
ERLRERAR Bk 712,000,000 7 nERE
Card Alliance Company Limited ~ (v)  Hong Kong HK$18,000,000 - - - 50.2  Credit card management
FHERAT B 718,000,007 ERFER
CHB (i) Hong Kong HK$217,500,000 - = - 502 Banking and related
BIERT 30 2175000007 financial services
BORAB SRR
Chong Hing Commodities and (v)  Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - - - 502 Investment holding and
Futures Limited 7k 750000007 commodities and
BIEERBEEERAT] futures broking
RERAREEEE
Chong Hing Finance Limited (v)  Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 - = - 502 Deposit-taking and
BEHBERAR A A% 250000007 lending
BXEFRER
Chong Hing Information (v)  Hong Kong HK$100,000 - - - 50.2  Provision of electronic
Technology Limited i 7E#100,0007C data processing
BIE AR ERAT services
RUETERERRS
Chong Hing Insurance Company ~ (v)  Hong Kong HK$85,000,000 - - - 502 Insurance underwriting
Limited ) 71850000007 i

HIRRRARAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

42, TEZMBELE(1E)
(A) B S —RER (&)

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation or share capital/
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Rl BRETLE RAABECRIRATE/
MBAFEE Wi R/ EE RA/AER FMERZ LA TEEK
Directly Indirectly
B i
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-|mE -T--f ZE-MF -E-=%
% % % %
Chong Hing (Nominees) Limited ~ (v)  Hong Kong HK$100,000 - - - 502 Provision of nominees
BIE (KB)BRAF Bk A1100,0007 services
RERTEARE
Chong Hing Securities Limited (v)  Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - - - 50.2  Stockbroking
BEBHERA i 710,000,000 T REEE
Chong Yip Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - —  Money lending
EIEHBERAR ik 711,000,000 EXEHR
Chong Yip (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$L 100 = - —  Provision of nominees
BE(RE)BRAT BE BT services
REREARE
Devon Realty Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - —  Property investment
EENERRAR Bk B%2007T nERE
Donington Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - —  Property investment
7k 2007 nERE
Gallbraith Limited (v)  Hong Kong HK$16,550,000 - = - 50.2  Property investment
BEEERAT Bl 816,550,000 NERE
Heng Kin Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - —  Property investment
BREEBRAR 36 BB nERE
Hero Marker Limited (v)  Hong Kong HK$100,000 - = - 50.2  Property investment
ERBRA EE 751000007 NERE
Hugh Glory Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 90 90 Investment holding
ERBERAF A AEI007T RERR
Hugh Wealth International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 - —  Investment holding
BEERBRAR A AEI007T RERR



42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 42. TEMBELE () §
(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES (A) IBAIRN—RER (&) :Z:
(CONTINUED) >
el
Place of Issued ordinary g
incorporation or share capital/ =
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/ @
Name of subsidiary notes operations capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities %
Rl BRETLE RAFRECRIRARE/ m

MBAFEE GESR e RA/ERER FMER LA TETEER

Directly Indirectly
Ei e

2014 2013 2014 2013
“F-RE -T--F ZF-ME -T-=F

% % % %
Jacot Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - —  Investment holding
EABRAR Bk BT RELR
Ko Yew Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - —  Property investment
BEARAH Bk 200 nERE
Liu Chong Hing Estate Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 - —  Investment holding
Limited &k 7%%10,000,0007T RERR
BEEELERAE
Liu Chong Hing Godown Company, Hong Kong HK$72,000,000 100 100 - —  Property investment
Limited i 75%72000,0007C nERE
BEERERBRAE
Liu Chong Hing Property Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - —  Property management
Management and Agency B ##1000,0007T and agency
Limited NEEERAE
BRIENEERRREBRA
Luxpolar Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 100 100 Property investment
B4 BT nERE
Queen Profit International Hong Kong HK$61,540 83.75 83.75 - —  Investment holding
Investment Limited Bk 615407 REER
BHERREERAT
Sino Pink Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - —  Property investment 231
BILERRRA Bk BT nERE :
B
Speed World Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 60 60 Investment holding %
ERRERRAR Bk BEI007 RERR B
gy
Top Benefit Enterprise Limited (v)  Hong Kong HK$100,000 - - - 50.2  Property investment
BECEERAR Bk 751000007 nERE

B Ebm-— &= |
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

42. T2MELTE (F8)

(A) BB SN —RER (18)

(CONTINUED)
Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation or share capital/
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Rl BRETLE RAABECRIRATE/
MBAFEE Wi R/ EE RA/AER FMERZ LA TEEK
Directly Indirectly
B i
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-|mE -T--f ZE-MF -E-=%
% % % %
Top Team Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - — Investment holding
Bk 200 RELR
Trade Castle Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
BRERAH Bk BEITL RERR
Richview Property Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - - —  Property management
Company Limited % BE10,0007T nEER
ERMEEERRAT
Truegrow Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$L - = 100 100 Investment holding
RIEEBRAR ik BT RERR
Wealth Good Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 - —  Investment holding
BREEERAR ik BT RERR
Yue Tung Ching Kee Company Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 - —  Property investment
Limited i 7 2,0000007 nERE
WREZBRAA
Foshan Nanhai Hugh Glory (i) PRC RMB500,000,000 - - 920 90  Property development
Property Development i AE#500,0000007 nEER
Company Limited
LA EREHELRERAA
Guangzhou Chong Hing (iv) PRC RMB170,000,000 - - 60 60  Property development
Property Development i ARH#170,000,0007C NEER
Company Limited
EMEEEERRERAA
Guangzhou Trade Castle Property (i) PRC HK$6,500,000 - - 100 100 Property investment
Consultancy Limited i #86,5000007 nERE

TR ARAT



42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

42. T2MELTE (F8)

(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES (A) IBAIRN—RER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation or share capital/
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Rl BRETLE RAFRECRIRARE/
MBAFEE GESR e RA/ERER FMER LA TETEER
Directly Indirectly
ER e
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-MF T ZE-MF —%-=F
% % % %
Guangzhou Wealth Smart (i) PRC HK$1,000,000 - - 100 100 Property management
Property Management i 711,000,000 nEER
Company Limited
BNMBRIEERERARA
Maanshan Gaoke Magnetic Material (i)~ PRC RMB65,370,000 - - 515 515 Manufacturing of
Company Limited i ARH653700007C magnetic materials
SRLENHEMEERAF BUEHIIEN B
Shanghai Huang Pu Liu Chong Hing (i) PRC 1S$34,600,000 - = 100 100 Property investment
Property Development i 34,600,000% 7T nERE
Company Limited
LEERBAERNERE
BRAF
Shanghai Truegrow Hotel (i) PRC RMB32,500,000 - - 100 100 Hotel operation and
Management Company Limited i AR¥325000007 management
LERMBEERERAR EEZERER
Blossom Success Investments British Virgin Us$1 100 100 - —  Investment holding
Limited Islands/ 3 RERR
iR EBRAR Hong Kong
rBRuHs/
Bk
China Link Technologies Limited British Virgin US$100 100 100 - —  Investment holding
Islands/ 100%TT REER
Hong Kong
EBRLEE/
Bk
Determined Resources Limited British Virgin 1S$1,000 100 100 - —  Share investment
Islands/ 1000%T Rk
Hong Kong
rBRuHs/
Bk
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z-Z—ME+=-A=+—H L FE
42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

42. T2MELTE (F8)
(A) B S —RER (18)

Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation or share capital/
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Rl BETE RAFRECEIRARE/
HEBLAREE M Rt/ &g BRA/AMER FMERZLLA TEEK
Directly Indirectly
E# 53
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E2-mF -3-=f ZE-ME —%Z-=
% % % %
Terryglass Limited British Virgin US$1,000 100 100 - —  Investment holding
Islands/ 100057 REER
Hong Kong
RBRaHE/
Bk
Multi Eternal Limited British Virgin US$100 - - 920 90  Property development
Islands/PRC 10057 management services
EBRLEE/ NEEEERRE
HE
Sharp Talent International Limited British Virgin US$100 - = 920 90  Property marketing and
Islands/PRC 00T sales support services
RBRuds/ MEMEREELRRY
i

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of

the year.

EERR BAKEXEREEREATE
ZASEHBAREERHIN LR -BF
R BREEGHEBEAREMN  AFEE
RILE

BENB AR B EAFRETEMERES



42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other

42. EE?Z'M-JE _.I(mE)
(A) BRI —KRERN (&)

RARERR - ARA WA HEME A EET

subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority of these FTBEAMNMEB AR - ZEWE R RHF K
subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of these  EBNERBEBEE - LEMBRAFINEEE
subsidiaries are summarised as follows: HIERIIAT -

Number of subsidiaries

HBARHE

Principal activities Principal place of business 2014 2013
FEEK FTEEEHEY —E-NE —T-=%
Hotel operation and management PRCHE 4 4
BESERER
Investment holding % & £2i% Hong Kong &% 9 9
Property investment 1 £#& & Hong Kong &% 2 2
Inactive B £ Hong Kong &% 6 8
notes: BiE

M The shares of CHB are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
classified as assets held for sale at 31 December 2013 and disposed of
during the current year (refer to note 13).

(i) The companies are sole foreign equity ventures established in the PRC.

(i)~ The companies are sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in the
PRC.

(iv)  The company is sino-foreign co-operative joint venture established in
the PRC.

(v)  The companies are subsidiaries of the CHB Group and classified as
assets held for sale at 31 December 2013 and disposed of during the
current year (refer to note 13).

(B) DETAILS OF A NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARY THAT HAS MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

At 31 December 2013, CHB is the only subsidiary in the Group that

had material non-controlling interests. Financial information of CHB

had been disclosed in note 13.

0) BIFRITO R N BB L - R=ZT—=F
T A=+ BN BEAGLHEEERENAFHE
(2RMIFE13) ©

(i) ZERRRRFBEKLZIIEEERE -

(i)  ZERRERFBEKILZFINEELERT o

(iv)  ZABERRPERILZPIGELERT -

() ZENRIRABRBITEENHBAR  RZT—=
F+ZA=+—8B% iﬁ%ﬁ.‘ﬂjﬁéﬁﬁaﬂ$¢tﬁ
& (28ME13) ©

HMEE NI ERIEDROIEE S
NSRS

(B)

RZEBE—=F+-_A=+—HEERITAX
SEHE-BERFEERESNHBLAR - &
B ER BRI FE3HE -
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CHONG HING FINANCE CENTER, SHANGHAI — THE FLAGSHIP PROPERTY OF
THE GROUP, PROVIDES STEADY AND CONSIDERABLE RENTAL INCOME.
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Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

25/F Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2983 7777

Fax: (852) 2983 7725

E-mail: info@Ichi.com.hk

Website: www.Ichi.com.hk

Stock Code: 194
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